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PART I. BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business
(A) Description of Business
1. Business Development

The Company, formerly United Paracale Mining Conypavas incorporated on October 9, 1933
as a mining company.

On May 31, 1996, the Company's new set of stoclkdrsidexecuted deeds of assignment
transferring to the Company their investments iared of stock of certain companies as full
payment for their subscriptions to 1.5 billion skmpf the Company’s capital stock. On June 18,
1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission apgrdkie assignment of shares and the
following amendments to the Company’s Articles médrporation: (a) change in the Company'’s
corporate name to Solid Group Inc.; (b) changetsnprimary purpose to that of a holding

company; (c) change of the par value of its shamea P.01 to P1.00; (d) the declassification of
its class A and class B capital stock; and (e)inbeease in its authorized capital stock from P20
million (divided into P1.2 billion Class A shareada0.8 billion Class B shares at P0.01 par
value) to P5 billion divided into 5 billion sharasP1.00 par value, all of one class.

On September 4, 1996, an additional 524,475,00Doofipany’s shares of stock were offered to
the public and listed in the Philippine Stock Exufpa

On the November 21, 2002 special stockholders’' imgetthe stockholders approved the
acquisition of the shares and/or economic interiestee Destiny Group (consisting of Destiny,
Inc. and subsidiaries (DI) and Destiny Cable, bmad subsidiaries) from the Elena Lim family in
exchange for 1.026 billion shares of the Comparti par value of P1.00 per share.

In May 2003, the Company completed the acquisitibtihe entire issued and outstanding shares
of DI, which is in the business of broadband muititia services. The acquisition was approved
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on May 2803. A notice of exemption for the
issuance of shares under the Revised SecuritiesvAgtfiled with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 6, 2003. Company sharafirngt224,461,752 was proposed to be
issued in payment for the DI acquisition upon apatmf the listing of these shares with the
Philippine Stock Exchange. However, in 2004, ufwother review of the assets and liabilities of
DI, certain receivables from and payables to rdlat@rties were removed from the valuation of
DI's net assets. The re-valuation resulted in aaghan its financial position from a net asset to a
net liability of P23,201,010. The Company and D@Gieed that the Company would no longer
issue shares of stock to DCI as payment for itsiigtgpn of DI, but instead assume the DI's net
liability which represents fair value of the ongoing busir@sBI including its existing cable
internet subscriber base which, in accordance thighpooling of interest accounting applied to
this transaction, was charged to additional paidaipital. In 2012, SBC sold its broadband cable
infrastructure and broadband internet subscribse ba Skycable Corporation.

The Company has thirteen (13) wholly-owned subsikaas of December 31, 2015, as follows:



My Solid Technologies & Devices Corporation (My$0livas incorporated on April 21, 2009 to
engage in the manufacture, sale, distribution, mapion of any type of digital communication
devices, communication technology, broadband andioandeo equipment, gadgets and
accessories as well as undertake product reseacttdevelopment. MySolid merged with
MyTel Mobility Solutions Inc. (MyTel), another whglsubsidiary of the Company with similar
business, with MySolid as the surviving compangetif/e June 1, 2012.

SolidGroup Technologies Corporation (SGTC) was lipomated on November 17, 1989 to
engage in the development and implementation obrimftion technology systems and
applications. On February 22, 2011, the Board ofdbors and stockholders approved the
amendment of the SGTC's articles of incorporatiorchange its primary purpose. This was
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commissiddarch 22, 2011 and starting that date,
SGTC'’s primary purpose is to engage in, operatedect and maintain business of designing,
manufacturing, installing, importing, exporting, rketing, distributing or otherwise dealing in at
wholesale and retail prefabricated modular houskdffice units. SGTC was formerly a wholly-

owned subsidiary of SC. In 2007, SGTC became dlybwned subsidiary of the Company

when SC declared property dividend to the Comparikié form of its investment in SGTC.

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) was incorporated owtdber 12, 1984. SVC distributes
professional video equipment, accessories and iggppb broadcast networks and other
companies.

Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) was incorporated lame 13, 1983. SMC is engaged in the
lease and development of the Company's real egaiperties. SMC merged with Solid
Distributors, Inc. (SDI), another wholly-owned sigigry of the Company, on December 23,
2003, with SMC as the surviving company. Effectdamuary 1, 2012, SMC merged with Solid
Corporation, also another wholly owned subsididrthe Company engaged in the same business
of leasing real estate properties, with the SMQhassurviving company. SMC merged with
Solid Corporation (SC), another wholly owned suiasidof the Company, effective January 1,
2012, with SMC as the surviving company. In 201MCSoperated the Green Sun Hotel.

Zen Towers Corporation (Zen) was incorporated oly &) 2005. Zen is engaged in the
development and sale of real estate propertiedeveloped the Zen Tri-Tower condominium
located in Ermita, Manila.

Precos Corporation (Precos) was incorporated onk@ct31, 1989 to engage in real estate and
related businesses. Prior to 2004, Precos wasd@ded by Solid Corporation (SC) and 40%
owned by Sony International (Singapore) Ltd. (SONI$ 2004, Precos reacquired as treasury
stock the shares held by SONIS, thereby makingttrapany a wholly owned subsidiary of SC.
In 2007, Precos became a wholly-owned subsidiath@fCompany when SC declared property
dividend to the Company in the form of its invesiini@ Precos.

Kita Corporation (Kita) was incorporated on Octolbe994. Kita produced color TV sets under
the AIWA brand at its factory located inside thea®l Special Economic Zone. Kita ceased its
manufacturing operations effective April 15, 206terits agreement with Aiwa expired in April
1, 2000 and was no longer renewed. Kita mergeld @Gliark Plastics Manufacturing Corporation
(CPMC), a wholly owned subsidiary of SC, on Ap@l(2, with Kita as the surviving company.
After its merger with CPMC, Kita resumed operatitmgontinue the business of CPMC, which
is injected plastics manufacturing as well as #asé of its property. In December 2010, Kita
ceased the operations of its injected plastics fiaaturing business. Henceforth, Kita’'s revenues
principally come from the lease of its properties.



Omni Solid Services Inc. (OSSI) (formerly Solid g Corporation SLC) was incorporated on
May 15, 1995. SLC merged with Solid City Industgald Commercial Corporation (SCICC), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Solid Corporation, ondember 28, 2001 with SLC as the surviving
company. SLC ceased its consumer electronics metowifag operations in December 2002 after
its manufacturing agreement with SPH expired int&aper 2002 and was not renewed.
Subsequently, SLC’s business is injected plastiesufacturing which was the business of
SCICC prior to their merger. SLC ceased the dmera of the plastic injection manufacturing

business at the end of 2009 and operated as le$saal estate. SLC merged with Omni
Logistics Corporation (OLC), another wholly ownedbsidiary of the Company, effective

January 1, 2012, with SLC as the surviving compamfter the merger, SLC resumed the
business of OLC of providing warehousing and laggsservices to third parties. On March 19,
2012, SLC changed its corporate name to Omni Sdidices, Inc.

Solid Electronics Corporation (SEC) was incorpataté August 9, 1982. SEC operates the
repair and service centers for SONY brands of aadib video consumer electronics equipment
and MyPhone digital devices. SEC merged with Aadklonics Corporation (AAEC), another

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Soliddilonics Services Inc. (SESI), a wholly

owned subsidiary of SC on April 12, 2004 with SEtee surviving company.

Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) was incorporated orahh 12, 2003 in the British Virgin Islands
and acquired by the Company on July 31, 2003. B&tdles and manages the placement of the
Company’s investible funds in foreign currency fixéncome financial assets and other
investments.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. (SMFI) was incorporatedSeptember 9, 1999. SMFI is engaged in
the financing and extension of business, appliamckother loans.

Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) was incorporatedseptember 22, 2000 to offer broadband
services. SBC obtained a congressional franchiseotwtruct, install, establish, operate and
maintain telecommunications systems throughoutPthidippines under Republic Act No. 9116
which took effect on April 15, 2001. It has beearged provisional authority to use its franchise
by the National Telecommunications Commission omilApb, 2002. SBC was merged with
Destiny Inc. (DI) as approved by the Securities BRdhange Commission on August 26, 2005,
with SBC as the surviving entity. Henceforth, SB&Swmed the operations of DI of broadband
cable infrastructure and provides transport sesvitean affiliate engaged in cable television
operations. It also provides integrated multimestiavices, among which are, VSAT, broadcast
uplink and leased line services. In 2007, SBCteslathe marketing and distribution of mobile
phones. In 2010, My Solid Technologies & Devicesgdration assumed the importation of the
mobile phones from SBC while MyTel Mobility Solutis Inc. took over the distribution of
mobile phones from SBC. On May 11, 2012, SBC edténto an agreement with Skycable
Corporation for the sale/assignment and purchasetsofwired and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base, (See Agresinenf\fter the sale of its assets, SBC
remaining business was acting as collecting agérfky Cable until the SBC'’s clients are
transferred to the latter.

MyApp Corporation (MC) was incorporated on OctoB8; 2014 as a holding company. MC
holds 50% ownership of Creative Hothouse Manila, imhich is engaged to design and develop
mobile applications.

Henceforth, the term “Company” would mean the Pe@ampany and/or any of its subsidiaries.



2. Business of Issuer

Principal Products and Services

The consumer electronics business of the Compaaf/ecember 31, 2015 are:

(1) sale of mobile phones which generated sald33d894 million (for 3,369, 941 units) or 91%

of sales in 2015, P4,071 million (for 2,973,765tsinor 94% of sales in 2014 and P3,398 million
(for 2,454,531 units) or 97% of sales in 2013; édafter-sales service for principally SONY

brands of consumer electronic products and My|Phaitle its 40 company-owned service

centers throughout the Philippines as of end ofb2@hich generated service income of P178
million or 33% of service revenues in 2015, P18Rioni or 40% of service revenues in 2014 and
P164 million or 40% of service revenues in 2013} é3) warehousing, distribution and product
testing of consumer electronic products with servievenue of P164 million or 31% of service
revenues, P112 million or 25% of service revernné2014 and P116 million or 28% of service

revenues in 2013 and (4) subcontract or toll martufiang of color TV sets for other brand owner

(i.e. TCL) which generated tolling fee of P29 naifliin 2015 (for 159,697 units) or 5% of service
revenues in 2015, P23 million in 2014 (for 141,6##s) or 5% of service revenues in 2014 and
P9 million in 2013 (for 58,000 units) or 2% of ser/revenues.

As mentioned above, Solid Broadband CorporationQ)s&ld its wired and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base on May 11, 2@fr the sale of its assets, SBC remaining
business was acting as collecting agent of Sky eC@&uarporation until the SBC’s clients are
transferred to the latter. Revenues arising frbim activity amounted to P60 million in 2015 or
11% of service revenues in 2015, P54 million in20t 12% of service revenues in 2014 and
P53 million in 2013 or 13% of service revenues.

The Company’s other business activities are: theeldpment and sale of industrial estates in
joint venture with Samsung Corporation of Korea tievelopment of residential condominium
for sale and the development and lease of othéestate properties and hotel operations, sale of
prefabricated modular houses, and sale of broddoafgissional equipment and accessories.

The Company’s products are sold in the Philippindgevenues for the last 3 years, are as
follows: broadcast/professional equipment ancessaories of P282 million or 7% of sales in
2015, P174 million or 4% of sales in 2014 and Pd8liam or 2% of sales in 2013; prefabricated
modular houses of P124 million or 3% of sales it52@68 million or 2% of sales in 2014 and
P34 million or 1% of sales in 2013. Real estalessamounted to P 1,788 million or 28% of
revenues in 2015, P28 million or 0.5% of revenue2d14 and P114 million or 3% of revenues
in 2013. Revenues from hotel operations amountdel1fa0 million in 2015 or 19% of service
revenues in 2015, P45 million in 2014 or 10% ofvieer revenues in 2014 and P39 million in
2013 or 9% of service revenues in 2013.

Distribution

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesssraso sold directly to its corporate clients
such as broadcast stations.

The Company distributes through its subsidiarigssamer electronic products and devices in the
Philippines. The MyPhone brand is distributed by Sdijd Technologies and Devices
Corporation. As of December 31, 2015, MySolid diggpapproximately 100 dealer accounts
and 1,500 retail outlets.



Status of any-publicly announced new product oriser

None.

Competition

The MyPhone brand celphones distributed by MyS@kd¢hnologies and Devices Corporation
competed with other brands in the Philippine markeinly Samsung, Sony Ericsson, Cherry
Mobile, Star Mobile, O+, Oppo, Huawei and otherygmearket phones.

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesstivée the Company sells competes with
other brands like Panasonic and Sharp.

The prefabricated modular houses that the Companriets are standardized in design, modular
assembled, easy to assemble and disassemblelecateeand can also be stored easily. Its main
products are designed and manufactured using stglel frames and sandwich wall panels that
covers a wide range of applications such as tempoiffices, dormitories for construction sites,
municipal offices, residential settlements, schotdssrooms shops, temporary housing for
disaster relief and military camps, temporary bogd for exhibitions. It competes with Indigo
and Smarthouse.

The Company provides warehousing, and logisticgices mostly to electronics companies. It
competes with Fast Cargo, Yusen and Agility Logisstimong others.

The Company operates a hotel through Casa Bocobal (&BH) and The Hotel at Green Sun.
CBH competes with other budget hotels within thenNéaarea and Makati area, respectively.

Raw Materials, Parts and Components

The Company through its subsidiaries procures raterials for manufacture of its products and
finished products from a number of sources in thdigpines and foreign suppliers. It has an
existing contract through its subsidiary SolidGrolgchnologies Corporation, with a foreign
supplier, for the supply of prefabricated modulanses (See Agreements).

Dependency of the business upon a single or fetomess

The Company is not dependent on any single or festomers. There are no major existing sales
contracts.

Service
The Company provides through its subsidiariesy-afiées service for all the consumer electronic
products it manufactures. As at December 31, 2@1%as 40 service centers throughout the

Philippines and 30 authorized service centers.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides non-interest bearing cashraggato its subsidiaries for their working
capital requirements. Subsidiaries of the Compmgamnerally depend on one another for supply
of services and lease of properties. (See ItenC&Ptain Relationships and Related Transactions
of form 17-A)



Principal Terms and Expiration Dates of all Licesnaad Agreements

* Memorandum of Understanding with Sony Philippiries, (Sony)

On July 1, 2003, Solid Electronics Corporation ($E€htered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Sony for network suppant Sony products. Under the MOU, Sony
authorized the Company to perform in-warranty antdad warranty services to customers in the
Philippines for a fee calculated as a percentadgoaf/'s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of gdato customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty servibadl be shouldered by Sony. In the first quarter
of 2009, SEC and Sony agreed to lower the netwoplpart fees to be 0.45%. Effective April
2009, SEC and Sony agreed that the network sufgestshall be at a fixed rate of P1.25 million
per month. The Agreement is effective unless reddky any of the parties.

» Distributorship Agreement with Sony Corporation

Solid Video Corporation has a non-exclusive Distiils Agreement with Sony Corporation of

Hong Kong Limited (Sony HK), a corporation orgamizand existing under the laws of Hong

Kong. Under the agreement, SVC was designatedhy BK as its non-exclusive distributor of

Sony products in the Philippines. In addition, Sst@ll provide the customers in the Philippines
with repair and parts replacement services, inolydbut not limited to repair and parts

replacement services rendered by SVC which areredwender the 12 month warranty period at
its own costs and expenses.

» Exclusive Distribution Agreement with Yahgee Modutouse Co., Ltd.

SolidGroup Technologies Corporation (SGTC) has =alusive Distribution Agreement with
Yahgee Modular House Co., Ltd. , a corporation wizEd and existing under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China on June 10, 2011. Utlieragreement, SGTC is designated as the
exclusive distributor of its products under the Mytde brand in the Philippines. The agreement
is valid for three years. The agreement was redeameJune 10, 2014 for a period of another
three years.

» Agreement with Sky Cable Corporation

On May 11, 2012, the Solid Broadband CorporatidBGBentered into an agreement with Sky
Cable Corporation covering the sale, assignmeati@msfer of its assets, equipment, contracts,
permits, licenses and subscriber base of SBC usdldei operation of its broadband business.
SBC received the amount of P1 billion as considamebr this transaction.

In addition, Sky Cable Corporation assumes to @@ 8ll cost and expenses in connection with
use and operation of the assets, until the Compasperation is transferred to Sky Cable
Corporation.

« Operating agreement

Pursuant to the above agreement and pending theniss of the National Telecommunications
Commission (NTC) approval of the transfer of agsBBC entered into an operating agreement



with Sky Cable Corporation on June 2, 2015 forabeommodation of the VSAT transactions of
Sky Cable Corporation wherein the said transactighde sold and collected through SBC for a
fee of P2 million (inclusive of VAT).

* Franchise

Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) obtained a cagjomal franchise for 25 years to construct,
install, establish, operate and maintain telecomoations systems throughout the Philippines
under Republic Act No. 9116 which took effect onrihg4, 2001. On May 11, 2012, SBC
entered into an agreement with Sky Cable Corpardtinthe sale/assignment and purchase of its
wired and satellite assets and broadband/inteutetcsiber base, (See Agreements). After the
sale of its assets, SBC remaining business wasgaa$ collecting agent of Sky Cable until the
SBC's clients are transferred to the latter.

Need for any government approval

As of December 31, 2015, Zen Tower Corporationwiaiting the approval of the Housing and
Land Use Regulatory Board (HLURB) its license ed for the Tower 2. It obtain the approval
on March 3, 2016.

The transfer of the assets of SBC to Sky Cable @atjpn pursuant to its Agreement on May 11,
2012 is still pending the approval of the Natiohelecommunications Commission.

Effect of existing and probable governmental refyors on the business

None.

Research and development activities

The Company has not spent any significant amoume&earch and development activities in the
last three years.

Costs and effects of compliance with environmelatas

The Company has complied with environmental lawsiaimal costs.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries have 383 regulaiayees as at December 31, 2015 as shown
in the table below. It estimates to have 450 eyg#s by the end of December 31, 2016. There
is no existing union as of December 31, 2015. &lae no employees who would be on strike
nor have been on strike in the past three (3) yearsare threatening to strike. The Company
has no supplemental benefits and incentive arraagEmwith its employees other than the
regular Christmas bonus, thirteenth month payoperdnce incentives and leave conversions.



Number of employet

Managemet 17
Sales and Distributic 51
Operatiol 91
Service 87
Administratior 89
Financt 48
Total 382

Major Risks involved in the Businesses of the Camypa

The Company and its subsidiaries identify the maigks of the businesses by assessing the
business environment in which they operate. Mdfks and threats are addressed through the
corporate planning process, which defines apprtgsiategic directions and actions to be taken.
These directions and actions are managed by reguidit and management review of the
operations and financial results of the Company imdubsidiaries. Significant issues, which
may arise as a result of the management reviewtharepresented to the Executive Committee
and the Board of Directors for resolution.

The Company’s business is continuously subjecapidrtechnology changes which may cause
inventory obsolescence. The Company monitors dewe¢nts in technology advances that could
affect its business.

Iltem 2. Properties

B. Description of Property

Certain properties owned by the Company througsutsidiaries are as follows:

Land Are: Current and Intende:
Location (insg. m.) Use

Laguna International Industrial Park, Bin: 73,53 Building for leas:

Laguna

La Huerta, Bicutan, Paranac 18,49(  Office buildin¢ & warehouse for
lease

SanDionisio, Paranaqt 6,69( Warehouses for lea

San Antonio, Paranag 4,05¢ Land (site of future warehov)

Valenzuel, Marulas, Bulace 10,49:  Factory ancwarehousg;

Building for lease
Laguna International Industrial Park, Bin:

Laguna 5,141  Building for lease

Pasong Tamo, Makati C 5,00( Hotel and office uilding

Natividac St., Ermita, Manil 4,50¢ Concominium towe (for sale

Osmena Blv., Cebu Cit 3,85¢ Service center & office buildin
for lease

Outlook Drive, Baguio Cit 3,84¢ Land (Intendecfor sale or lease

Brgy. Tabuco, Naga Ci 3,05¢ Land (Intended for sal

Tandang Sora, Quezon C 2,511 Lanc (Future site of the pilc

project for modular residential



housing units

Barrio Pantal, Dagupan Ci 1,91¢ Land(Intended for leas

Barrio San Rafael, lloilo Ci 1,75(C Service Center and Office buildi
for lease

J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Man 1,72¢ Office buildingand Hote

Brgy. San Roque, San Pablo ( 1,71« Service center and office buildii
for lease

Oliveros, Balintawak, Quezon C 1,40( Land (Intended for s¢)

Bacoor, Cavit 1,33¢ Office buildingfor leas:

Cabanatuan City, Nueva Ec 1,212 Service center ai building for
lease

Brgy. San Rafael, Tarlac, Tar 1,00(¢ Building (Intendedfor leasg)

Calamba Premiere Industrial P 4,17¢ Industrial/ Commercl lots for
sale

Araneta, Quezon Ci 1,00( Lanc (Site of future office
building)

Brgy. Parian, Prinza and Barandal, Cala 132,92¢ Raw Lant

Solid Corporation also owns a parcel of land in 8glalipapa and Pamaldan, Cabanatuan City,
Nueva Ecija with an area of 1,914,180 square metdiis property is the subject of a case filed
by Solid Corporation on October 17, 1995 with Bepartment of Agrarian Reform Regional
Adjudication Board (RARAB) to declare the emancdipatpatents issued to several tenant
farmers of the said property and any patents tleat subsequently be issued covering the same,
null and void on the ground that the requiremefitBresidential Decree No. 27 have not been
complied with. The portion of the property that may subject to litigation consists of 47,211
square meters. On February 6, 1997, the case Wwastted for resolution. On June 26, 1997, the
RARAB ordered the processing of the Certificatéafid Transfer for issuance to the tenants. On
July 31, 1997, Solid Corporation appealed the RARAEcision to the DAR's Central
Adjudication Board (DARAB). The appeal was resolegtyerse to Solid Corporation on January
31, 2002. Solid Corporation appealed the DARAB sieci to the Court of Appeals on February
11, 2002. The Court of Appeals dismissed the petitf Solid Corp. on March 1, 2002. In
November 2002, Solid Corporation withdrew its apmahe Court of Appeals preparatory to
negotiating with DAR and Landbank, which the CafrAppeals granted last June 28, 2004. No
amicable settlement was however reached. Thug Soliporation filed for a Petition for Higher
Valuation of Land before the Provincial Agrarianféten Adjudication Board of the Department
of Agrarian Reform in Cabanatuan City on Novemb®&r 2007. The Department of Agrarian
Reform granted Solid Corporation’s petition andevedi Land Bank to re-evaluate the land
valuation based only on Republic Act No. 6657 (Twmprehensive Agrarian Reform Program)
on September 28, 2012. Land Bank amended theti@iuand tendered an Amended Offer of
P14.97 million to Solid Corporation (or Solid ManiCorporation, the surviving company after
the merger of Solid Manila Corporation and Solidrggwation). Solid Manila Corporation has
applied for an amended valuation for Php 16.4 BfilliPesos. Solid Manila Corporation is
complying the documentation requirements as of|A&r16.

Solid Manila Corporation also owns a property ilillRj Rizal with a land area of 645,193 square
meters. The Department of Agrarian Reform has mémt Solid Manila Corporation that this
property is within the coverage of the Comprehaengigrarian Reform Law which may result in
future litigation. Portion of the property that még subject to future litigation consists of
210,000 square meters. Solid Manila Corporation fited its opposition with the Provincial

Agrarian Reform Adjudication Board (PARAB) on theverage of the land under agrarian
reform. On August 13, 1997, Solid Manila Corporatabtained a certification from the Office of
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the Municipal Planning and Development Coordindfitilla, Rizal) stating that the subject
properties belonging to Solid Manila Corporation sweeclassified for Agro-industrial &
Industrial use as per Sangguniang Bayan Resolitwmrd dated March 6, 1980 and duly ratified
by the government’s Housing & Land Use Regulatooaf8 (HLURB) under their Resolution
No. R-42-A-3 series of 1981, which was adopted ebr&ary 11, 1981. Thus, according to
company's legal counsel, the said properties ammpk from CARP coverage under the
provisions of Department of Justice opinion No. #le Company'’s legal counsel believes that
the Board will declare the CARP coverage of thejestibproperties void since Solid Manila
Corporation was clearly denied due process of lawthe meantime, Solid Manila Corporation
filed for exemption in January 14, 1999 and saidliagtion has been indorsed to Center for Land
Use Policy Planning Implementation (CLUPPI) -2 DARreau of Agrarian Legal Affairs on
March 8, 1999. Solid Manila Corporation’s applioatfor exemption was however subsequently
withdrawn. In lieu of the withdrawal, Solid Manil@orporation filed a Protest before the
Department of Agrarian Reforms on the Notice of €age for TCT Nos. 25264, 25265, 25267 ,
26578 and 25268. It likewise filed a Petition faghkr Valuation before the Provincial Agrarian
Reform Adjudication Board last June 24, 2009 on ltitecovered by TCT 25264 which is
pending resolution as of April 2016. Solid Man@arp. was able to secure a retention on the
Pillilia lot covered by TCT No. 25265 while the raiming area of around 3 hectares more or less
was subjected to the Voluntary Land Transfer Pmogod the Dept. of Agrarian Reform to the
Solid Manila Corporation's recognized farmers-bieigies. The Pillilia lots covered by TCT
Nos. 25267, 25264 and TCT No. 25268 were likewiggested to the Voluntary Land Transfer
Program by the Dept. of Agrarian Reforms and diated to the recognized farmer-beneficiaries
of Solid Manila Corp. On the Pillilia lot covere¢ BCT No. 26578, the Regional Director of the
Department of Agrarian Reform granted our petitfon exemption for TCT No. 26578 on
January 30, 2012.

There are two other cases involving certain progemf Solid Manila Corporation. Its titles to
the Balintawak, Quezon City property with land apé81,423 square meters, currently used as a
service center and office building, are sought ¢éodmnulled in a civil action filed on 25th
September, 1990, with the Regional Trial Court Brari20 on the ground that another title
covers the same area claimed by Lilia Sevilla eCal July 14, 1995, the in-house counsel
assumed the case. On January 20, 2003, the RTCIB129 rendered a decision in favor of Lilia
Sevilla annulling seven titles of Solid Manila Corgtion to wit-- TCT Nos. 12729 up to 12736.
SMC filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals. T@mpany's legal counsel believes that the
titles of Solid Manila Corporation will prevail ov¢hose of the claimants on the grounds that the
titles of the claimants are being sought to beifiedl and voided by the government itself. The
government’s case filed by the Land RegistratiothArity (which is represented by the Office of
the Solicitor General) before the Regional Triau@dqRTC) Branch 122 was for the annulment
of claimant’'s title. Solid Manila Corporation filedn intervention in the government's case
despite opposition by Lilia Sevilla et.al. The Ctoalfowed Solid Manila Corporation to intervene
in the government’s case. Pending the incidentloérahird party intervenors, the Department of
Justice recommended the dismissal of the Regidtddemds (ROD) and Deputy ROD of
Caloocan based on inquiry of the antecedent fakcthe case. In November 2000, the RTC
Branch 122 rendered a decision in favor of the guwent, thus nullifying the land titles of Lilia
Sevilla et. al., who subsequently appealed thestetiof RTC Branch 122 to the Court of
Appeals. SMC consolidated these cases as of Fgl2084. Lilia Sevilla et. al. filed a motion
for reconsideration to the Court of Appeals’ ordemsolidating these cases. The Court of
Appeals had received the memoranda of the respeptitties of Lilia Sevilia, the Government
and Solid Manila Corp. and had raffled the casartother division for the promulgation of the
decision. On May 5, 2014, a Decision was rendegeth® Court of Appeals in Lilia Sevilla vs,
Solid Manila Corp. in CA-GR No. 77750 granting i@dWianila Corp.’s appeal, nullifying TCT
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No. 30374 registered in the name of Lilia Sevillad avalidating Solid Manila Corp. titles
specifically TCT Nos. 172729, 12730, 12731, 12782733, 12734, 12735 and 12736. The
Decision of the Court of Appeals had become fimal executory on October 9, 2014 pursuant to
an Entry of Judgment issued by the Court of Appeals

Franchise

A Company's subsidiary, Solid Broadband Corporati@BC), obtained a congressional
franchise to construct, install, establish, operatel maintain telecommunications systems
throughout the Philippines under Republic Act Nd1® which took effect on April 15, 2001.
On May 11, 2012, SBC entered into an agreement \Biklycable Corporation for the
sale/assignment and purchase of its wired andita@ésets and broadband/internet subscriber
base, (See Agreements). After the sale of iteteas$SBC remaining business was acting as
collecting agent of Sky Cable until the SBC'’s clieare transferred to the latter.

Mortgage, lien or encumbrance and limitation on emship or usage on the properties

Except for the above third party claims filed aghithe Company’'s subsidiaries as disclosed
above, there are no other mortgage, lien or encamglrand limitation on the ownership or usage
on the properties.

Lease agreements

Kita Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of tGempany, has entered into lease contracts
with Clark Development Corporation

Locatior Annual Ren Expiration Dat
(In Thousand Pesos)

Clark, Pampanc 7,35 Marck, April and August 201

* With increase after every five years on the leastand and 10% annual increase on lease of
the improvements after the first five years.

The lease contract are renewable upon mutual agrgesfithe parties.

Also, the Company through its subsidiaries, pritgaBolid Manila Corporation and Kita
Corporation, leases out to tenants certain realteegiroperties as summarized below. These

leases are renewable on terms mutually acceptalte parties.

Location Annual Ren Expiration Dat
(In Thousand Pesos)

Bacoor, Cavit 3,547 Juy 31, 201!

Cagayan de O 1,94C Various up to October 1, 201¢
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Clark, Pampanc 37,10« Various up tcDecember 31, 20:
lloilo 2,281 Various up tcOctober 31, 201(
Laguna International Industri 24,32¢ Various up to June 30, 2C

Park, Binan, Laguna

Lagunalnternational Industrie 5,44¢ January 31, 20:
Park, Binan, Laguna

La Huerta, Bicutan, Paranac 4,97 Various up to October 31, 2C
Ermita, Manile 22,18, Various up to February 19, 2C
Ermita, Manile 4,16¢ Various up to December 14, 2(
San Dionisio, Paranaque C 13,09¢ February 7, 201

Valenzuela, Bulacs 10,55¢ Various up to May 31, 20:

Properties the Company intends to acquire in tké taelve months

The Company estimates capital expenditures forydae 2016 amounting to P350 million for
various real estate development and upgrade ditieei The purchase and/or construction of
these capital expenditures will be financed pritgahrough the funds of the Company.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings
C. Legal Proceedings

Solid Manila Corporation owns a parcel of landhwitnprovements consisting of warehouses,
canteen and parking/ open area located at Lagutean&tional Industrial Park, Mamplasan,
Binan, Laguna. Solid Manila Corporation enteret ia contract of lease with Carina Apparel,
Inc. on June 2, 2010 whereby Solid Manila Corporateased to Carina Apparel, Inc. the said
property. On February 20, 2014, Carina Apparel faded to pay the monthly rentals for the
period April 2013, October 2013 to December 20hHBuary 2014 to February 2014 for a total
amount of P10.43 million. Solid Manila Corporatifited a special civil action for ejectment
against Carina Apparel, Inc. under Civil Case Nb0157 with the Metropolitan Trial Court,
Makati City, Branch 62. The Court rendered judgmerfavor of Solid Manila Corporation on
September 26, 2014 and ordered Carinal Apparel, tneacate the property and peacefully
surrender possession to Solid Manila Corporatiay, olid Manila Corporation the amount of
P12.51 million representing rentals in arrearsfaddarch 10, 2014 and P2.07 million as monthly
rental starting April 2014 and every month themafis reasonable rent or compensation for
continued use and occupancy of property until treperty is completely restituted to Solid
Manila Corporation. With the foregoing Decisioncbming final and executory on December
19, 2014, the Metropolitan Trial Court, Makati CByanch 62 issued a notice of levy and sale on
all of the personal and office properties of Cdrispparel, Inc. in the premises of the Laguna
property. On January 26, 2015, after a sale lfipauction was concluded by the Sheriff, a
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Certificate of Sale was issued by the Branch Shefrithe Metropolitan Trial Court, Makati City
Branch 62 in favour of Solid Manila Corporationths highest bidder.
As discussed in Item 2 (See Properties), certalpsidiaries of the Company are involved in
litigation or other proceedings affecting theirpestive titles to real estate property and certain
other litigation in relation to property, the outee of which could individually or taken as a
whole, not adversely affect the financial resuttserations or prospects of the Company. The
Company does not believe any such litigation wiléd a significant impact on the financial
results, operations or prospects of the Company.
Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecusitHolders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of tharitg holders during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Iltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Relded Stockholder Matters

A. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholders Matters

Q) Market Information

€) Principal Market

The principal market for the registrant’'s commoniggis the Philippine Stock Exchange

0] The registrant's common equity is listed andded only at the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices for eaalter within the last two years are as follows:
Stock Prices

High (P) Low (P)

201¢

First quarte 1.3: 1.1t
Second quart 1.42 1.1%
Third quarte 1.4¢ 1.1«
Fourth quarte 1.31 1.1C
201¢

First quarte 1.2¢ 1.1¢
Second quart 2.2C 1.2C
Third quarte 1.6¢€ 1.31
Fourth quarte 1.44 1.13

(i) Not applicable. The principal market is tRhilippine Stock Exchange.

(b) The Company share was trading at P1.19 as of Ap, 2016 (the latest practicable
trading date).

(©) Not applicable. This report is not filed Elation to registration of securities.
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(2) Holders

The number of shareholders of record as of Dece@be2015 was 4,332. Common shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2015 were 1,82108@82shares. Total issued shares as of
December 31, 2015 were 2,030,975,000.

Top 20 stockholders of the Company’'s common steofdecember 31, 2015:

No. of Share: % to Total

Name of Stockholder Held Outstanding
1. | AA Commercial, Inc 583,377,811 32.0¢
2. | AV Value Holdings Corporatic 499,999,99 27.4¢
3. | PCD Nominee Corporation (| 365,049,45 20.0¢
4. | Lim, David S 179,488,59 9.8t
5. | Lim, Vincent S 71,887,18 3.9t
6. | Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,16 3.5¢
7. | Chua, Willington Chua &/or Constanti 11,610,00 0.64
8. | PCD Nominee Corporation (N 10,599,80 0.5¢
9. | Chua, Constantino &/or Willington &/or Geol 1,750,001 0.1
10. | Hottick Development Corporati 1,408,00! 0.0¢
11. | Chua, Willingtor 1,110,00! 0.0¢
12. | Paz, Vensao 1,065,00I 0.0¢
13. | Lucio W. Yan &/or Clara Yai 1,000,001 0.0t
Columbian Motors Corporatic 1,000,001 0.0t
14. | Juan Go Yu &/or Grace Chu" 940,00( 0.0t
15. | Ong, Victori¢ 632,00( 0.02
16. | Lim, Julic 590,00( 0.0z
17.| Juan G. Yu &/or John Philip \ 580,00 0.0¢
18. | Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon & San Jose 536,00( 0.0¢
Offices
19. | GMA Farms, Inc 500,00( 0.0z
Jacinto, Ray S 500,00( 0.0¢
20. | Duca, Elpidic 450,00( 0.C2

b. Not applicable. This report is not filed in atbn to registration of securities or any
acquisition, business combination or other reozgtitn.

c. Not applicable. This report is not filed inatbn to any acquisition, business combination or
other reorganization.

d. Not applicable. This report is not filed inatéon to registration of securities.

(3) Dividends

a. In 2015, cash dividend amounted to P0.06 per gbayable to stockholders of record as of
August 28, 2015 and payable on September 23, 208014, cash dividend amounted to P0.06

per share out of the unrestricted retained earnamsof December 31, 2013 in favor of
stockholders of record on August 29, 2014 and daya September 24, 2014.
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b. The Company's retained earnings as of Deceihe2015 included undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and unconsolidated investees, whi&h reot currently available for dividend
declaration until such time that the subsidiariagendistributed them. The Company’s retained
earnings is also restricted for the cost of 209,d@3 treasury shares amounting to P115.6 million
as of December 31, 2015.

4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Secugt

There was no sale of unregistered or exempt saulitit 2013 to 2015.

a. Securities Sold.

No securities were sold by the Company from 201230tt6.

b. Underwriters and Other Purchases

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2013 to 2015.
c. Consideration

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2013 to 2015.
d. Exemption from Registration Claimed

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2013 to 2015.
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Iltem 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or &h of Operation

A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan @peration

(1) Plan of Operation

Not applicable. The Company have revenues fromatipas in each of the last two fiscal years.
(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Full Fiscal Years

Key Performance Indicators

The following key performance indicators were idiggd by the Company: revenue growth,
asset turnover, operating expense ratio, earnirgferd interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), earnings per share, curmatip and debt to equity ratio.

Revenue growth was determined as follows: revefarethe current year less revenues for last
year or change in revenues divided by the reveoli® previous year.

Asset turnover was computed based on the reverareede during the year divided by the
average total assets.

Operating expense ratio was calculated as folloggerating expenses for the period divided by
revenues for period.

EBITDA was determined by adding back interest egpedepreciation and amortization charges
to income before tax on continuing operationstieryear.

Earnings per share was computed based on theawehénor loss for the period divided by the
weighted average shares outstanding during the year

Current ratio was computed as follows: total aotrigssets as of end of the year divided by total
current liabilities as of end of the year.

Debt to equity ratio was computed by dividing tb&lt liabilities (excluding amounts due to
related parties) as of end of the year by the &aity as of end of the year.

Key performance indicators for 2015, 2014 and 2013 are asfollows:

December 31, 26 Decembe 31, 204 Decembe 31, 20:3

Revenue grow 29% 18% (13%
Asset turnove 50% 37% 32%
Operating expense ra 14% 19% 17%
EBITDA P967 millior (P105.61 million P225 millior
Earning: (loss) / shat P0.2 (P0.07 P0.0¢
Current rati 4.34:] 2.31:] 2.60:]

Debt to equity rati 0.22:] 0.44:] 0.3¢1
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2015

Revenues grew by 29% in 2015 vs 18% in 2014. Thee@se was contributed by the property
and building services, technical support and sohstiand investment and other business
segments. The Company’'s Golden Hill project inrmahiealized the real estate sales in 2015
which included the customers’ deposit in prior geafter the property ownership certificate was
issued to buyers in 2015.

Asset turnover stood higher at 50% in 2015 from%3n 2014 mainly as a result of higher
revenues of the property & building services, techl support and solutions and investment and
others segments.

Operating expense ratio stood at 14% and 19% f&6 2hd 2014, respectively due to lower
operating expenses of the digital mobile devicesmoperty and building services segments.

EBITDA amounted to P967 million in 2015 against atdge P105.61 million in 2014. The
increase was mainly due to income of the properbudding services segment from the earnings
of the Golden Hill project in China and sale of Bedintawak property.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.27 in 2015 véossaper share of P0.07 in 2014 mainly due
to net income for the period mainly from the prap& building services segment.

Current ratio stood at 4.34:1 as of December 31528nd 2.31:1 as of December 31, 2014
mainly due to lower current liabilities.

Debt to equity ratio stood at 0.22:1 as of Decen@igr2015 from 0.44: 1 as of December 31,
2014 primarily due to lower liabilities and highesuity.

2014

Revenue increased by 18% in 2014 vs. 13% decie@¥.3 principally due to higher revenues
of the digital mobile devices segment on digitaldurct sales.

Asset turnover stood higher at 37% in 2014 fro2%3n 2013 mainly as a result of higher
revenues of the digital mobile devices segmertherdigital product sales.

Operating expense ratio was 19% and 17% for 2014 2013, respectively due to higher
operating expenses of the digital mobile devices@mnperty & building services segments.

EBITDA amounted to a negative P105.61 million inl20against P225 million in 2013. The
decrease was mainly due to losses of the digit&lilsndevices and property & building services
segments.

Loss per share amounted to P0.07 in 2014 vers® R9.2013 mainly due to net loss for the
period. The digital mobile devices segment suffdmss in 2014 principally from lower gross
margin due to stiff market competition and highguenses for the period. On the other hand, the
property & building services segment also incudasses due to interest and other costs of the
Golden Hill project.
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Current ratio stood lower at 2.31:1 as of Decen¥ier?014 and 2.60:1 as of December 31, 2013
mainly due to lower current assets.

Debt to equity ratio stood at 0.44:1 as of Decengigr2014 from 0.39: 1 as of December 31,
2013 primarily due to higher liabilities and loveuity.

2013

Revenue declined by 13% in 2013 vs. 18% increa2€12 principally due to lower revenues
of the digital mobile devices segment on digitaldarct sales and lower broadband revenues due
to sale of its assets in May 2012.

Asset turnover stood lower at 32% in 2013 from%d4idn 2012 mainly as a result of lower
revenues of the digital mobile devices segmenherdigital product sales.

Operating expense ratio was 17% and 15% for 208132842, respectively due to higher selling
and distribution expenses of the digital mobile ides segment and lower revenues for the
period.

EBITDA amounted to P225 million in 2013 against3&b, million in 2012. The decrease was
mainly due to low operating profit for the period.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.09 in 2013 vé&8168 in 2012 (P0.32 excluding the one-
time gain from broadband asset sale in 2012) mdinly lower net income. The digital mobile
devices segment suffered a loss in 2013 princigediyn lower revenues and margins due to stiff
market competition.

Current ratio stood lower at 2.60:1 as of Decen81er2013 and 3.14 : 1 as of December 31,
2012 mainly due to higher current liabilities.

Debt to equity ratio stood at 0.39: 1 as of Decanie 2013 from 0.33: 1 as of December 31,
2012 primarily due to higher liabilities.

Results of Operations 2015

Revenues grew by 29% in 2015 reaching P6,460 milfrom P4,997 million in 2014. The
increase was contributed by the property and ngldiervices, technical support and solutions
and investment and other business segments. Th®&y's Golden Hill project in China
realized the real estate sales in 2015 which irelutie customers’ deposit in prior years after the
property ownership certificate was issued to buye2015.

Sale of goods amounted to P3,952 million in 2015 lgaver by 9% from P4,337 million in 2014
due to lower revenues of the digital mobile devisegment on digital product sales. Units sold
on digital mobile devices were higher by 10%. Hoere average selling price was lower as it
sold its old stocks.

Rendering of services amounted to P532 milliondd®2from P453 million in 2014 due to higher
revenues from hotel and various events of Green @utie property and building services
segment and higher revenues from warehousing astdibdition and product testing of the
technical support and solutiorsisiness segment.
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Rental income amounted to P146 million in 2015 fr®4H50 million in 2014 due to lower
occupancy.

Sale of real estate amounted to P1,788 million0b52 up by 6,213% from P28 million in 2014
principally due to sale of completed propertiestlid Golden Hill project in China. The
Company realized the real estate sales in 2015hwihiduded the customers’ deposit in prior
years after the property ownership certificate isaged to buyers in 2015.

Interest income amounted to P41 million in 201ghki by 54% from P27 million in 2014
mainly from higher yield on placements.

Cost of sales, services, real estate sold andlsemtaounted to P5,020 million for 2015, or an
increase of 17% from P4,287 million in 2014 as ussed below.

Cost of sales amounted to P3,577 million for 20aWer by 7%, from P3,854 million for 2014 in
relation to decrease in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P460 million for 2&tBn P374 million for 2014, up by 23%
mainly in relation to higher service revenue.

Cost of rentals amounted to P57 million for 201&nfrP35 million in 2014, higher by 59% in
relation to higher taxes and licenses.

Cost of real estate sales amounted to P925 mikin2015 from P22 million for 2014 mainly in
relation to higher sale of real estate.

Gross profit amounted to P1,440 million for 2016nfr P710 million in 2014. Gross profit
improved mainly from higher real estate sales.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to P@B8N for 2015 from P846 million in 2014
as explained below.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P559ignilin 2015 from P552 million in 2014.
There was no material change for this account.

General and administrative expenses amounted t6 R@8on for 2015 from P379 million in
2014 primarily due to recognition of penalties fate delivery of property document for the
Golden Hill project in 2014 (none in 2015).

Other operating income - net amounted to P263anillincome in 2015, up by 205% from P86
million income in 2014 principally from gain on sabf investment property and fair value gains
on investment property of the property and buildegvices segment.

Operating profit (loss) amounted to P806 millioreiing profit for 2015 from P135 million
operating loss in 2014, a significant improvemen®®4% mainly from income of the property
and building services segment.

Other income (charges) amounted to P25 millionrotimome for 2015 against P75 million loss
in 2014 mainly from the following:
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Finance costs decreased to P77 million for 2015pewed with P112 million in 2014 mainly
from lower impairment losses on trade and othegivables and foreign exchange losses.

Finance income amounted to P89 million for 2015 parad with P33 million in 2014 mainly
due to higher yield on placements and higher graiénvestment; higher foreign currency gains
of the digital mobile devices and investment artepbusiness segments and, gain on settlement
or receivables of the property and building seiwisegment.

Share in net loss of an associate of P3 millioaGmh5 from nil in 2014 due to net loss of Creative
Hothouse Manila for the period.

Other gains — net was P16 million for 2015, impbiag 404% from P3 million charges in 2014
principally from gain on sale of property and eaqugnt and net interest income on retirement
benefit asset.

Profit before tax was P832 million for 2015, anrease of 493% from P211 million loss before
tax in 2014 as discussed above.

Tax expense (income) amounted to P159 million iredar 2015 from P22 million income in
2014 mainly due higher provision of current tax enge from Balintawak property sale and tax
expense for real estate sale in China.

Net income amounted to P672 million for 2015 agaif38 million net loss in 2014 due to the
factors as discussed above.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theephamounted to P486 million for 2015 against
P121 million net loss to 2014 as discussed aboeé.if¢ome improved mainly due to share in
net income in Golden Hill project in China and gaimsale of Balintawak property.

Net income attributable to minority interest amaghto P186 million for 2015 from P67 million

net loss in 2014, an increase of 375% primarily thueeported income from sale of property of
the Golden Hill project in Nanning, China.

Financial Position 2015

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P2,576 métaf December 31, 2015, up by 58% from
P1,623 million as of December 31, 2014. Cash wam fnvesting activities mainly from the sale
of investment property and redemption of FAFVTPhdamainly used for financing activities

for payment of interest bearing loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slamounted to P123 million as of December 31,
2015, down by 83% from P746 million as of Decentkier2014 from termination of certain unit
investments in trust funds.

Trade and other receivables reached P1,278 mid®mf December 31, 2015 against P1,438
million as of December 31, 2014. Overall, there wasnaterial change for this account. Loans
receivables went down to P45 million from P195 imill from collection of loans. On the other
hand, trade receivables was higher by 24% mosbiy fhigher receivable of the digital mobile
devices and property and building services segmentade customers are generally established
and stable companies with reasonable assurancale¢tebility of their accounts. Nonetheless,
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trade accounts are periodically reviewed to asHesgossible losses from non-collection and
allowance is provided for possible losses on adsowhich are considered doubtful of collection.

Advances to related parties amounted to P1 milisof December 31, 2015 and P28 million as
of December 31, 2014, a decrease of 94% due tectiolh of advances.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoutatd®B66 million as of December 31, 2015,
compared with P594 million as of December 31, 2#lainly due to buildup of inventories of
the my|phone business.

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,647 mid®of December 31, 2015 and P2,371 million
as of December 31, 2014. The decrease was maieltauveal estate sold by Fil-Dragon and
Starworld.

Other current assets amounted to P471 million aBemfember 31, 2015 compared with P574
million as of December 31, 2014, a decrease of #8% to lower prepayments and creditable
withholding taxes which was applied to the provisior current taxes.

Total current assets reached P6,964 million asaxfeinber 31, 2015 from P7,377 million as of
December 31, 2014 mainly from lower real estatereries as a result of the real estate sale.

Non-current trade and other receivables amount&b8d million as of December 31, 2015 from
P582 million as of December 31, 2014 from incraasesh surrender value of investment in life
insurance and offset by collection of loan receleab

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets am@d to P13 million as of December 31, 2015
from P9 million as of December 31, 2014 due toenske in club shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,8lbomias of December 31, 2015 from
P1,739 million as of December 31, 2014. There wasaterial change for this account.

Investment property decreased to P2,653 milliomfaBecember 31, 2015 from P3,653 as of
December 31, 2014 mainly due to sale of Balintapralperty.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P117 midl®nf December 31, 2015 and P 123 million
as of December 31, 2014. There was no materiaigehfor this account.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P166 milgaf December 31, 2015 and P127 million as
of December 31, 2014, an increase of 30% pringighle to recognition of deferred tax assets on
NOLCO and MCIT offset by allowance for inventorysoltlescence.

Other non-current assets amounted to P29 milliasf &&cember 31, 2015, or a decrease of 33%
from P44 million as of December 31, 2014 primadilye to lower deferred input VAT.

Total non-current assets amounted to P5,396 mikismf December 31, 2015 from P6,279
million as of December 31, 2014 as discussed abmirly from lower investment property.

Total assets reached P 12,361 million as of Decemtsd, 2015 from P13,657 million as of
December 31, 2014 as discussed above.
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Interest-bearing loans amounted to P257 milliomfadecember 31, 2015 from P844 million as
of December 31, 2014, lower by 69% due to loanyeat for the period.

Trade and other payables amounted to P636 millmfaDecember 31, 2015 against P732
million as of December 31, 2014, lower by 13% maidle to lower trade payables, accrued
expenses and advances from customers.

Customers’ deposits amounted to P550 million d3emfember 31, 2015 versus P1,502 million as
of December 31, 2014. The decrease was due toniicogof revenue by Fil-Dragon.

Advances from related parties amounted to P73aniliis of December 31, 2015, an increase of
98% from P36 million as of December 31, 2014 duadditional advances.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P 68 million as of December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

Income tax payable amounted to P19 million as ofdbeber 31, 2015 from P9 million as of
December 31, 2014, mainly due to higher provis@riricome taxes of certain subsidiaries.

Total current liabilities stood at P1,606 millioa af December 31, 2015 from P3,193 million as
of December 31, 2014 as explained above.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P18omihs of December 31, 2015 from P13
million as of December 31, 2014 from additional @&fs received.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P19 millas of December 31, 2015 and P20 as of
December 31, 2014. . This represents the unfuretedment obligation of certain subsidiaries..

Deferred tax liabilities - net amounted to P647lioml as of December 31, 2015 and P938
million as of December 31, 2014 , a decrease of 80&oto reversal of deferred tax liabilities as
certain properties were sold.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P686 ol as of December 31, 2015 from P972
million as of December 31, 2014 as explained above.

Total liabilities amounted to P2,292 million asécember 31, 2015 from P4,166 million as of
December 31, 2014.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen®de 2015 and December 31, 2014.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roitlias of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Mbee 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
Revaluation reserves amounted to P35 million gaimfaDecember 31, 2015 from P21 million
gain as of December 31, 2014 due to currency éiffegs in translating financial statements of

foreign operation.

Retained earnings amounted to P2,967 million d3emfember 31, 2015 from P2,590 million as
of December 31, 2014 as a result of net incomenduhie period.
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Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Raramounted to P9,559 million as of December
31, 2015 from P9,168 million as of December 3M,2mainly due to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P508 million as ofdember 31, 2015 and P322 million as of
December 31, 2014 primarily due to reported incoeperted by Golden Hill project in Nanning,
China.

Total equity amounted to P10,068 million as of Deber 31, 2015 from P9,491 million as of
December 31, 2014.

Results of Operations 2014

The Company reported higher revenues by 18% in 284dhing P4,997 million from P4,233
million in 2013 principally from improved revenue§the digital mobile devices segment from
sale of digital products.

Sale of goods amounted to P4,337 million in 20ighdr by 23% from P3,513 million for the
same period in 2013 mainly due higher volume déssaf the digital products.

Service revenue went up to P453 million in 2014hbr by 9% from P414 million in 2013
mainly due to higher warranty income and tollingdeof the technical support and solutions
segment.

Rental income amounted to P150 million in 2014 cared to P151 million in 2013. There was
no material change for this account.

Sale of real estate amounted to P28 million in 2@b4vn by 75% from P113 million in 2013.
This was principally due to lower condominium sales

Interest income amounted to P27 million in 201#&dpby 31% from P39 million in 2013 mainly
from lower vyield on placements as compared witbvimus year and lower principal amount
since the Company transferred certain placementerutnit Investments in Trust Funds
classified under Financial Assets at Fair Valueotigh Profit or Loss (FAFVTPL).

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted @8P4nillion in 2014, or an increase of 25%
from P3,421 million in 2013 as discussed below.

Cost of sales amounted to P3,854 million in 201ghdr by 29%, from P2,983 million last year
principally in relation to the increase in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P374 million in 20bfnf P332 million in 2013, up by 12% mainly
in relation to higher service revenue for the mabrio

Cost of rentals amounted to P35 million in 2014 aA34 million 2013. There was no material
change for this account.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P22 millio0fh4, down by 68% from P70 million for the
same period of 2013. The decrease was mainlyatioe to lower sale of real estate.
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Gross profit amounted to P710 million in 2014 fr&8®11 million in 2013. The 12% decrease
was principally due to lower margin of the digitabbile devices segment driven by stiff market
competition.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to R8Ki6n in 2014 against P686 million in
2013 as explained below.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P552ianiiin 2014, up by 22% from P451 million in
2013 mainly from higher commission and incentivethe digital mobile devices segment.

General and administrative expenses amounted t8 Rlion in 2014 from P288 million in
2013. The increase of 31% was mainly due to hitdears and licenses, personnel costs, property
certificate charges and donation expenses to TypNatanda hit areas.

Other operating income amounted to P86 million(14 from P53 million in 2013, up by 61%
mainly from higher fair value gains on investmerdgerty and reversal of warranty provision.

Operating loss for 2014 amounted to P135 milliamfrP125 million operating profit in 2013.
The decline was attributable to the losses of thitadl mobile devices and property and building
services segments.

Other income (charges) amounted to P75 million Ins8014 against P64 million gain in 2013
mainly from the following:

Finance income was lower at P33 million in 2014irgaP62 million for the same period of last
year principally due to lower interest income frbank placements as a result of lower interest
rates and lower foreign currency gains.

Finance costs increased to P112 million in 2014 mamed with P20 million in 2013 primarily
due to higher interest expense from interest-bgddans (in 2013, interest cost for the Golden
Hill project was capitalized as part of propertywelepment cost) and higher impairment losses
on trade and other receivables.

Other gains was P3 million in 2014 versus P22 amillin 2013 primarily due to lower gain on
derecognition of liabilities.

Loss before tax dropped to P211 million in 2014rdasing by 211% from P190 million income
for the same period in 2013 mainly due to operadtisg as explained above.

Tax expense (income) amounted to P22 million incom2014 from P44 million expense in
2013 due to deferred tax income from net operdtieg carryover and impairment losses of the
digital mobile devices segment.

Net loss amounted to P188 million in 2014 agairst® million income in 2013 due to the
reported losses of the digital mobile devices araperty and building services segments and
lower operating results of technical support arldt&ms segment.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the pa@mounted to P121 million in 2014 against
P157 million net income in 2013 as discussed above.
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Net loss attributable to minority interest amounted?67 million in 2014 compared with P12
million loss in 2013 primarily due to higher repmtlosses of the Golden Hill project in Nanning,
China.

Financial Position 2014

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 1,622m#k of December 31, 2014 down by 30%
from P2,327 million as of December 31, 2013. Casts wostly used for investing activities
mainly for increase of FAFVTPL and additions to medy and equipment, for operating
activities mainly for increase in trade and ottemeivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slamounted to P746 million in 2014 and P 294
million in 2013, or an increase of 153% from acdige of unit investments in trust funds.

Trade and other receivables reached P1,438 midlomf December 31, 2014 against P1,132
million as of December 31, 2013, or an increas2686 mainly due higher trade receivables of
the digital mobile devices segment. Trade custon@es generally established and stable
companies with reasonable assurance of colletyibilf their accounts. Nonetheless, trade
accounts are periodically reviewed to assess tlesilpe losses from non-collection and
allowance is provided for possible losses on adsowhich are considered doubtful of collection.

Advances to related parties amounted to P28 mid®of December 31, 2014 and P24 million as
of December 31, 2013, an increase of 17% due titiawlal advances.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoutatdtb94 million as of December 31, 2014,
compared with P844 million as of December 31, 2@l 8lecrease of 29% mainly from lower
merchandise and finished goods for digital prodottse digital mobile devices segment.

Real estate inventories amounted to P2,371 milliesnof December 31, 2014 from P2,423
million as of December 31, 2013. There was no r@tehnange for this account.

Other current assets amounted to P 574 millionfd3esember 31, 2014 compared with P425
million as of December 31, 2013, an increase of¥@B3due to higher prepayments and creditable
withholding taxes.

Total current assets reached P 7,377 million d&3eafember 31, 2014 from P7,472 million as of
December 31, 2013 mainly from higher FAFVTPL aradle and other receivables as discussed
above.

Non-current trade and other receivables amountde5&2 million as of December 31, 2014
from P722 million as of December 31, 2013, lowerlB%6 due to the reclassification of currently
maturing receivables to current assets.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P9 million as of December 31, 20134
against P7 million as of December 31, 2013. Thecime was due to higher club shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,73fliomas of December 31, 2014 from
P1,560 million as of December 31, 2013, an increas&1% mainly due to transfer from
investment property and additions for the Green Sun
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Investment property was higher at P3,653 millioroB®ecember 31, 2014 from P3,648 as of
December 31, 2013 principally due fair value gainsnvestment property.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P123 miigoaf December 31, 2014, an increase of 49%
from P82 million December 31, 2013 due to highér ¥alue of plan assets sans the effect of
asset ceiling in 2013, nil in 2014.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P127 miiisoof December 31, 2014 and and P77 million
as of December 31, 2013. There was a 63% increasggally due to future tax benefits on net
operating loss carryover, allowance for impairmesses and MCIT of the distribution segment.

Other non-current assets amounted to P44 millioofd3ecember 31, 2014 or an increase of
34% from P32 million as of December 31, 2013 pritpaue to higher deferred input VAT.

Total non-current assets amounted to P6,279 millisnof December 31, 2013 from P6,131
million as of December 31, 2013 as discussed above.

Total assets reached P13,657 million as of Decembgt, 2014 from P13,604 million as of
December 31, 2013 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P844 milliomfadecember 31, 2014 from P684 million as
of December 31, 2013, up by 23% due to additiaveah$ for the Golden Hill project.

Trade and other payables amounted to P732 millomfaDecember 31, 2014 against P731
million as of December 31, 2013. There was no r@tehnange for this account.

Customers’ deposits amounted to P1,502 millionfd3ezember 31, 2014 versus P1,306 million
as of December 31, 2013. The increase of 15% veaslyndue to additional deposits received
from the Golden Hill project.

Advances from related parties amounted to P36aniléis of December 31, 2014, a decrease of
54% from P81 million as of December 31, 2013 duepmyment of advances made for the year.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P 68 million as of December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Income tax payable amounted to P9 million as ofdbgmer 31, 2014 from P4 million as of
December 31, 2013 mainly due to provision for inedax for certain subsidiaries.

Total current liabilities stood at P3,193 millios af December 31, 2014, higher by 11% from
P2,875 million as of December 31, 2013 as explaaiExe mainly due to higher interest-bearing
loans, customers’ deposits and income tax payable.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P18Bomihs of December 31, 2014 from P15
million as of December 31, 2013 due to the redigssion of certain deposits to current
liabilities.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P20 millas of December 31, 2014 and P26 million
as of December 31, 2013 principally due to remesmsants made during the year.
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Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P938 &¥ecember 31, 2014 and P935 million in
December 31, 2013. There was no material variamrcthnis account.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P972 ol as of December 31, 2014 from P976
million as of December 31, 2013.

Total liabilities amounted to P4,166 million as@cember 31, 2014 from P3,852 million as of
December 31, 2013.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen#i, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 ioiflas of December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Mbee 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P21 million incamef December 31, 2014 from P16 million
loss as of December 31, 2013 due to other compsaleimcome for the period consisting of
actuarial gains offset by currency differences mmglating financial statements of foreign
operations

Retained earnings amounted to P2,590 million aPetember 31, 2014 from P2,820 million as
of December 31, 2013 as a result of net loss duhiegeriod.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Raramounted to P9,168 million as of December
31, 2014 from P9,368 million as of December 31,20de to lower retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P322 million as ofdember 31, 2014 and P390 million as of
December 31, 2013 primarily due to higher repolbedes of the Golden Hill project in Nanning,
China.

Total equity amounted to P9,491 million as of Deber 31, 2014 from P9,751 million as of
December 31, 2013.

Results of Operations 2013

Revenues declined by 13% in 2013 reaching P4n28®n from P4,890 million in 2012
principally from lower revenues of the distributimegment from digital product sales and
broadband lower revenue due to sale of its assétsy 2012.

Sale of goods amounted to P3,513 million in 200%er byl11% from P3,959 million for the
same period in 2012 mainly due lower volume ofesalf the digital products.

Service revenue went down to P414 million in 20d&greasing by 34% from P630 million in
2012 mainly due to sale of assets of Solid Broadb@orp. in May 2012 and its eventual
termination of operations. Moreover, in-warrantyd aout-of-warranty service revenues also
suffered a decline.

Rental income amounted to P151 million in 2013byd 1% from P136 million in 2012 mainly
due to higher occupancy in 2013.
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Sale of real estate amounted to P113 million in32@p by 15% from P98 million in 2012. This
was principally due to higher condominium sales.

Interest income amounted to P39 million in 2018dpby 39% from P64 million in 2012 mainly
from lower yield on placements as compared widvipus year.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted #&2P3nillion in 2013, or a decrease of 7% from
P3,661 million in 2012 as discussed below.

Cost of sales amounted to P2,983 million in 2008ek by 4%, from P3,092 million last year
principally in relation to the decrease in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P332 million in 20d8nf P488 million in 2012, down by 32%
mainly in relation to lower service revenue for geziod.

Cost of rentals amounted to P34 million in 2018 aA35 million 2012. There was no material
change for this account.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P70 millio20t3, up by 53% from P45 million for the
same period of 2012. The increase was mainlylatioa to higher sale of real estate.

Gross profit amounted to P811 million in 2013 fréh,228 million in 2012. The 34% decrease
was principally due to lower revenues and marginghe distribution segments driven by stiff
market competition.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to RB6N in 2013 against P107 million in
2012 as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted t8 R2ilion in 2013 from P352 million in
2012. Expenses went down after the broadband assetssold in May 2012.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P451ioniiin 2013, up by 25% from P361 million in
2012 mainly from higher advertising costs for tligribution segment.

Gain on sale of assets amounted to P267 millic20it2 vs. none in 2013. This represented the
one-time gains from the disposal of the broadbaseéta in 2012.

Other operating income amounted to P53 million2d13, down by 90% from P 553 million in
2012 principally due lower fair value gains (P23liom in 2013 vs P149 million in 2012). In
addition, the company reported a reversal in inmpait losses on the broadband asset of P350
million in 2012 (none in 2013).

Operating profit amounted to P125 million in 2018nf P1,336 million in 2012, declining by
91% from lower gross profit and other operatingome as discussed above.

Other income (charges) amounted to P64 million A3 against P175 million gain in 2012
mainly from the following:

Finance income was lower at P65 million in 201&pared with P163 million for the same
period of last year principally due to lower intgrincome from bank placements as a result of
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lower interest rates. Moreover, reversal of impaint in trade receivables was higher in 2012
due to the sale of the broadband assets in 2012.

Finance costs decreased to P20 million in 2013 eoedpwith P49 million in 2012 primarily due
to lower foreign currency losses and lower inteeagtense from interest-bearing loans.

Other gains was P22 million in 2013 versus P60ionilin 2012 primarily because there were
reversal of allowance for inventory obsolescenc&@2 (none in 2013) and lower gain on
derecognition of liabilities.

Income before tax reached P190 million in 2012rekesing by 87% from P1,511 million for
the same period in 2012 mainly due to lower ojragairofit as explained above.

Tax expense amounted to P44 million in 2013 frord4Pillion in 2012 due to lower pre-tax
income.

Net income amounted to P145 million in 2013 agairk237 million (P581 million excluding
one-time gain from broadband asset sale in 2012)20il2 due to the reported losses of the
distribution segment and lower operating resultthefreal estate and other segments.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P157 million in 2013 against
P1,239 million in 2012 as discussed above.

Net income attributable to minority interest amaahto P12 million loss in 2013 compared with
P2 million loss in 2012 primarily due to higher ogied losses of the Golden Hill project in
Nanning, China.

Financial Position 2013

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 2,32°0m#dk of December 31, 2013 down by 23%
from P3,019 million as of December 31, 2012. Casis mostly used for investing activities
mainly for acquisition of FAFVTPL and additions pooperty and equipment and for operating
activities mainly for increase in inventories.

Financial assets at fair value through profit agsl@mounted to P294 million in 2013, none in
2012, from acquisition of unit investments in triistds.

Trade and other receivables reached P1,132 mid®mf December 31, 2013 against P1,220
million as of December 31, 2012, or a decreas€®principally due to lower receivable of the
distribution segment. Trade customers are gemyeestablished and stable companies with
reasonable assurance of collectibility of their cardts. Nonetheless, trade accounts are
periodically reviewed to assess the possible losas non-collection and allowance is provided
for possible losses on accounts which are considimabtful of collection.

Advances to related parties amounted to P24 mid®of December 31, 2013 and P21 million as
of December 31, 2012, an increase of 14% due titiaa advances.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amouioté®844 million as of December 31, 2013,
compared with P391 million as of December 31, 2@tRjncrease of 115/% due to buildup of
inventories of the mylphone business.
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Real estate inventories amounted to P2,423 milliesnof December 31, 2013 from P2,011
million as of December 31, 2012, an increase of 203 to additions to the Golden Hill project.

Other current assets amounted to P 425 millionfd3esember 31, 2013 compared with P319
million as of December 31, 2012, an increase of@@ue to higher creditable withholding taxes
and input VAT.

Total current assets reached P 7,472 million d&3eafember 31, 2013 from P6,984 million as of
December 31, 2012 mainly from higher merchanitigentories and real estate inventories as
discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivables amounte@72? million as of December 31, 2013
from P630 million as of December 31, 2012, highgr15% due to increase in financing
receivables and cash surrender value of life imsigra

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P7 million as of December 31, 2013
against P9 million as of December 31, 2012. Theadse was due to lower club shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,56illiomas of December 31, 2013 from
P1,048 million as of December 31, 2012, an incred9% due to the transfer of Solid House
property from investment property to this accounte the company will use this property for the
future Green Sun Hotel operation.

Investment property amounted to P3,648 million a@ecember 31, 2013 from P4,017 as of
December 31, 2012, a decrease of 9% mainly dueettransfer of Solid House to property and
equipment.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P82 milliafdecember 31, 2013, an increase of 15%
from P71 million December 31, 2012 due to lowerspra value of obligation.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P77 milloafdDecember 31, 2013 and and P64 million
December 31, 2012 respectively. There was a 208¢ase principally due to MCIT of MySolid.

Other non-current assets amounted to P32 millionfd3ecember 31, 2013 or an increase of
48% from P22 million as of December 31, 2012 prilmalue to higher deferred input VAT.

Total non-current assets amounted to P6,131 millisnof December 31, 2013 from P5,863
million as of December 31, 2012 as discussed above.

Total assets reached P13,604 million as of Decemiit, 2013 from P12,848 million as of
December 31, 2012 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P684 milliomfadecember 31, 2013 from P571 million as
of December 31, 2012, up by 20% due to additioveah$ for the Golden Hill project.

Trade and other payables amounted to P731 millommfaDecember 31, 2013 against P628
million as of December 31, 2012, higher by 16% jaritg due to higher trade and other payables
of Golden Hill Project and myphone business.
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Customers’ deposits amounted to P1,306 millionfddegember 31, 2013 versus P881 million as
of December 31, 2012. The increase of 48% waslyndire to additional deposits received from
the Golden Hill project.

Advances from related parties amounted to P81anillis of December 31, 2013, an increase of
599% from P11 million as of December 31, 2012 duadditional advances.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P 68 million as of December
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Income tax payable amounted to P4 million as ofdbmwer 31, 2013 from P65 million as of
December 31, 2012 mainly due to lower income taease.

Total current liabilities stood at P2,875 millios af December 31, 2013, higher by 29% from
P2,227 million as of December 31, 2012 as expthiakove mainly due to higher interest-
bearing loans, trade and other payables and custbdeposits.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P1bomihs of December 31, 2013 from P16
million as of December 31, 2012 from transfer ofitooirrent deposits to current liabilities.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P26 millas of December 31, 2013 and P16 million
as of December 31, 2012. This represents the uaturetirement obligation of certain
subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P935 &ecember 31, 2013 and P919 million in
December 31, 2012. There was no material variamcehis account.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P976 ioil as of December 31, 2013 from P951
million as of December 31, 2012.

Total liabilities amounted to P3,852 million ascember 31, 2013 from P3,179 million as of
December 31, 2012.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decengi, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 ioiflas of December 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Mbee 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.
Revaluation reserves amounted to P16 million IassfaDecember 31, 2013 from P63 million
loss as of December 31, 2012 due to other compseleimcome for the period consisting of

currency differences on translating financial steats of foreign operations.

Retained earnings amounted to P2,820 million aPetember 31, 2013 from P2,772 million as
of December 31, 2012 as a result of net incomenduhe period.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Raramounted to P9,361 million as of December
31, 2013 from P9,265 million as of December 31,20de to higher retained earnings.



32

Minority interest amounted to P390 million as ofdember 31, 2013 and P402 million as of
December 31, 2012 primarily due to higher repolbsdes of the Golden Hill project in Nanning,
China.

Total equity amounted to P9,751 million as of Deber 31, 2013 from P9,668 million as of
December 31, 2012.

Past and future financial condition and results of operations, with particular emphasis on the
prospects for the future.

The Philippine economy posted solid growth in 2@Eherated by strong domestic demand
which is projected to pick up with higher investand consumption. GDP growth rate was
maintained at an average of 5.9% over the lasetlgears amid a lingering global economic
slowdown with the services sector growing by 7./ceet in 2015.

2015 was a good year for the Company. Revenueslyye@9% in 2015 reaching P6,460 million
from P4,997 million in 2014 and P4,233 million i013. The growth was coming from the
property and building services, technical suppod solutions and investment and other business
segments. The Company's Golden Hill project inr@hiealized the real estate sales in 2015
which included the customers’ deposit in prior geafter the property ownership certificate was
issued to buyers in 2015.

The Company reported a consolidated net incomesa Pnillion in 2015 from the reported net
loss of P188 million in 2014 and net income of Pidibion, translating to earnings per share of
0.27 in 2015, loss per share of 0.07 in 2014 andirggs per share of 0.09 in 2013. Aside from
the strong real estate sales in China, the Compahy its Balintawak property in 2015,

contributing a gain on sale of P138 million and itecome of P102 million (or one-time gains of
P240 million.)

The Company has been very aggressive in launchimgtghones with new technology and
innovations as it continues to cater quality mopi@nes with modern specifications at multiple
affordable price points. This has been finding fasmong budget conscious yet aspirational
customers belonging to the low and middle inconwose of the society, contributing to higher
sales volume of 10% in 2015. Despite this, howevery|phone business under the digital
devices business segment reported sales declid@%fwith revenue of P3.6 billion in 2015

(from P4 billion in 2014) and P3.46 billion in 2013’ he Company improved its operations in
2015 by streamlining its operating expenses, auttiown its net loss by 58% to P69 million

(from P156 million loss in 2014 and P8 million loss 2013). Gross margins also slightly
improved despite foreign currency volatility in Z0tb 11% (from 10% in 2014).

The Company maintained its liquidity with its totasets of P12.3 billion in 2015 with a decrease
of 9.49% from P13.6 billion in both 2014 and 2018has maintained a low debt to equity ratio
of 0.22:1 in 2015, 0.44:1 in 2014 and 0.39:1 12 and even a lower gearing percentage
(computed as financial debt divided by total eguitf 3% in 2015, 9% in 2014 and 7% in 2013
resulting from low financial borrowings thereby vethg its credit risk (the risk of default in
payment of loans) to minimal level. The Companyntaéned its liquidity such that its current
ratio had always exceeded the conservative rutbwhb of 2:1 by achieving a current ratio of
4.33.1in 2015, 2.31:1in 2014 and 2.60:1 in 2013.
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The Company will maintain its strong financial caiwh in the future. Although its low debt load
provides the company with substantial debt capatityborrow funds to finance future
projects/investments, management has set a linfinancial borrowings to a maximum gearing
of 50% of equity.

The competition in the mobile phone industry hasraified but the Company still expects to
maintain its strong presence in the market. Thessa expected to remain upbeat, with initial
uptake of the company’s new flagship handsetsiviseries, which has been encouraging, with
reported increase in units sold during the intrediyc sales beating the initial sales of its
predecessors. Many smart ways are embraced tp thrénoverall strategic challenge down to a
more manageable proportion to stay on par with etitign.

Moreover, property and building services segmelfitoontinue to be a value driver in the future
and, with constant revenue streams. Revenue strigamsts leasing operations are expected to
contribute P150 million in 2016.

In 2015, Fil- Dragon recognize revenue of P1.7#&b (RMB242 million) vs. none in 2014.
The Company realized a net income of P337 milliRMB46.6 million), with Parent Company
share of P172 million from P142 million (RMB 19.7llion) loss in 2014. Revenue, related cost
and income tax were recognized as the property kshipe certificates from China government
were issued to the buyers.

The Company started the operation of Green SurovehMber 2014, a business hotel and event
center consisting of 144 rooms which generated Rifilbn and P12 million revenues in 2015
and 2014, respectively. Together with Casa Bocditel toperating in Manila, combined hotel
business is projected to generate revenues of RilIB6n in 2016 and expected to continue to
improve with the rise of corporate clients andurfbf both local and foreign tourists.

The Company remains optimistic that the MyHousdrass will surpass its 2015 performance
with the steady rise of its revenues on a yearear with the number of projects already lined-
up. In 2015, MyHouse generated P124 million ineres, an 88% increase from its 2014
revenue of P66 million which included APEC Median&e project and a dormitory type housing
project in Quezon City. It expects to improve fadfly in the coming year with more efficient

operation.

Despite present downturn of real estate businesadst of China except Beijing, Hangzhou,
Shanghai and Shenzhen, Phil-Nanning which own 5fLlBtl-®@ragon, the China Nanning Project
realized revenue and income from previous yearstatners’ deposits after the release of the
long awaited ownership certificate. However, doéncreasing difficulty to sell the remaining
inventory and rising costs of operation, the Conypianreassessing its position in this China real
estate project.

The business of Omni Solid Services under the TieahrSupport and Solutions business
segment posted a 22% improvement in revenues td Riliion in 2015 from P224 million in
2014. It will continue to embark on its deliveryhigles re-fleeting program to replace its aging
fleet to comply with LTOs directive to phase outyEar-old vehicles to curb pollution and pave
way for their modernization program. In 2016yill obtain additional test laboratory equipment
and facilities with estimated capital expenditufePd0 million to improve Bicutan laboratory
facility to address the increasing demand of entep and manufacturers for product testing
services in their bid to meet the government’s magony requirements for product quality and
safety.
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i Known Trends or Demands, Commitments, EventdJocertainties that will impact
Liquidity.

The Company is not aware of any known trends, ddsjarommitments, events or uncertainties
that will materially impact on its liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger Direct or Contingent Firdad Obligation that is material to the
Company, including any default or accelerationrobhligation.

As discussed in Notes of the financial statementieuContingencies, certain subsidiaries of the
Company are involved in litigation or proceedint® outcome of which could individually or
taken as a whole, not adversely affect the finanwaults, operations or prospects of the
Company. Except of these contingencies, the Commmpt aware of other events that will
materially trigger direct or contingent financiddligation.

iii. Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, ArrangdsjerObligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationshipsttef Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the rygpperiod.

The Company has no material off-balance sheetdctiosis, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships with unconsolidated entities or otpersons created during the period that is not
included in the financial statements.

iv. Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures, glemeral purpose of the Commitment
and Expected Sources of Funds

The Company estimates capital expenditures foryse 2016 to amount to P350 million for
various real estate development and upgrade dftiesi The purchase and/or construction of
these capital expenditures will be financed pritgahrough the funds of the Company.

V. Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties that \ilpact Sales/Revenues/Income from
Continuing Operations

On May 2015, Solid Manila Corporation sold its pedy located in Balintawak, Quezon City. As
a result, the Company expects its rental reveraudsdline by about 15%.

Vi. Significant elements of Income or Loss thiatmbt arise from Continuing Operations
None.
Vii. Causes for any Material Changes from PerioBe¢dod

On May 8, 2015, Solid Manila Corporation sold itegerty located at Balintawak, Quezon City,
with a total area of 31,423.5 sgm . at an agregdhase price of P1.23 billion. The above sale
contributed to a gains of P138 million and tax meoof P102 million or a total of P240 million
(none in 2014 and 2013).
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Balance Shest Items (2015 vs 2014)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstaéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 58% increase to P2y§llion from P1,623 million

Cash was mostly provided from investing activitieainly from the sale of investment property
and redemption of FAFVTPL and from operating atit& mainly from sale of real estate
inventories offset by decrease in customers’ défoshis account stood at 20% and 11% as a

percentage of total assets for 2015 and 2014.

Financial assets at fair value through profit osk— P123 million as of December 31, 2015 from
P746 million as of December 31, 2014.

Mainly from redemption of unit investment in trdahds. This account stood at 1% and 5% as a
percentage of total assets for years 2015 and 2014.

Trade and other receivables — 11 % decrease tomInillion from P1,438 million

No material change. This account stood at 10%@ey@ntage of total assets in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Advances to related parties — 94% decrease to Rillidn from P28 million

Principally from collection of advances. This aaabstood at 0.01% and 0.21% as a percentage
of total assets in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 45 % in@d¢as?866 million from P594 million

Mainly from higher merchandise and finished gooals digital products of the digital mobile
devices segment. This account represented 7%%ras4 percentage of total assets in 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Real estate inventories — 30% decrease to P1,64idmfirom P2,371 million

Mainly from sale of real estate inventories. This@unt stood at 13% and 17% as a percentage
of total assets in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Other current assets — 18% decrease to P471 mifiiom P574 million

Mainly due to lower prepayments and creditable katting taxes. This account stood at 4% as a
percentage of total assets for years 2015 and 2014.

Non-current trade and other receivables — amounte®601 million as of December 31, 2015,
increased by 3% from P582 million as of December2814

Mainly due higher cash surrender value of investriretife insurance. This account stood at 4%
as a percentage of the total assets in both years.



36

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 6% increase in 2015 to P13 million from P9
million in 2014

The increase was due to higher club shares. Thisuat stood at 0.11% and 0.07% as a
percentage of total assets for 2015 and 2014.

Property, plant and equipment — 4% increase to P4 @illion from P1,739 million

No material change. This represented 14 %% andd<8&bpercentage of total assets in 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Investment property —27% decrease to P2,653 miftiem P3,653 million

Mainly due to sale of Balintawak property. This @aat stood at 21% and 26% as a percentage of
total assets in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Retirement benefit assets - 4% decrease to P1lidmfilom P123 million

No material change. This represented 0.95% and%®.80 total assets in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Deferred tax assets —net - 30% increase to P166milrom P127 million

Principally due to future tax benefits on net ofiagaloss carryover and MCIT of the digital
mobile devices segment. This account stood at 184840.93% of total assets in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Other non-current assets — 33% decrease to P2%omilfom P44 million

Mainly due to lower deferred input VAT. This repeased 0.24% and 0.32% as percentage to
total assets in 2015 and 2014 respectively.

Interest-bearing loans — 69% decrease to P257 onilfrom P844 million

Mainly due to payment of loans. This account stabd®% and 6% as a percentage of total
liabilities and equity in 2015 and 2014, respedyive

Trade and other payable — 13% decrease to P63Tomifflom P732 million

Principally due to lower accrued expenses and fpagables and advances from customers. This
account stood at 5% as a percentage of totalitiabiend equity in 2015 and 2014.

Customers’ Deposit — 63% decrease to P550 milliomfP1,502 million

Principally due to recognition of revenue by Filagon. This account represented 4% in 2015
and 11% in 2014 as a percentage of total liakslitied equity in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Advances from related parties — 98 % increase t® illion from P36 million

The increase was due to additional advances mailegdhe year. This account stood at 0.59%
in 2015 and 0.27% in 2014 as a percentage ofltakdlities and equity.
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Estimated liability for land and land developmeasis — no change

There was no movement during the period. This atcoepresented 0.55 and .50% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2@t 2014, respectively.

Income tax payable —111% increase to P19 milliomfaBecember 31, 2015 from P9 million as
of December 31, 2014.

Mainly due to provision for income tax of certainbsidiaries. This account was pegged at
0.16% and 0.07% of the total liabilities and eqinty015 and 2014, respectively.

Non-current refundable deposits — 42% increasel® million from P13 million

Principally due to additional deposits during tleary This represented 0.15% and 0.10% of the
total liabilities and equity in 2015 and 2014, msjvely.

Retirement benefit obligation — 4% decrease to Rilkon from P20 million

No material change for this account. This accotoudat 0.16% and 0.15% of the total liabilities
and equity in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities —30% decrease to P647 imillfrom P938 million

Mainly due to reversal of deferred tax liabiliti@s certain properties are sold. This account stood
at 5 % and 6% as a percentage of total liabildies equity for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Capital stock — no change

This account stood at 16% and 14% of total liabgitand equity for 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 37 % and 33% of totallitieb and equity for 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change

This account represented 0.94% and 0.85% of t@thllities and equity for 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Revaluation reserves —amounted to P35 million fR#fh million
Principally due to other comprehensive income Fa& period consisting of currency exchange
differences on translating financial statementfoodign operations. It stood at 0.28% and 0.15%

total liabilities and equity in 2015 and 2014, msjvely.

Retained earnings — 14% increase to P2,967 mifiiom P2,590 million
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Increase was a result of net income during theodeflihis account stood at 24% and 18% of total
liabilities and equity in 2015 and 2014, respedyive

I ncome Statement Items (2015 vs. 2014)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstaéements)
Sale of goods — 9% decrease to P3,952 million #dn337 million

Principally from lower volume of sales of the daiproduct. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account represents 61% and 86% in 2015 andl, 284pectively.

Sale of real estate — 6,213% increase to P1,78Bomilrom P28 million

Principally due to recognition of sale of Golderl I#roject in China. The Company realized the

real estate sales in 2015 which included Custorigpgosits in prior years when the property

ownership certificate were issued to the buyer@dh5. As a percentage of total revenues, this
account stood at 27% in 2015 and 0.57% in 2014.

Service revenue —17% increase to P532 million fR#&3 million

Mainly due to higher warranty income and tollinggeseof the technical support and solutions

segment and higher hotel and events revenue ofnGee@ Hotel. As a percentage of total

revenues, this account represents 8% and 9% i &8d 2014, respectively.

Rental income — P146 million from P150 million

No material change. As a percentage of total resgnthis account represents 2% and 3% for
years 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Interest income — 54% increase to P41 million fi@&Y million

Mainly from higher yield on placements. As a petaege of total revenues, this account
represents 0.65% in 2015 and 0.54% in 2014.

Cost of sales - 7% decrease in P3,577 milliomfi3,854 million

Mainly in relation to decrease in sales. As a @atage of total sales, this account represented
55% and 77% in 2015 and 2014 respectively.

Cost of real estate sold — 4,071% increase to Ralton from P22 million

The increase was mainly in relation to significamtrease in the sale of real estate. As a
percentage of total revenues, this account repieddfso in 2015 and 0.44% in 2014.

Cost of services - 4,071% increase to P460 milliom P374 million

Principally in relation to higher service revenilibis account stood at 7% in 2015 and 2014 as a
percentage of total revenues.

Cost of rentals — 59% increase to P57 million fié85 million
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The increase was mainly due to higher taxes arddies. This account represents 0.89% in 2015
and 0.72% in 2014 as a percentage of total revenues

Gross profit — 102% increase to P1,440 million frBil0 million

The increase was principally due to higher marginghe property and building segment. As a
percentage of total revenues, this account sto88%tin 2015 and 14% in 2014.

Selling and distribution costs —P559 million frorf32 million

No material change. This account represents 8%italf tevenues for 2015 and 11% in 2014.
General and administrative expenses — 11% decr@aB836 million from P379 million

Decrease was mainly due to recognition of penaftiesate delivery of property documents for
the China project in 2014 (none in 2015). As aeetage of total revenues, this account stood at
6% in 2015 and 7% in 2014.

Other operating income —net - 205% increase to R28Bon from P86 million

Principally from higher fair value gains and gaimsale of investment property. As a percentage
to total revenues, this account represents 4% 15 20d 1% in 2014.

Finance income — 169% increase to P89 million ff@83 million

It went up due to higher interest income from bpldcements as a result of higher interest rates
and higher principal, higher foreign currency exu® gains and gain on settlement of
receivables. This account represents 1% and 0.66%tal revenues for 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Finance costs —31% decrease to P77 million fromZPhillion

Primarily due to lower impairment losses on tradd ather receivables and foreign currency
losses. This account represents 1% of total rexseim@015 from 2% in 2014.

Share in net loss of an associate —P3 million ih®ffom nil in 2014

Due to net loss of Creative Hothouse Manila forghgod. This account stood at 0.05% in 2015,
nil in 2014 as a percentage of total revenues.

Other gains - net —404% increase to P16 milliomfrB3 million

Primarily due to gain on sale of property and egupt and higher net interest income on
retirement benefit asset. This account stood a5%.2n 2015 from 0.06% in 2014 as a
percentage of total revenues.

Tax expense — 802% increase to P159 million fro@ milion tax

Mainly due to higher provision for current tax erpe income from Balintawak property sale and
tax expense for real estate sale in China.
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Balance Sheet Items (2014 vs 2013)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstaéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 30% decrease to Ph@dRan from P2,327 million

Mostly used for investing activities mainly for lease of FAFVTPL and additions to property
and equipment; for operating activities mainly fiocrease in trade and other receivables. This

account stood at 11% and 17% as a percentageabfssets for 2014 and 2013.

Financial assets at fair value through profit oisto—P746 million as of December 31, 2014 and
amounted to P294 million as of December 31, 2013.

Mainly from acquisition of unit investment in trusinds. This account stood at 5% and 2% as a
percentage of total assets for years 2014 and 2013.

Trade and other receivables — 26 % decrease toF1ldillion from P1,132 million

Mainly due to higher trade receivables of the digihobile devices segment. This account stood
at 10% and 8% as a percentage of total asse@lihahd 2013, respectively.

Advances to related parties — 29% increase to PB&mfrom P24 million

Principally from additional advances. This accostobd at 0.21% and 0.18% as a percentage of
total assets in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 29 % deeré@a®594 million from P844 million

Mainly from lower merchandise and finished goods dimital products of thaligital mobile
devices segmentThis account represented 4% and 6% as a pegeenfaotal assets in 2014
and 2013, respectively.

Real estate inventories — 2% decrease to P2,31ibmitom P2,423 million
There was no material change for this account. abieunt stood at 17% as a percentage of total
assets in both years.

Other current assets — 34% increase to P574 mifiiom P425 million

Mainly due to higher prepayments and creditabldnhatding taxes. This account stood at 4%
and 3% as a percentage of total assets for yeddsdttd 2013.

Non-current trade and other receivables — amounteB582 million as of December 31, 2014,
decreased by 19% from P722 million as of DecemheP313.

Mainly due to the reclassification of currently mn@g receivables to current assets. This account
stood at 4% and 5% of total assets for 2014 an8,2@%pectively.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 893 increase in 2014 to P9 million from P7
million in 2013
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The decrease was due to higher club shares. Thisuat stood at 0.07% and 0.05% as a
percentage of total assets for 2014 and 2013.

Property, plant and equipment — 11% increase t&B84 million from P1,560 million

Primarily due to transfer from investment propeanyd additions for the Green Sun. This
represented 12 %% and 11% as a percentage oassizls in 2014 and 2013.

Investment property — P3,653 million from P3,648iom

Mainly due to fair value gains on investment préyp€erhis account stood at 26% as a percentage
of total assets in in both years.

Retirement benefit assets - 49% increase to P1Ri®mirom P82 million

Increase was mainly due to higher fair value ohasets sans the effect of asset ceiling in 2013,
nil in 2014.. This represented 0.90% and 0.60% @l assets in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Deferred tax assets —net - 63% increase to P1Hibmfrom P77 million

Principally due to future tax benefits on net ogiatploss carryover, allowance for impairment
losses and MCIT of theligital mobile devices segmerithis account stood at 0.93% and
0.57% of total assets in 2014 and 2013 respectively

Other non-current assets — 34% increase in 20144 million from P32 million

Mainly due to higher deferred input VAT. This repeated 0.31% and 0.24% as percentage to
total assets in 2014 and 2013 respectively.

Interest-bearing loans — 23% increase in 2014 td4Rillion from P684 million

Mainly due to additional loans for the Golden Hlitbject. This account stood at 6% and 5% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2@ 2013.

Trade and other payable — amounted to 732 millfomfP731 million

No material change for this account. This accotoudsat 5% as a percentage of total liabilities
and equity in 2014 and 2013.

Customers’ Deposit — 15% increase to P1,502 milfrom P1,306 million

Principally due to additional deposits receivednfréhe Golden Hill Project. This account
represented 11% in 2014 and 9% in 2013 as a peagewmf total liabilities and equity in 2014
and 2013.

Advances from related parties — 56 % decrease @®rRillion from P81 million

The decrease was due to repayment of advancesforattie year. This account stood at 0.27%
in 2014 and 0.60% in 203 as a percentage of fatzlities and equity.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasis — no change
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There was no movement during the period. This atcoepresented 0.50% as a percentage of
total liabilities and equity in both years.

Income tax payable —100% increase to P9 milliomfadDecember 31, 2014 from P4 million as
of December 31, 2013.

Mainly due to provision for income tax for certanbsidiaries. This account was pegged at
0.07% and 0.03% of the total liabilities and eqinty014 and 2013, respectively.

Non-current refundable deposits — amounted to Pill®mfrom P15 million

Principally due to the reclassification of certdieposits to current liabilities. This represented
0.10% and 0.11% of the total liabilities and eqity014 and 2013, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 21% decrease to fRlon from P26 million

Principally due to remeasurements made during ¢lae. Y his account stood at 0.15% and 0.19%
of the total liabilities and equity in 2014 and 30fespectively.

Deferred tax liabilities —Increase to P938 millimom P935 million

No material change. This account stood at 6 % pereentage of total liabilities and equity for
2014 and 2013.

Capital stock — no change
This account stood at 14% of total liabilities andigy for 2014 and 2013.
Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 33 % and 34% of totallitieb and equity for 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change

This account represented 0.85% of total liabilided equity for 2014 and 2013.

Revaluation reserves —amounted to P21 million f(B&6 million)

Principally due to other comprehensive income ffigr period consisting of actuarial gains offset
by currency differences on translating financiatements of foreign operations. It stood at
.015%% and 0.12% total liabilities and equity il2@&nd 2013, respectively.

Retained earnings — 8% decrease to P2,590 miltimm 2,820 million

Decrease was a result of net loss during the gefibis account stood at 18% and 20% of total
liabilities and equity in 2014 and 2013, respedyive

I ncome Statement Items (2014 vs. 2013)
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(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhatagéements)
Sale of goods — 23% increase to P4,337 million fR81513 million

Principally from higher volume of sales of the thfjiproduct. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account represents 87% and 83% in 2014 ang, 284pectively.

Service revenue —9% increase to P453 million freth4Pmillion

Mainly due to higher warranty income and tollingegeof the technical support and solutions
segment. As a percentage of total revenues, thisuat represents 9% for both years, 2014 and
2013.

Rental income — P150 million from P151 million

No material change. As a percentage of total rexgnihis account represents 3% for years 2014
and 2013.

Sale of real estate — 75% decrease to P28 milliomfP113 million

Principally due to lower condominium sales. Aseacentage of total revenues, this account
stood at 0.57% in 2014 and 2% in 2013.

Interest income — 31% decrease to P27 million fR88 million

Mainly from lower yield on placements as compardthvprevious year and lower principal
amount since the Company transferred certain plangwnder Unit Investments in Trust Funds
classified under Financial Assets at Fair Valueotigh Profit or Loss (FAFVTPL). As a
percentage of total revenues, this account repie8ei% in 2014 and 0.93% in 2013.

Cost of sales - 29% increase in P3,854 millianfiP2,983 million

Mainly in relation to increase in sales . As acpetage of total sales, this account represented
77% and 70% in 2014 and 2013 respectively.

Cost of services - 12% increase to P374 milliamfriP332 million

Principally in relation to higher service revenilibis account stood at 7% in 2014 and 2013 as a
percentage of total revenues.

Cost of rentals — P35 million from P34 million

No material change for this account. This accouepresents 1% as a percentage of total
revenues for both years.

Cost of real estate sold — 68% decrease to P22omiffom P70 million

The decrease was mainly in relation to lower shlea estate. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account represents 0.44% in 2014 and 1%18.20

Gross profit — 12% decrease to P710 million froniP&illion
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The decrease was principally due to lower marginth@ digital mobile devices segment driven
by stiff market competition. As a percentage odltoeévenues, this account stood at 14% in 2014
and 19% in 2013.

General and administrative expenses — 31% increa&379 million from P288 million

Mainly due to higher taxes and licenses, persomosts, property certificate charges and
donation expenses to Typhoon Yolanda hit areasa pearcentage of total revenues, this account
stood at 7% in 2014 and 6% in 2013.

Selling and distribution costs — 22% increase t&PHillion from P451 million

Mainly from higher commission and incentives of tHestribution segment. This account
represents 11% of total revenues for 2014 and 102613.

Other operating income —net -61% increase to P8bamifrom P53 million

Principally from higher fair value gains on investm property and reversal of warranty
provision. As a percentage to total revenues,abi®unt represents 1% in 2014 and 2013.

Other operating profit (loss) — 208% decrease t@®fnillion loss from P125 million gain

Principally due to higher operating expenses ferbriod. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account stood at 3% in 2014 and 2013.

Finance income — 47% decrease to P33 million fr@8 Rillion

It went down due to lower interest income from batdcements as a result of lower interest rates
and lower foreign currency gains. This accountesents 1% of total revenues for 2014 and
2013.

Finance costs — P112 million from P20 million

Primarily due to higher interest expense from gébearing loans (in 2013, interest cost for the
Golden Hill project was capitalized as part of @p development cost) and higher impairment
losses on trade and other receivables. This aceeprésents 2% of total revenues in 2014 from
0.49% in 2013.

Other gains - net —85% decrease to P3 million t@ Rillion

Primarily due to lower gain on derecognition obildies. This account stood at 0.06% in 2014
from 0.54% in 2013 as a percentage of total rev&nue

Balance Sheet Items (2013 vs. 2012)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhatagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 23% decrease to P2#Ra@n from P3,019 million
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Mostly used for investing activities mainly for agsjtions of FAFVTPL and additions to
property and equipment and for operating activitiesinly for increase in inventories. This
account stood at 17% and 24% as a percentagtabassets for years 2013 and 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through profit oisg—P294 million as of December 31, 2013 and
amounted to nil as of December 31, 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl@amounted P294 million as of December 31,
2013 versus nil as of December 31, 2012 mainlytd@vailment of UITF

Trade and other receivables — 7 % decrease to P1ndiBion from P1,220 million

Mainly due to collection of receivables of tdegital mobile devices segmentThis account
stood at 8% and 10% as a percentage of totalsass2013 and 2012, respectively.

Advances to related parties — 14% increase to Plibmfrom P21 million

Principally from additional advances. This accostobd at 0.18% and 0.17% as a percentage of
total assets in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 115 % iaseeto P844 million from P391million

Mainly due to buildup of inventories of the myphdmesiness. This account represented 6% and
3% as a percentage of total assets in 2013 and B&sectively.

Real estate inventories — 20% increase to P2,43®mfrom P2,011 million

The increase was mainly due to the ongoing Fil-Dnég project in Nanning, China. This
account stood at 17% and 15% as a percentageabfiistets in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Other current assets — 33% increase to P425 mifiiom P319 million

Mainly due to higher creditable withholding taxeslanput VAT . This account stood at 3% and
2% as a percentage of total assets for years 2012012.

Non-current trade and other receivables — amoumteB722 million as of December 31, 2013,
increased by 14% from P630 million as of Decenddgr2012..

Mainly due to increase in cash surrender valudfefihsurance and finance receivables. This
account stood at 5% of total assets for both years.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 892 decrease in 2013 to P7 million from P9
million in 2012

The decrease was due to lower club shares. Thisuatcstood at 0.05% and 0.07% as a
percentage of total assets for 2013 and 2012.

Property, plant and equipment — 49% increase t&BQ million from P1,048 million

Mainly due to the transfer of Solid House propéntyn investment property to this account. This
represented 11 %% and 8% as a percentage of $sttkan 2013 and 2012.
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Investment property — P3,648 million from P4,01Wiom

Mainly from transfer of Solid House property to pesty and equipment. This account stood at
27% and 31% as a percentage of total assets in&@dl 2012, respectively.

Retirement benefit assets - 115% increase to P8®mirom P71 million

Increase was mainly due to lower present valuebtigation. This represented 0.60% and 0.56%
of total assets in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Deferred tax assets —net - 20% increase to P7lfomilrom P64 million

Mainly due to MCIT of MySolid. This account stoola57% and 0.50% of total assets in 2013
and 2012 respectively.

Other non-current assets — 48% increase in 20133® million from P22 million

Mainly due to higher deferred input VAT. This repeated 0.24% and 0.17% as percentage to
total assets in 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Interest-bearing loans — 20% increase in 2013 t846nillion from P571 million

Mainly due to additional loans for the Golden Hlitbject. This account stood at 5% and 4% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2Gk®1 2012, respectively.

Trade and other payable — 16% increase to P73Jianifrom P 628 million

Increase was primarily due to higher trade payadesother payables of the Golden Hill project
and myphone business. This account stood at 5%%nih 2013 and 2012 respectively as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2Gt®i 2012.

Customers’ Deposit — increase to P1,306 milliomfri881 million

Principally due to additional collection of depsdior real estate sales.

Advances from related parties — 599 % increasegb Rillion from P11 million

The increase was due to advances made duringeti@pThis account stood at 0.60% in 2013
and 0.09% in 2012 as a percentage of total liggslind equity.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasis — no change

There was no movement during the period. This auttcoepresented 0.50% and 0.53% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2@kl 2011, respectively.

Income tax payable —92% decrease to P4 millionfa®ecember 31, 2013 from P65 million as
of December 31, 2012.

Mainly due to lower tax expenses. This account pegged at 0.03% and 0.51% of the total
liabilities and equity in 2013 and 2012, respedyive
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Non-current refundable deposits — amounted to Riilion from P1.6 million

Mainly from additional deposits. This represenfetil% and 0.12% of the total liabilities and
equity in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 64% increase to R2lion from P16 million

Mainly from unfunded retirement obligation. Thiscaunt stood at 0.19% and 0.13% of the total
liabilities and equity in 2013 and 2012, respedyive

Deferred tax liabilities —Increase to P935 millimom P919 million

No material change. This account stood at 6 and 746% percentage of total liabilities and
equity for 2013 and 2012.

Capital stock — no change
This account stood at 14% and 15%of total liabdited equity for 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 34 % and 36% of totallitieb and equity for 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change

This account represented 0.85% and 0.90% of t@hllities and equity for 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Revaluation reserves —amounted to (P16 milliornf{®63 million)

Principally due to other comprehensive income figr period consisting of currency differences
on translating financial statements of foreign atiens. This account stood at .012%% and
0.49% total liabilities and equity in 2013 and 20d5pectively.

Retained earnings — 1.75% increase to P2,820anifliom P2.772 million

Increase was a result of net income during thegefhis account stood at 20% and 21% of
total liabilities and equity in 2013 and 2012, esjvely.

Income Statement Items (2013 vs. 2012)
(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhatagéements)
Sale of goods — 11% decrease to P3,513 million @59 million

Principally form lower volume of digital productlea. As a percentage of total revenues, this
account represents 83% and 81% in 2013 and 2@Epectively.

Service revenue —34% decrease to P414 million #6830 million
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Principally due to termination of operations of SBffer its asset sale in 2012. As a percentage of
total revenues, this account represents 10% a¥dfar years 2013 and 2012.

Rental income — 11% increase to P151 million frob3®million

Principally due to higher occupancy in 2013. Asescpntage of total revenues, this account
represents 4% and 3% for years 2013 and 2012.

Sale of real estate — 15% increase to P113 milifom P98 million

Principally due to higher condominium sales. Apesicentage of total revenues, this account
stood at 3% in 2013 and 2% in 2012.

Interest income — 39% decrease to P39 million fRGYA million

Mainly from lower yield on placements as comparéith \wrevious year. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account represents 0.93% in 2013 %nich 2012.

Cost of sales - P2,983 million from P3,092 millio

No material change for this account. As a perggntd total sales, this account represented 70%
and 63% in 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Cost of services - 32% decrease to P332 milliomfP488 million

Principally in relation to lower service revenudid account decreased to 8% in 2013 and 10%
in 2012 as a percentage of total revenues.

Cost of rentals — P34 million from P35 million

No material change for this account. This accouepresents 1% as a percentage of total
revenues for both years.

Cost of real estate sold — 53% increase to P70anifirom P45 million

The increase was mainly in relation to higher s#fleeal estate. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account represents 2% in 2013 &udh 2012.

General and administrative expenses — 18% decr@aB288 million from P352 million

Expenses went down after the broadband assetsswielén May 2012. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account stood at 7% for both years.

Selling and distribution costs — 25% increase t&P#illion from P361 million

Mainly from higher advertising costs. This accoragresents 11% of total revenues for 2012 and
7% in 2012.

Gain on sale of assets —nil in 2013 and 267 mmllim2012
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None in 2013, one-time gain from the sale of breadbassets in 2012.
Other operating income —net -90% decrease to PHgmirom P553 million

Primarily due to gain on sale of broadband agsetse in 2013). This account decreased to 1%
in 2013 from 11% in 2012 as a percentage of tetatmues.

Finance income — 62% decrease to P62 million frarE3million

It went down because in 2012 there were reverdalmmairment on PPE and trade receivables
due to sale of broadband assets in 2012. This atdeereased at 1% of total revenues for 2013
from 3% in 2012.

Finance costs — P20 million from P49 million

Primarily due to lower foreign currency losses &wder interest expense. This account decreased
at 0.49% of total revenues in 2013 from 1% in 2012.

Other gains - net —P22 million to P60 million
Primarily due to lower gain on derecognition obllidies in 2013. Also in 2012, there were

reversal of allowance on inventory obsolescencadrio 2013). This account stood at 0.54%
in 2013 from 1% in 2012 as a percentage of tetetmues.

viii. Seasonal Aspects that had Material Effect on timarfeial Condition or Results of
Operations

There are no significant seasonality in the Comjsahysiness that materially affects financial
condition or results of operations.

Iltem 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedolEmancial Statements and Supplementary
Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17 - A.

(B) Information on Independent Accountant and OtherRelated Matters
(1) External Audit Fees And Services

(&) Under the caption Audit and Audit-Related Fees dfpgregate fees billed for each of the last
two fiscal years for professional services rendénethe external auditor for :

1. The audit of the registrant’s annual financial estaénts or services that are normally
provided by the external auditor in connection witatutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those fiscal years:

The audit fees of our present external auditor,0Rghayan and Araullo for the examination of
our annual audited financial statements, includhmase of our subsidiaries for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to P5.51bmiind P5.382 million, respectively.

Also, audit fees for the amendment of the plan efgar between Solid Manila Corporation and
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Solid Corporation amounted to P171.7 thousand imtZ@one in 2015). The audit fee of Grant
Thornton for the examination of Fil-Dragon foethiears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
amounted to HK$301,500 and HK$274,000, respectively

2. Other assurance and related services by the eksarddor that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of the regigteafinancial statements.

None for 2015 and 2014.

(b) Under the caption “Tax Fees”, the aggregate fdesdtin each of the last two (2) fiscal years
for professional services rendered by the exteamnditor for tax accounting, compliance,
advice, planning and any other form of tax servicBegistrant shall describe the nature of
the services comprising the fees disclosed undec#tegory.

The tax fees paid to the Tax Division of Punongbagad Araullo for tax consultation and
advisory services of our Company and those of absigliaries for the year ended December 31,
2015 and 2014 amounted to P240 thousand for leattsy

(c) Under the caption “All Other Fees”, the aggregatesfbilled in each of the last two (2) fiscal
years for products and services provided by thereat auditor, other than the services
reported under items (a) & (b) above. Registrahtdl describe the nature of the services
comprising the fees disclosed under this category.

There were no other fees paid for the years 20d328h4.
(d) The audit committee’s approval policies and proceslfor the above services.

The overall scope of the audit was reviewed andayggl by the Audit Committee. The terms of
engagement of the audit were also reviewed andapgdrby the Audit Committee.

The scope and terms of engagement of the tax datisaland advisory services were also
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Upon the favorable endorsement by the Audit Conemjtthe proposed terms of engagement of
services are submitted for approval to the Boar@itgctors. All of the above services were
approved by the Board of Directors.

tem 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company has no disagreements with the curestountant on accounting and financial
disclosure.

On June 25, 2015, the Company reappointed Punoagbaryd Araullo (P&A) as its external
auditors for the year 2015.

There was no change in our existing accountarthioyears 2015 and 2014.
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PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Isuer
A. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and tcarPersons
(1) Directors, including Independent Directors &acutive Officers

There are nine (9) seats in the Board. The terwiffafe of each member is one (1) year. The
names, ages and citizenship of current directalseaacutive officers are as follows:

Positior Name Age Citizenshij

Chairman Emeritt Elena S. Lin 86 Filipino
Chairman of the Boa Susan L. Ta 62 Filipino
Director and President and Ct

Executive Officer David S. Lim 60 Filipino
Director and Sr. VP and Chi
Operating Officer Jason S. Lim 59 Filipino
Director and Sr. VP and Chi
Financial Officer Vincent S. Lim 57 Filipino
Independent Directc Quintin Chui 56 Australiar
Independent Direct Maria G.Goolshy 76 Filipino
Directol Joseph Lir 89 Filipino
Director and VP for Busine:| Beda T. Manale 55 Filipino
Development
VP and Treasur Lita Joaquil 55 Filipino
Corporate Secrete Roberto V. San Jo 73 Filipino
Assistant Corporate Secret Ana Maria Katigba-Lim 47 Filipino
VP and Chief Accounting Offic | Mellina T. Corpu 49 Filipino
Chief Information Office Josephine T. Santia 48 Filipino

Ms. Elena S. Lim is Chairman Emeritus since May120@rior to that, she was President/ Chief
Executive Officer from 1996 to May 2001 and is aetor since 1996. She is also Chairman of
the Board of Laguna International Industrial PdrG. and Starworld Corporation. She was
formerly the President of Solid Corporation, Sdbéstributors, Inc., AA Export and Import
Corporation, AA Marine Development Corporation, @uobian Autocars Corporation, Solid
Electronics Corporation, Solid Video CorporationA Alectronics Corporation, Solid Manila
Corporation and Kita Corporation. Ms. Lim is madito Joseph Lim.

Ms. Susan L. Tan is Chairman of the Board since #@§1. She was Vice President of the
Company from April 1999 to April 2001 and is a irer since 1996. She was Chief Operating
Officer of the Company since 1996 up to March 1988e is currently President of Solid Laguna
Corporation and Solid Corporation and is also MamagDirector of Solid Electronics
Corporation and Solid Video Corporation. Ms. Tathe daughter of Joseph and Elena Lim.
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Mr. David S. Lim is President and Chief ExecutivHieg@r since May 2001. He is also Director

since 1996. He was Vice-President since 1996 uiptd 2001. He is also President and Chief
Executive Officer of Solid Broadband Inc. sincel@3% presently Chairman of Destiny Cable
Inc. and also Vice-President of Solid Corporation fore than five years and was formerly
VP/Managing Director of Solid Video Corporation fmiore than five years. He is also presently
Chairman of Zen Towers Corporation. Mr. Lim is $on of Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Jason S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and Chieti@png Officer since May 2002. He is a
Director since May 1998. He was also EVP and Chieérating Officer of Destiny Cable Inc. up
to September 2000. He is also currently PresideKita Corporation and Solid Manila Finance
Inc. He was formerly VP/ Managing Director of (dPlastics Manufacturing Corporation and
Solid City Industrial and Commercial Corporation foeore than five years. Mr. Lim is the son of
Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Vincent S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and CHig@fancial Officer in September 2010 and was
Sr. Vice President for Finance and Investmentsesiume 2006 up to September 2010. He was
Sr. VP and Chief Financial Officer from May 2002 tapJune 2006. He is a director since 1996
and was VP/ Chief Financial Officer from 1996 upMay 2002. He has also been VP Finance,
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary for Solid Cotigardor more than five years and is also VP
Finance and Treasurer for Solid Laguna Corporaton Solid Distributors, Inc., Solid
Electronics Corporation, AA Electronics Corporatiiita Corporation, Solid Video Corporation
and Solid Manila Corporation. He is also an Indawjest Director of Security Land Corporation
effective June 2013. Mr. Lim is the son of Josapt Elena Lim.

Mr. Quintin Chua is the Independent Director siltarch 25, 2003. He is the Chairman and
Managing Director of QC Investments Pty. Ltd, Chein and President of Nature's Harvest
Corp. and Director of Hexagon Financing Corp.

Ms. Maria G. Goolsby is the Independent DirectacsiJune 25, 2015. She served as Executive
Director for Corporate Philanthropy and Social Resgibility of Union Bank of the Philippines
during the last five (5) years and since year 2088e used to hold the position of Senior Vice
President of Union Bank of the Philippines, PhiligpBanking Corporation and Boston Bank of
the Philippines.

Mr. Joseph Lim is the Founding Chairman of Solid@r of Companies and served as Chairman
of the Board of the Company from 1996 until 2008e is presently the Chairman of Phil-
Nanning Consortium, Inc. (Phil-Nanning), a whollwreed subsidiary of the Company; and
Chairman of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Develepiitd., a company in Nanning, China,
where Phil-Nanning has a 51% ownership. In thet figse years to present, he has been
Chairman of various manufacturing and trading camgzin Hongkong and China among which
are Solid Co. Ltd., Solid Trading Ltd. and Solidilstrial (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Mr. Lim is the
incumbent Chairman of the China-Philippines Chandf€€ommerce. Mr. Lim is married to the
Company’s Chairman Emeritus, Ms. Elena S. Lim, inthe father of Chairman Ms. Susan L.
Tan and Directors Mr. David S. Lim, Mr. Jason SmLand Mr. Vincent S. Lim. Mr. Lim
assumed position as Director in June 2010.

Mr. Beda T. Mafalaés Director and Vice President for Business Develept since September
30, 2010. He is President of Solid Manila Corporateffective January 2012. He was Vice
President for Business Development of MyPhone reopilones under MySolid Technologies
and Devices Corporation and Solid Broadband Cotjgoraince 2007 to May 31, 2010. Prior to
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that, he was Vice President for Sales and MaraifrDestiny Cable Inc and Vice President for
Broadband Services of Solid Broadband Corporation.

Ms. Lita Joaquin is the Treasurer since May 2082e was also director from June 2006 up to
August 2007. She was Comptroller in 1996 to Ap6iD2 and Director in May 1997 where she
held office up to May 1998. She also became Géhgaager of Solid Manila Finance Inc. in
October 1999. She is also Assistant Treasur8obfl Corporation for more than five years and
holds the same position for Solid Electronics Ceafion, Kita Corporation, Solid Video
Corporation and Solid Manila Corporation. Ms.dlgsa is the niece of Mr. Joseph Lim.

Roberto V. San Jose is the Corporate SecretarfieofCompany and has held the office since
1996. He is Chairman of Mabuhay Holdings Corporgtia director of Interport Resources

Corporation and Anglo-Philippine Holdings Corpooati and Corporate Secretary of Alsons
Consolidated Resources Inc., Anglo-Philippine Haldi Corporation, Beneficial Life Insurance

Corporation., Inc., FMF Development CorporatiorerRiere Horizon Alliance Corporation, The

Metropolitan Club, Inc., Marcventures Holdings, ,Inénited Paragon Mining Corporation and

Vulcan Industrial and Mining Corp. He is also eithedirector, corporate secretary, or an officer
of various companies which are clients of the lam fof Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon & San
Jose, of which he is presently a Senior Consultiigt.is a member of the Integrated Bar of the
Philippines.

Ana Maria A. Katigbak is the Assistant Corporater®eary of the Company and has held the
office since 1997. She is a partner in Castillaman, Tan, Pantaleon & San Jose Law Offices
and also acts as Corporate Secretary of Minerathsstrias Corporation, and Assistant Corporate
Secretary of Energy Development Corporation, Magutaldings, Inc., Marcventures Holdings,
Inc., Paxys Inc., Premiere Horizon Alliance Corpioraand Vulcan Industrial and Mining Corp.
She is a member of the Integrated Bar of the Riiiligs.

Mellina T. Corpuz is the Chief Accounting Officeffextive June 2006. Prior to that, she was
the Senior Accounting Manager since 2002 and ag\tcounting Manager since 1996.

Josephine Santiago is the Chief Information Office©ctober 2012. She is also the Corporate
Secretary of subsidiaries and affilitates of S@iup Inc. for the last five years.

(2) Significant Employee

There is no significant employee that is not pathe Company directors and executive officers.
3) Family Relationship

Ms. Elena S. Lim is married to Mr. Joseph Lim. iftehildren, namely, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Mr.
David S. Lim, Mr. Jason S. Lim and Vincent S. Line all directors and executive officers of the
Company. Ms. Lita Joaquin, treasurer of the Compirthe niece of Mr. Joseph Lim.

4) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Ms. Elena S. Lim is included as co-defendant imgediled by a certain bank against AA Export
and Import Corporation for the collection of unseclbusiness loans granted to that company.
In another collection case filed by another bardirsgs AA Export and Import Corporation, Ms.

Elena S. Lim, Mr. Joseph Lim, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Bavid S. Lim, Mr. Jason Lim and Mr.
Vincent S. Lim are impleaded as co-defendants. sBeend cased was dismissed by the court on
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February 24, 2014. Except by above, none of tfeetbrs and officers was involved in the past
five years up to April 2016 in any bankruptcy ggeding. Neither have they been convicted by
final judgment in any criminal proceeding, nor besiject to any order, judgment or decree of
competent jurisdiction, permanently enjoining, gy suspending, or otherwise limiting their
involvement in any type of business, securitiesnmmdities or banking activities, nor found in
action by any court or administrative body to haiatated a securities or commodities law.

Iltem 10. Executive Compensation

B. Executive Compensation

Executive and Directors Compensation

Q) General

The Company’s executive officers are regular engasyof the Company and its subsidiaries and
are similarly remunerated with a compensation pgekeomprising of regular salary, bonuses,
thirteenth month pay and leave conversions thatCii@pany extends to its regular employees.
Directors who are not executive officers are paiecified amounts per meeting participation.

(2) Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes certain informati@garding compensation paid or accrued
during the last two fiscal years and paid in theugmy fiscal year to the Company’s Chairman
and each of the Company’s four most highly compieasaxecutive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Annual Compensation

(a) (b) (© (d) (e)

Other Annua
Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salary (B Bonus (i Income (B
Chairman and four most highly compensated
executive officers
Susan L. Tan iihan of the Board
David S. Lim Bator, President and Chief Executive Officer
Jason S. Lim rdotor, Senior VP and Chief Operationg Officer
Vincent S. Lim Pator, Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer
Lita Joaquin VP and Treasurer
201¢€ (Est. 20,000,00 3,500,00t 1,500,00i
2015 16,800,000 2,960,429 1,354,482
2014 16,730,000 2,993,093 1,296,046
All officers and directors as 201¢ (Est. 6,000,001 1,200,00! 1,400,00(
group unnamed 2015 5,400,000 937,638 1,187,867

2014 5,141,000 988,616 846,235
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3) Compensation of Directors
Please see executive and directors’ compensation.

(4) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employnent and Change-in-Control
Arrangements.

Not applicable. There are no employment contraetaeen the registrant and executive officers/
directors nor any compensatory plan or arrangenmeeitjding payments to be received from the
registrant, if such plan or arrangement resultsvitirresult from resignation, retirement or any

other termination of such executive officer or die’s employment with the registrant and its

subsidiaries or from change-in-control of the regi®t or a change in the executive officer or
directors’ responsibilities following a change-iontrol.

(5)  Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

Not applicable. The Company has no outstandingants and options.

Iltem 11. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management

C. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Benefial Owners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and BemflOwners

Owners of more than 5% of the Company’s voting gtea as of December 31, 2015 were as
follows.

(3)Name of (4)Citi (5)No. of (6) %
Beneficial Owner zenshi Shares Held to
(1) Title  (2) Name and address of and Relationship p record (r)or Total
of Class record owner and with Record beneficial (b) Outsta
relationship with issuer Owner nding
Commor AA Commercial, Inc? Vincent S. Lin  Filipino 583,377,817 (r) 32.0:
1172 Edsa, Balintawak Treasurer of AA !
Quezon City Commercial Inc.
Affiliate
Commor AV Value Holdings David S. Lin Filipino 499,999,999 (rj  27.4¢
Corporation President of AV
1000 J. Bocobo St., Value Holding
Ermita, Manila Corp.
Affiliate
Commor PCD Nominee Various Filipino 365,049,459 (rj  20.0¢
Corporation (FY stockholders
G/F MSE Bldg., 6767 None
Ayala Ave., Makati
Stockholder
Commor Lim, David £ Not applicabl:  Filipino 179,488,591 (r 9.8t
c/o Solid House, 2285 and b)

Pasong Tamo Ext, Makati
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Note 1: AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim Familivr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized
to vote the shares of stock registered in the nafrdéd Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is
the Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thienLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registerédld name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Halds Corporation.

3: There is no participant lodged urld€D Nominee Corporation that owns more than
5% of the voting securities of the Company.

(2) Security Ownership of Management

The following directors and officers own shareghi@a Company as of December 31, 2015.

(1) Title of (2) Name of Beneficie (3) Amount and Natur (4) B) % to
Class Owner of Beneficial Citizenship Total
Ownership Outstanding
Commor Lim, Elena < 1,894 (direc Filipino -
Commor Tan, Susan | 78,645 (direc Filipino -
7,300,000 (indirect) 0.40
Commor Lim, David S 179,488,59: (direct’ Filipino 9.8t
5,000,000 (indirect) 0.27
499,999,999 (indirecH 27.45
Commor Lim, Vincent S 71,887,187 (direc Filipino 3.9t
583,377,817 (indirect) 32.03
5,996,000 (indirect] 0.33
Commor Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,160 (direc Filipino 3.5¢
Commor Chua, Quintil 5,000 (direct  Australiar -
Commor Maria G. Goolsb 10,000 (direct Filipino -
Commor Lim, Josep 2 (direct Filipino -
Commor Beda T. Manale 1,001 (direct Filipino -
Commor San Jose, Roberto 242,000 (direc Filipino 0.01
Commor Katigbak, Ana Mari - Filipino -
Commor Joaquin, Liti 7,010,000 (direc Filipino 0.3¢
Commor Corpuz, Mellina T - Filipino -
Commor Santiago, Josephine 7,000 (direct Filipino -

The aggregate amount of ownership of all directansl officers as a group unnamed is
1,425,581,296 shares or 78.26% of the total isamddutstanding shares.

Note 1. AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim RgmMr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to
vote the shares of stock registered in the nameoCommercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the
Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thenLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registerédld name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Haids Corporation.
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3. These shares were registered in the name ofrtbereof the immediate family sharing
the same household.
(3)  Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of any stock held undestiag trust agreement. However,
AA Commercial Inc. and AV Value Holdings Corporati@are companies owned by the Lim
Family. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to voteetbhares of stock registered in the name of AA
Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the Treasuoé AA Commercial Inc. Mr. David S. Lim
is authorized to vote the shares of stock regidtére the name of AV Value Holdings
Corporation. Mr. David S. Lim is the Presiden®f Value Holdings Corporation.
4) Changes in Control

There are no arrangements, which may result inggmaim control of the registrant.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains

D. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) earns commission freates of Solid Trading Limited (STL), a
company owned by SGI's majority stockholders, tstomers in the Philippines. SVC also
collects the receivables related to the sales afW@#iich are payable immediately upon receipt.

My Solid purchases mobile phones from STL. My &aliso made advance payments to STL for
its future purchase of mobile phones.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. grants interest-bearingibess and other loans to its related parties.

Solid Manila Corporation leases out certain land luildings to Avid Sales Corporation. Also,
Solid Electronics Corp. leases out its office sgac€PD and Avid.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are ratomdepart of revenues and the related
outstanding receivables are recorded as part aeTaad Other Receivables

Solid Electronics Corp. purchases parts and supfi@n CPD, a company also owned by the
Company’s ultimate majority stockholders.

Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Company grants to atdims unsecured, non-interest bearing cash
advances to and from related parties companiesedwoy Group’s ultimate majority
stockholders for working capital requirements atigeppurposes.

Brilliant Reach Limited granted an unsecured, mdebearing loan denominated in Chinese
Yuan Renminbi to Solid Company Limited amountingR®20.8 million in 2008 which will
mature on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an arinteakst of 6% payable annually with any
unpaid interest compounded annually at the saneeafathe principal amount. In 2009, the
parties agreed to amend the loan agreement redtiengnnual interest rate to 4% and making
the loan payable in US dollars. In 2011, the paréigreed to increase the annual rate to 5% and
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extend the maturity date for another date. In 2@id parties agreed to further extend the term of
the loan to March 31, 2015. Interest rate was tamiad at 5%. In 2015, all of the loan
receivable has been collected which has been ogeattially pay the loan obtained from Bank of
Singapore.

In 2011, Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development, L#il-Dragon) obtained loans from companies
that are owned by Solid Company Limited (Hongkong@he liability is unsecured and payable
on demand.

Other than the foregoing, there were no transagtiuming the past two fiscal years to which the
Company was a party, in which a director, executiffeeer, nominee for director, stockholder
owning more than 10% of the outstanding sharekeoCiompany had a direct interest.

2.The Company has no transactions involving relataties where the service fees or rates are
fixed by law or government authority, nor acts aslb depository of funds, transfer agent,
registrar or trustee under a trust indenture neramgy other interest except for those arising from
the ownership of securities of the registrant rdedras treasury shares nor received extra or
special benefit that was not shared equally bhaltiers of the registrant.

3.The Company has no parent company holding orading more than 50% of its outstanding
capital stock. However, AA Commercial Inc. and AMlue Holdings Corporation separately
own and control 32.03% and 27.45%, respectivelhefCompany’s outstanding shares.

4. There are no transactions with promoters or ssaetjuired by the Company from any
promoters.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a Manual on Corporate Goveenémdnstitutionalize the rules and
principles of good corporate governance in accareamth the Code of Corporate Governance
promulgated by Securities and Exchange CommissBBEC]. Its Manual on Corporate
Governance was submitted to the SEC on Septembe20@2 in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 2 Series of 2002.

Pursuant to the Manual, three Board Committees ditAdomination and Compensation and
Renumeration Committees were created in 2003 tarmaicbmplying with principles of good
corporate governance. In 2003, the Company inetedise number of independent directors
from one (1) to two (2). In 2004, in complianceltwSEC Memorandum Circular No. 6. the
Company increased the number of independent digedtoits Audit Committee, from one
independent director to two (2) independent dinesgtand appointed an independent director to
head the Audit Committee. The company has reelelgledQuintin Chua and nominated Ms.
Maria G. Goolshy as Independent Directors durirgAhnual Stockholders’ meeting on June 25,
2015. In 2008, the company created another commithe Risk Management Committee in
addition to the 3 existing committees composedoaf {4) members chaired by an independent
director. In 2012, the Company, while retaining g®rvices of Punongbayan & Araullo as
external auditor, designated a new engagementgrdanthe audit of the financial statements of
the Company beginning the year ending Decembef@1] in compliance with its Manual on
Corporate Governance, which requires that the Cagipaexternal auditor be rotated or the
handling partner changed every five (5) years dieza
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A Compliance Officer was appointed in 2002, dingcéporting to the Chairman of the Board to
monitor compliance with the provisions and requieais of the Manual. The Compliance Officer
has established an evaluation system to measudetermine the level of compliance of the
Company with its Manual.

The Board of Directors approved the Company’'s Relislanual of Corporate Governance in
compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, &eaf 2009 on September 30, 2010. The
Company adopted the Revised Manual of Corporateefhance and submitted it to the SEC on
September 30, 2010. Also, the Company adopted Atrended Manual on Corporate
Governance which was submitted to the SEC on JulyQ14.

In June 13, 2013, the Board of Directors approhediudit Committee Charter.

On April 2, 2014, the Board of Directors approvkd Revised Code of Business Conduct of the
Company.

On August 12, 2014, the Company's Board of Directapproved the following charters:
Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee t&@haCompensation or Renumeration
Committee Charter and Risk Management Committeet@ha

On April 1, 2009, the Board of Directors approvid Whistle Blowing Policy. On November
11, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the pdion: Enterprise Risk Management Policy,
Conflict of Interest Policy, Related Party Trangattfolicy and Insider Trading Policy.

On December 28, 2015, the Company submitted temddahce of the Board of Directors for
2015 in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular NdSeries of 2014.

The Company reappointed Punongbayan and Araubéy'€as its independent accountant for
the year 2015 during the Annual Stockholders’ nmgetin June 25, 2015.

The Company, its Directors, Officers and Employeasiplied with all the leading practices and
principles on Good Governance as embodied in thepaoy's Manual. All members of the

Board of Directors as well as Senior Managemernt&® completed and were duly certified to
have attended a 2- day special seminar on Corp@aternance conducted by Institute of
Corporate Directors and a 1-day SEC Revised Cod€avporate Governance conducted by
Center for Global Best Practices. On August 10,52@hke Company's Directors and Officers
attended a 1-day special seminar with Risk OppiitsnAssessment and Management (ROAM),
Inc.

On June 28, 2013, the Company accomplished andigalrthe Annual Corporate Governance
Report (ACGR) for the year 2012 in compliance vB85C Memorandum Circular No. 5, Series
of 2013. There are no major deviations from thepted Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance. The Company also accomplished the AfoGe year 2015 which is attached as
part of this annual report (See Exhibit 29).
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
€) Exhibits - See accompanying Index to Exhibit.
The following exhibit is filed as a separate settid this report:

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C
The following were reported under SEC Form 17-Grduthe last six-month period.

On July 29, 2015, the Company advised that Mr. dain Alcantara, President for My Solid
Technologies and Devices Corporation (My Solidkhally owned subsidiary of the Company is
leaving the Group effective August 1, 2015. Mr.vidaS. Lim, President and CEO, will
concurrently head the mobile phone business oCtirapany and he will be assisted by the key
officers of My Solid.

On August 7, 2015, the Company advised that thedBofDirectors approved the declaration of
cash dividend of P0.06 per share payable to stdd&l®o of record as of August 28, 2015 and
payable on September 23, 2015. The Board alsmeggran additional subscription of 705,991
shares out of the unissued capital stock of MydSokchnologies and Devices Corporation at a
par value of P100 per share or a total amount 6f39B,100.

On August 10, 2015, the Company submitted thefiatieés of attendance of the directors and
officers of the Company in compliance with SEC Meamalum Circular No. 20 Series of 2013.

Also, the Company disclosed the updates on Itemo6.the Annual Corporate Governance
Report (ACGR) on “Orientation and Education Programaccordance with SEC Memorandum

Circular No. 1, Series of 2014 or the GuidelingsGbanges and Updates in the ACGR.

On December 28, 2015, the Company advised thedatter of the Board of Directors for its
2015 board meetings.

Name Date of Election Number bfNumber of | Percentage
Meetings  Held| Meetings
During the Year | Attended
Chairman Emeritus Elena S. Lim 3 75%
Chairman Susan L. Tan 4 100%
Board Membe David S. Lin 3 75%
Board Membe Jason S. Lir 4 100%
Board Member Vincent S. Lim | June 25, 2015 4 4 100%
Board Member Joseph Lim 3 75%
Board Member Beda T. Manalag 4 100%
Independent Direct. | Quintin Chui 4 100%
Independent Director| Maria G. Goolshy 3 100%

On March 28, 2016, the Company advised that thearstockholders’ meeting will be held on
June 30, 2016 at 3:00 p.m at the Soma Ground Fareen Sun, 2285 Don Chino Roces Ave.
Extension, Makati with record date on May 31, 2016.
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SOLID GROUP INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Solid Group Inc., is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), including the List of
supplemental information filed separately from the basic consolidated financial statements.

Management’s responsibility on the consolidated financial statements includes designing and
implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. -

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements, and the
additional supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the
financial statements of the Group in accordance wyth Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the Board of Directors and stockholdérs, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such examinagon.’

”

D ViD S. LIM . VINCENTIS. LIM

President & Chief Executive Officer SVP & Chief Figancial Officer
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries

2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue

Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solid Group Inc.
and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod ended
December 31, 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Certified Public Accountants
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



_ P&A
' Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinzon

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Solid Group Inc. and subsidiaries as at

December 31, 2015 and 2014, and their consolidated financial performance and their
consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Mailene Sigue-Bisnar
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0090230
TIN 120-319-128
PTR No. 5321724, January 4, 2016, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0396-AR-3 (until Oct. 15, 2018)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-4 (until Apr. 30, 2018)
BIR AN 08-002511-20-2015 (until Mar. 18, 2018)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cett. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2018)

March 28, 2016



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes 2015 2014
A ET
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,576,733,713 P 1,623,834,847
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 123,008,280 746,071,954
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,278,551,759 1,438,189,029
Advances to related parties 25 1,653,330 28,980,645
Merchandise inventories and supplies - net 9 866,155,332 594,629,960
Real estate inventories - net 10 1,647,230,066 2,371,682,863
Other current assets 13 471,456,471 574,294,025

Total Current Assets 6,964,788,951 7,377,683,323

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 7 601,637,151 582,579,966
Available-for-sale financial assets - net 8 13,836,527 9,456,527
Property and equipment - net 11 1,815,172,613 1,739,229,451
Investment property - net 12 2,653,219,534 3,653,879,915
Post-employment benefit asset 21 117,281,818 123,066,094
Deferred tax assets - net 22 166,196,351 127,125,734
Other non-current assets - net 13 29,488,729 44,270,694

Total Non-current Assets 5,396,832,723 6,279,608,381

12,361,621,674

P

13,657,291,704




Notes 2015 2014
ILITIE ITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans 14 P 257,142,182 P 844,408,549
Trade and other payables 15 636,730,400 732,391,095
Customers’ deposits 550,935,829 1,502,205,749
Advances from related parties 25 73,258,388 36,873,493
Estimated liability for land and land development costs 68,304,647 68,304,647
Income tax payable 19,922,914 9,404,626
Total Current Liabilities 1,606,294,360 3,193,588,159
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Refundable deposits 16 19,022,892 13,313,947
Post-employment benefit obligation 21 19,739,454 20,705,704
Deferred tax liabilities - net 22 647,717,364 938,404,585
Total Non-current Liabilities 686,479,710 972,424,236
Total Liabilities 2,292,774,070 4,166,012,395
EQUITY
Attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders
Capital stock 23 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000
Additional paid-in capital 4,641,701,922 4,641,701,922
Treasury shares - at cost ( 115,614,380 )  ( 115,614,380 )
Revaluation reserves 23 35,038,173 21,082,300
Retained earnings 2 2,967,881,891 2,590,367,022
Total equity attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders 9,559,982,606 9,168,511,864
Non-controlling interests 2 508,864,998 322,767,445
Total Equity 10,068,847,604 9,491,279,309
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 12,361,621,674 P 13,657,291,704

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013

REVENUES
Sale of goods
Sale of real estate
Rendering of services
Rentals
Interest

COSTS OF SALES, REAL ESTATE SALES,
SERVICES AND RENTALS
Cost of sales
Cost of real estate sales
Cost of services
Cost of rentals

GROSS PROFIT

OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Other operating income

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) — Net
Finance income
Finance costs

Share in net loss of an associate
Other gains — net

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
TAX EXPENSE (INCOME)

NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Net profit (loss) for the year attributable to the:

Parent Company’s stockholders
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Notes 2015 2014 2013

2 P 3,952,750,577 P 4337,704,615 3,513,602,388

2 1,788,006,760 28,321,991 113,835,646

25,26 532,077,613 453,582,408 414,705,645

12, 25,27 146,091,062 150,962,708 151,962,662

7,20,25 41,920,757 27,085,794 39,263,000

6,460,846,769 4,997,657,516 4,233,369,341

17 3,577,153,783 3,854,962,630 2,983,775,449

17 925,220,490 22,179,971 70,127,647

17 460,303,202 374,197,647 332,503,851

12,17 57,325,823 35,951,543 34,971,661

5,020,003,298 4,287,291,791 3,421,378,608

1,440,843,471 710,365,725 811,990,733

18 559,990,238 552,366,111 451,129,327

18 336,954,164 379,815,905 288,610,394
19 ( 263,024,203)  ( 86,040,883 ) 53,336,385 )

633,920,199 846,141,133 686,403,336

806,923,272 ( 135,775,408 ) 125,587,397

20 89,517,766 33,194,746 65,909,151
20 ( 77,005,570)  ( 112,012,001 ) 20,598,454 )

13 ( 3,305,718 ) s .

20 16,058,807 3,182,343 19,524,456

25,265,285 ( 75,634,912 ) 64,835,153

832,188,557 ( 211,410,320 ) 190,422,550

22 159,283,615 ( 22,678,893 ) 44,903,108

P 672,904,942 (R 188,731,427 ) 145,519,442

24 P 486,807,389 (P 121,266,766 ) 157,821,890
186,097,553 67,464,661 ) 12,302,448 )

P 672,904,942 (P 188,731,427 145,519,442

24 P 0.27 (P 0.07 ) 0.09

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2015 2014 2013
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR P 672,904,942 (P 188,731,427 ) Ly 145,519,442
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will be reclassified subseq ly
to profit or loss:
Currency exchange differences on translating financial
statements of foreign operations 2,23 14,380,981 ( 1,325,922) 41,312,873
Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets — net 8,23 1,380,000 220,000 1,461,842
Deferred tax expense on changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets 22,23 ( 414,000) ( 66,000 ) ( 1,156,237 )
15,346,981  ( 1,171,922) 41,618,478
Item that will not be reclassified subseq ly
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit plan 21,23 ( 1,899,376 ) 54,522,138 7,356,907
Tax income (expense) 22,23 508,268 ( 15,481,707 ) ( 2,207,070)
( 1,391,108 ) 39,040,431 5,149,837
Other comprehensive income — net of tax 13,955,873 37,868,509 46,768,315
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR P 686,860,815 (P 150,862,918 ) P 192,287,757
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
attributable to:
Parent Company’s stockholders | 500,763,262 (P 83,398,257 ) P 204,590,205
Non-controlling interests 186,097,553 ( 67,464,661 ) ( 12,302,448 )

P 686,860,815 (P 150,862,918 ) P 192,287,757

See Notes to C lidated Fiy jal Si




Balance at January 1, 2015

Dividends declared

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2015

Balance at January 1, 2014

Dividends declared

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Balance at December 31, 2014

Balance at January 1, 2013

Dividends declared

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Balance at December 31, 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013

SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Attributable to the Parent Company’s Stockholders

Capital Additional Treasury Revaluation Retained Non-controlling Total
Notes Stock Paid-in Capital Shares - at Cost Reserves Earnings Total Interests Equity
P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 ) P 21,082,300 P 2,590,367,022 P 9,168,511,864 P 322,767,445 P 9,491,279,309
23 - - - - 109,292,520)  ( 109,292,520 ) - 109,292,520 )
8,21,22 - - - 13,955,873 486,807,389 500,763,262 186,097,553 686,860,815
23 P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 ) P 35,038,173 P 2,967,881,891 P 9,559,982,606 P 508,864,998 P 10,068,847,604
P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380) (P 16,786,209 ) P 2,820,926,308 P 9,361,202,641 P 390,232,106 P 9,751,434,747
23 - - - - 109,292,520)  ( 109,292,520 ) - 109,292,520 )
8,21,22 - - - 37,868,509 121,266,766)  ( 83,398,257 ) 67,464,661 ) 150,862,918 )
23 P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 ) P 21,082,300 P 2,590,367,022 P 9,168,511,864 P 322,767,445 P 9,491,279,309
P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380) (P 63,554,524 ) P 2,772,396,938 P 9,265,904,956 P 402,534,554 P 9,668,439,510
23 - - - - 109,292,520)  ( 109,292,520 ) - 109,292,520 )
8,21,22 - - - 46,768,315 157,821,890 204,590,205 12,302,448 ) 192,287,757
23 P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380) (P 16,786,209 ) P 2,820,926,308 P 9,361,202,641 P 390,232,106 P 9,751,434,747

See Notes to C
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SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Notes 2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax 832,188,557 (P 211,410,320) 190,422,550
Adjustments for:
Loss (gain) on sale of investment property 12,19 ( 138,520,266 ) 1,766,286 -
Fair value gains on investment property - net 12,19,20 ( 87,747,812) ( 52,676,235) ( 23,784,336 )
Interest income 7,20,25 ( 77,425,436)  ( 36,349,776)  ( 81,892,320 )
Depreciation and amortization 11,18 76,013,702 47,575,708 32,328,211
Interest expense 20 59,348,521 58,225,272 2,610,444
Unrealized foreign currency exchange losses (gains) - net 20 ( 32,197,646 ) 4,662,070 ( 13,021,649 )
Gain on settlement of receivables 7,20 ( 19,395,000 ) - o
Gain on sale of property and equipment 11,20 ( 6,685,469 ) 3
Gain on redemption of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 6,20 ( 1,403,189) ( 13,689,363)  ( 1,006,736 )
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 6,20 ( 260,983) ( 5,750,303)  ( 144,292)
Interest amortization on refundable deposits 16,20 155,895 150,003 388,412
Gain on derecognition of liabilities 15,20 - ( 2,108,461) ( 15,825,655)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets 8,20 - s 800,000
Operating profit (loss) before working capital changes 604,070,874 ( 209,605,119 90,874,629
Increase in trade and other receivables 136,928,058 ( 162,532,555)  ( 3,817,099)
Decrease (increase) in advances to related parties 21,327,315 ( 4245206) ( 3,102,051)
Decrease (increase) in merchandise inventories and supplies ( 271,525,372 ) 249,615,120 ( 452,382,192)
Decrease (increase) in real estate inventories 724,452,797 51,553,054 ( 406,957,264 )
Decrease (increase) in other current assets ( 134,446,514)  ( 135,368,972 ( 167,417,555)
Decrease (increase) in post-employment benefit asset 4,393,168 ( 1,801,889) ( 5,512,330)
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets 14,781,965 ( 11,422,535) ( 10,616,455)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables ( 95,816,590 ) 3,074,796 117,809,349
Increase (decrease) in customers’ deposits ( 951,269,920 ) 196,169,183 424,136,901
Increase (decrease) in advances from related parties 36,384,895 ( 44,450,070 ) 69,693,744
Increase (decrease) in refundable deposits 5,708,945 ( 1,813,159) ( 918,290 )
Increase (decrease) in post-employment benefit obligation ( 966,250)  ( 5,814,974) 10,384,223
Cash generated from (used in) operations 100,023,371 ( 76,642,326)  ( 337,824,390 )
Interest received 64,967,784 23,727,215 48,564,544
Cash paid for income taxes ( 227,272,116 )  ( 33,446241)  ( 2,137,686 )
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities ( 62,280,961)  ( 86,361,352) ( 291,397,532)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 12 1,506,509,527 8,035,714 2,461,000
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 6 1,016,699,632 1,791,909,515 575,089,899
Acquisitions of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 ( 391,971,786 )  ( 2,224,255,643 ) ( 868,225,031 )
Additions to investment property 12 ( 279,581,068)  ( 8,597,740)  ( 2,083,670 )
Acqussitions of property and equipment 1 ( 152,791,087 ) ( 179,721,034) ( 157,777,542)
Interest received 20 35,504,679 9,263,982 33,327,776
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 1 7,519,692 - -
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets 8 ( 3,000,000) ( 2,000,000 ) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial asset - - 2,501,842
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities 1,738,889,589 ( 605,365,206)  ( 414,705,726 )
Balance carried forward 1,676,608,628 (P 691,726,558) (P 706,103,258 )




2015

2014

2013

Notes
Balance brought forward
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of interest-bearing loans 14
Dividends paid 23
Interest paid 14
Proceeds from availment of interest bearing loans 14

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on
Cash and Cash Equivalents

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

< ] 1 Inf

PP ion on N h I ing Activities:

P 1,676,608,628

(P 691,726,558)

(P 706,103,258 )

587,266,367 ) : -
109,292,520)  ( 109,292,520)  ( 109,292,520 )
59,348,521)  ( 58225272)  ( 2,610,444 )
s 160,405,635 112,335,992
755,907,408)  ( 7,112,157) 433,028
32,197,646  ( 4,662,070) 13,021,649
952,898,866  ( 703,500,785)  ( 692,648,581 )
1,623,834,847 2,327,335,632 3,019,984.213

P 2,576,733,713

P 1623834847

P 2327335632

In 2014 and 2013, SMC transferred investment properties with a carrying amount of P46.4 million and P386.8 million, respectively, to Property and Equipment

account (see Notes 11 and 12).

In 2013, ZTC transferred investment properties with a carrying amount of P5.2 million, previously classified as Investment Property to Real Estate Inventories.

See Notes to Ce lidated F




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1 Company Background

Solid Group Inc. (SGI or the Parent Company) was incorporated and registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 16, 1933.

On February 22, 1982, the SEC approved the extension of SGI’s corporate life for
another 50 years. SGI currently conducts business as an investment holding company.
On September 4, 1996, SGI listed its shares of stock in the Philippine Stock Exchange

(PSE).
The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following subsidiaries and
associate (the Parent Company and the subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as

“the Group”):

Percentage of Ownership

Subsidiaries/Associate 2015 2014 2013 Notes Nature of Business
Subsidiaries:
Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) 100 100 100 (a) Investment holding company
Kita Corporation (Kita) 100 100 100 Leasing of real estate properties
Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) 100 100 100 Broadband, cable and satellite

services and sale of LCD televisions
Solid Group Technologies Corporation

(SGTC) 100 100 100 Trading of prefabricated
modular house and office units
Precos, Inc. (Precos) 100 100 100 (o) Real estate
Solid Electronics Corporation (SE Corp.) 100 100 100 Repair services for audio and
video products
Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) 100 100 100 Leasing of real estate properties and
hotel operations
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. (CBHI) 100 100 100 (b) Hotel operations
Solid Manila Finance, Inc. (SMFI) 100 100 100 Financing
Solid Video Corporation (SVC) 100 100 100 Trading of professional audio
and video equipment
Zen Towers Corporation (ZTC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Phil-Nanning Consortium, Inc. (PNCI) 100 100 100 ® Investment holding company
My Solid Technologies & Devices
Corporation (My Solid) 100 100 100 Sale of mobile phones, devices and

accessories
Omni Solid Services, Inc. (OSSI)
[formerly Solid Laguna

Corporation (SLC)] 100 100 100 @ Logistics and assembly of
consumer electronics products

MyApp Cotporation (MyApp) 100 100 - (h) Investment holding company
Skyworld Corporation (Skyworld) 75 75 75 (), (¢)  Investment holding company
Interstar Holdings Company, Inc.

(Interstar) 73 73 73 (b), ()  Investment holding company
Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development,

Ltd. (Fil-Dragon) 51 51 51 (2 Real estate
Starworld Corporation (Starworld) 50 50 50 (b), ()  Real estate
Laguna International Industrial Park,

Inc. (LIIP) 50 50 50 (b), (d)  Real estate

Associate —

Creative HotHouse Manila, Inc. (CHMI) 50 - - [0) Development of mobile application



Notes:

(@) Incorporated and domiciled in the British Virgin Islands

(b) Indirectly owned through SMC

(c) Pre-operating or non-operating

(d) LIPis 22.5% owned by SMC and 37.5% owned by Interstar

(e) Starworld is 20% owned by SMC and 40% owned by Skyworld

(f) Indirectly owned through Precos

() Indirectly owned through PNCI; incorporated and domiciled in the People’s Republic of
China (PRC)

(h) Incorporated on October 23, 2014; has not yet started commercial operation as of
December 31, 2015

(i)  On March 19, 2012, the SEC approved the change in corporate name of SLC to OSSI.

()  Indirectly owned through MyApp; incorporated on February 5, 2015; has not yet started
commercial operations as of December 31, 2015

SBC holds a provisional authority, granted by the National Telecommunications
Commission, to use its legislative franchise under Republic Act (RA) No. 9116, An Act
Granting Solid Broadband Corporation a Franchise to Construct, Install, Establish, Operate and
Maintain Telecommunications Systems throughout the Philippines (see Note 26.3).

SMFTI is subject to the rules and regulations provided under RA No. 8556, The Financing
Company Act of 1998.

12 Status of Operation

(@)

)

Recognition of Real Estate Sales of Fil-Dragon

In prior years, Fil-Dragon started its pre-selling activities in relation to the Golden
Hill Project located in Nanning City, Guangxi Province in PRC. However, no real
estate sales were recognized, pending the receipt of the certificates of property
ownership from the Chinese government. Accordingly, collections from real estate
buyers were recognized as part of Customers’ Deposits in the consolidated
statements of financial position. In 2015, Fil-Dragon has obtained the certificates
of property ownership; hence, it recognized real estate sales amounting to

¥242.5 million (P1.8 billion) in the 2015 consolidated statement of income, which
represents those that have already reached the Group’s revenue recognition
threshold of at least 25% collection of the total contract price (see Note 2.15).

Start of Commercial Operations of Green Sun Hotel

On April 1, 2014, the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders of SMC approved
the amendment to its Articles of Incorporation to include hotel operations in its
secondary purpose. The amendment was approved by the SEC on April 4, 2014.

Subsequently, on October 29, 2014, Green Sun Hotel officially started its hotel and
related business operations under SMC. The Hotel offers 144 guest rooms,

13 serviced apartments, three penthouse suites, a fashion boutique, three food and
beverage outlets, and a function hall situated at 2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue,
Makati City. In relation to this, SMC signed an agreement with CBHI for the
management of the hotel’s properties and operations.



1.3  Other Corporate Information

The registered offices and principal places of business of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries and associate, except those listed below, are located at 2285 Don Chino
Roces Avenue, Makati City. The registered offices and principal places of business of the
other subsidiaries are as follows:

BRL - 20d Floor, Abbott Building, P.O. Box 933, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands
Kita - N7175 Gil Puyat Ave. cor. Feati St., Clark Freeport Zone, Clarkfield, Pampanga
OSSI - Solid Street, LIIP, Mamplasan, Bifian, L.aguna

SMC and CBHI - 1000 J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Manila

SE Corp. - 1172 E. delos Santos Avenue, Balintawak, Quezon City

Starworld - Bo. Prinza, Calamba City

ZTC - 1111 Natividad A. Lopez Street, Brgy. 659-A, Zone 79 District 5, Ermita, Manila
PNCI - 139 Joy St. Balingasa, Quezon City

Fil-Dragon - 16 Zhujin Road, ASEAN Commercial Park, Nanning City, Guangxi Province, PRC

1.4 Approval for Issuance of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2015 (including the comparative consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2014 and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013) were authorized
for issue by the Parent Company’s BOD on March 28, 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(a)  Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are
adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the
pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),
and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(b)  Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. 'The Group
presents consolidated statement of comprehensive income separate from the
consolidated statement of income.
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The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that
has a material effect on the information in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related notes to the third
consolidated statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the
Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency, and all values represent
absolute amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using the Parent Company’s functional currency, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
Effective in 2015 that are Relevant to the Group

The Group adopted for the first time the following amendment and annual
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014, for its annual reporting period beginning
January 1, 2015:

PAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit
Plans — Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to

PERS (2010-2012 Cycle) and
PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle)

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amendment and
improvements.

(i)  PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions. The amendment clarifies that if the amount of the
contributions to defined benefit plans from employees or third parties is
dependent on the number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the
contributions to periods of service using the same attribution method
(i.e., either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straight-line basis)
for the gross benefit. The amendment did not have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements since the Group’s defined
benefit plan does not require employees or third parties to contribute to the
benefit plan.



(i)

Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS
(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) made minor amendments to
a number of PFRS. Among those improvements, the following
amendments are relevant to the Group but had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as these amendments merely
clarify the existing requirements:

Annnal Improvements to PERS (2010-2012 Cycle)

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38
(Amendment), Intangible Assets. The amendments clarify that when an
item of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is revalued,
the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with
a revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset.

PAS 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. The amendment clarifies
that an entity providing key management services to a reporting entity is
deemed to be a related party of the latter. It also clarifies that the
information required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that are provided by a separate
management entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or
payable by the management entity to its employees or directors.

PERS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. This amendment clarifies
that an obligation to pay contingent consideration which meets the
definition of a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability or
as equity in accordance with PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. 1t
also clarifies that all non-equity contingent consideration should be
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

PFRS 8 (Amendment), Operating Segments. This amendment requires
disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments. This includes a description
of the segments which have been aggregated and the economic
indicators which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated
segments share similar economic characteristics. It further clarifies the
requirement to disclose for the reconciliations of segment assets to the
entity’s assets if that amount is regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

Annual Improvements to PERS (2011-2013 Chycle)

PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Property. The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 in determining the classification
of property as an investment property or owner-occupied property, and
explicitly requires an entity to use judgment in determining whether the
acquisition of an investment property is an acquisition of an asset or a

group of asset in accordance with PAS 40 or a business combination in
accordance with PFRS 3.



)

()

e PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair 1V alue Measurement. The amendment
clarifies that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis (the
portfolio exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of and
accounted for in accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, or PERS 9, Financial Instruments, regardless of whether

they meet the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities as
defined in PAS 32.

e PFRS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. 1t clarifies that PFRS 3
does not apply to the accounting for the formation of any joint
arrangement under PERS 11, Joint Arrangement, in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

Effective in 2015 but is not Relevant to the Group

The annual improvement to PERS 2, Share-based Payment, is mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 but is not relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective Subsequent to 2015 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing

standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2015 which are adopted by
the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in
accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of
these are expected to have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

@)  PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure Initiative
(effective from January 1, 2016). The amendment encourages entities to
apply professional judgment in presenting and disclosing information in the
financial statements. Accordingly, it clarifies that materiality applies to the
whole financial statements and an entity shall not reduce the
understandability of the financial statements by obscuring material
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions. Moreover, the amendment clarifies
that an entity’s share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using equity method should be presented based on
whether or not such other comprehensive income item will subsequently be
reclassified to profit or loss. It further clarifies that in determining the order
of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity shall consider the
understandability and comparability of the financial statements.
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(iii)

(iv)

v)
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PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38
(Amendment), Intangible Assets — Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is
not appropriate for property, plant and equipment. In addition, amendment
to PAS 38 introduces a rebuttable presumption that an amortization method
that is based on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of
an intangible asset is not appropriate, which can only be overcome in limited
circumstances where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue, or when it can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of an intangible asset are highly correlated. The
amendment also provides guidance that the expected future reductions in
the selling price of an item that was produced using the asset could indicate
an expectation of technological or commercial obsolescence of an asset,
which may reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset.

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41
(Amendment), Agriculture — Bearer Plants (etfective from January 1, 2016).
The amendment defines a bearer plant as a living plant that is used in the
production or supply of agricultural produce, is expected to bear produce
for more than one period and has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sales. On this basis, bearer
plant is now included within the scope of PAS 16 rather than PAS 41,
allowing such assets to be accounted for as property, plant and equipment
and to be measured after initial recognition at cost or revaluation basis in
accordance with PAS 16. The amendment further clarifies that produce
growing on bearer plants remains within the scope of PAS 41.

PAS 27 (Amendment), Separate Financial Statements — Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements (effective from January 1, 2016). This amendment
introduces a third option which permits an entity to account for its
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under the equity
method in its separate financial statements in addition to the current options
of accounting those investments at cost or in accordance with PAS 39 or
PFRS 9. As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has no plan to
change the accounting policy for its investments in its subsidiaries and an
associate.

PFRS 10 (Amendment), Consolidated Financial Statements, PERS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 28 (Amendment), Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Investment Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception (effective
from January 1, 2016). This amendment addresses the concerns that have
arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception for investment
entities. It clarifies which subsidiaries of an investment entity are consolidated
in accordance with paragraph 32 of PFRS 10 and clarifies whether the
exemption to present consolidated financial statements, set out in paragraph 4
of PFRS 10, is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity. This amendment also permits a non-investment entity investor, when
applying the equity method of accounting for an associate or joint venture that
is an investment entity, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that
investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries.



(vi)

(vii)

-8-

PFRS 10 (Amendment), Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28
(Amendment), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint 1V enture (effective date
deferred indefinitely). The amendment to PFRS 10 requires full recognition
in the investor’s financial statements of gains or losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
partial recognition of gains or losses (i.c., to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale
of contribution of assets that do not constitute a business. Corresponding
amendment has been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition,
PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining whether assets
that are sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider
whether the sale or contribution of those assets is part of multiple
arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction. In
December 2015, the IASB deferred the mandatory effective date of these
amendments (i.e., from January 1, 2016) indefinitely.

PERS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (etfective from January 1, 2018). This
new standard on financial instruments will eventually replace PAS 39 and
PERS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This standard contains, among
others, the following:

e three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments;

e an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
which generally depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a financial asset; and,

e anew model on hedge accounting that provides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely
with the risk management activities undertaken by entities when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9
(2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the
asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding.
Moreover, a financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI criterion
and is held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All other
financial assets are measured at FVTPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is
not held for trading in other comprehensive income.
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The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not require
separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires changes
in the fair value of an entity’s own debt instruments caused by changes in its
own credit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather
than in profit or loss.

Management is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 (2014) on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and it will conduct a
comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standard prior to its
mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.

(viii) Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle) (effective from
January 1, 2016). Among the improvements, the following amendments are
relevant to the Group but management does not expect these to have
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

e PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits. 'The amendment clarifies that the
currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were used to
determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations shall
be made consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
post-employment benefit obligations.

e PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Disclosures. 'The amendment
provides additional guidance to help entities identify the circumstances
under which a contract to “service” financial assets is considered to be a
continuing involvement in those assets for the purposes of applying the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such circumstances commonly arise
when, for example, the servicing is dependent on the amount or timing of
cash flows collected from the transferred asset or when a fixed fee is not
paid in full due to non-performance of that asset.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries as enumerated in Note 1.1, after the elimination of
intercompany transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities under the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany
transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses
that indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.
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The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, associate and
non-controlling interests (INCI) as follows:

(@)

®)

Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Parent
Company has control. The Parent Company controls an entity when it has power
over the investee, it is exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Parent
Company obtains control.

The Parent Company reassesess whether or not it controls an entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of controls indicated above. Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This
requires recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed and any NCI in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Parent Company, if any. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and subsequent change in the fair
value of contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the
acquiree, either at fair value or at the NCI’s proportionate share of the recognized
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree over
the acquisition-date fair value of identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as
goodwill. If the consideration transferred is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognized directly as gain in profit or loss (see Note 2.13).

Investments in an Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Parent Company is able to exert significant
influence but which is neither a subsidiary nor interest in a joint venture.
Investments in an associate is initially recognized at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method.
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Acquired investments in an associate is subject to the purchase method. The
purchase method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded
in the financial statements prior to acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or fair value
adjustment attributable to the Group’s share in the associate is included in the
amount recognized as investment in an associate.

All subsequent changes to the ownership interest in the equity of the associate are
recognized in the Group’s carrying amount of the investments. Changes resulting
from the profit or loss generated by the associate are reported as Share in Net
Profit (Loss) of an Associate in the Group’s consolidated statement of income.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.18).

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or items
recognized directly in the associate’s equity are recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as applicable. However, when the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognizing its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulated share of
losses that has previously not been recognized.

In computing for the share in net profit or loss of an associate, unrealized gains or
losses on transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. Where unrealized losses are
eliminated, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group
perspective.

Distributions received from the associates are accounted for as a reduction of the
carrying value of the investment.

If the investment in an associate is subsequently sold, the Group recognizes in
profit or loss the difference between the consideration received and the carrying
amount of the investment.

Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the
Group in their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net
assets of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to
NCI result in gains and losses for the Group that are also recognized in equity.
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When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s Executive Committee, its chief operating decision-maker. The
Executive Committee is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s
products and service lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent the main products and
services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
All intersegment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment
benefit expenses are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating
segments.

In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment are not allocated to any segment.

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.5 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the
definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32. All other
non-derivative financial instruments are treated as debt instruments.

(a)  Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments
are classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on
initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired.
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Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date.
All financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at
FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs ate
recognized in profit or loss. A more detailed description of the categories of
financial assets currently relevant to the Group follows:

()

(i)

Financial Assets at F1”TPL

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held for
trading or that meets certain conditions and are designated by the entity to be
carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. All
derivatives fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as
hedging instruments. Assets in this category are classified as current if they are
either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months from the
end of each reporting period.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets (except derivatives and financial
instruments originally designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss) may be reclassified out of FVTPL category if they are no longer held
for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables. They are included in current assets, except
for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of each reporting
period, which are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented
as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables (excluding
Advances to suppliers), Advances to Related Parties and Refundable deposits,
Restricted cash and Cash bond, presented as part of Other Current Assets and
Other Non-current Assets accounts, in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if any.
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(i) AFS Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated
to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. They are included in non-current assets presented as
Available-for-sale Financial Assets account in the consolidated statement of
financial position unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months from the reporting period. The Group’s AFS financial assets

include proprietary membership club shares, equity securities and corporate
bonds.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair value,
except for equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured which are
measured at cost, less impairment loss, if any. Gains and losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income, net of any income tax effects, and are reported
as part of the Revaluation Reserves account in equity, except for interest and
dividend income, impairment losses and foreign exchange differences on
monetary assets, which are recognized in profit or loss.

When the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, that is,
when there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost, the cumulative fair value gains or losses recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is
presented as reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income
even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. The Group
recognizes impairment loss based on the category of financial assets as follows:

(1) Carried at Amortized Cost— Loans and Receivables

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the original
terms of the agreement. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the
amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate or current effective interest rate
determined under the contract if the loan has a variable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced cither directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss.
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If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(#3) Carried at Cost — AFS Financial Assets

If there is objective evidence of impairment for any of the unquoted equity
instruments that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and required to be
settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, impairment loss is
recognized. The amount of impairment loss is the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

(i7i) Carried at Fair V' alne — AFS Financial Assets

When a decline in the fair value of an AFS financial asset has been recognized
in other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized
in profit or loss — is reclassified from Revaluation Reserves to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not been
derecognized.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss on equity instruments are not
reversed through profit or loss. Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income, except for financial assets that are debt securities
which are recognized in profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

(c) Items of Income and Expense Related to Financial Assets

Except for interest income earned by SGI, SMFI, BRI, Starworld and Interstar,
which is presented as Interest under the Revenues section of the consolidated
statement of income, all income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating
to financial assets that are recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance
Income or Finance Costs account in the consolidated statement of income,
respectively.

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial
assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured.
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(d) Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.6 Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the moving average method. Merchandise inventories, service parts, supplies, and
others include all costs directly attributable to acquisitions, such as the purchase price,
import duties and other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing
authorities.

Net realizable value of merchandise inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net
realizable value of spare parts, supplies and others is the current replacement cost.

2.7 Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories consist of the following:
(a)  Land and Land Development Costs

Land and land development costs include the acquisition cost of raw land intended
for future development and sale, as well as other costs and expenses incurred to
effect the transfer of property title.

(b)  Property Development Costs

Property development costs include the cost of land used as a building site for a
condominium project and the accumulated costs incurred in developing and
constructing the property for sale.

Land and land development costs and property development costs are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.8 Other Assets

Other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the asset has a cost or value
that can be measured reliably.



-17 -

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), are classified as non-current assets.

2.9 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition cost or construction cost
less subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses. Land held for use
in production or administration is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions,
major improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 25 years
Test, communication and other equipment 5 to 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Computer system 2 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Tools and equipment 2 to 3 years

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost.
This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing costs (see Note 2.20) and other
direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets are completed
and available for use.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets from
2 to 15 years or the terms of the relevant leases, whichever is shorter.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respect
of those assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.18).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization
of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and any impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of income in the year the item is derecognized.
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2.10 Investment Property

Investment property represents property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is accounted for under the fair value model. It is revalued annually
and is included in the consolidated statement of financial position at its fair value. Fair
value is supported by market evidence and is determined by independent appraisers with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment
property (see Note 30.4).

Investment property, which consists mainly of land and improvements and buildings and
improvements under operating lease agreements, is initially measured at acquisition cost,
including transaction costs.

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement
of an investment property is immediately recognized in profit or loss as Fair value gains
or losses on investment property under the Other Income (Charges) — Net section in the
consolidated statement of income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

For tax purposes, investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated net useful lives of the assets ranging
from 11 to 25 years.

2.11 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans, trade and other payables
[excluding output value-added tax (VAT) and other tax-related liabilities, advances from
customers and reserve for warranty costs|, advances from related parties and refundable
deposits, are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related charges are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under
the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of income.

Interest-bearing loans are recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct
issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables, advances from related parties and refundable deposits are
initially recognized at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using
the effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Dividend distributions to sharecholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Parent Company’s BOD.
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Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within
one year or less after the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business, if longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of reporting period.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.12 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the end of
the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It must also be
enforceable in the normal coutse of business, in the event of default, and in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy, and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all
counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.13 Business Combinations
Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting.

The acquisition method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair values, which are also used as the bases for the subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed (see Note 2.18).

Negative goodwill, which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost, is charged directly to profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to it.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognize the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.14 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets; hence, are not recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation
is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.15 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services
measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the
Group for goods sold and services rendered, excluding VAT and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and, the costs incurred or
to be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

@) Rendering of services (other than commission income) — Revenue is recognized when the
24 g
performance of contractually agreed services have been substantially rendered.
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Sale of goods (other than sale of real estate) — Revenue is recognized when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, i.e., generally when
the customer has acknowledged delivery of goods.

Rentals — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the
term of the lease (see Note 2.106).

Warranty and network support fee (shown as part of Rendering of Services) — Revenue from
warranty is recognized upon actual rendering of in-warranty and out-of-warranty
services to the customers. Revenue from network support is accrued monthly
based on a fixed amount specified in the service contract as agreed with the
customer.

Sale of real estate — Revenues from sale of real estate is accounted for using the full
accrual method. Under this method, gross profit on sale is fully recognized when:
(a) the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured; (b) the earnings process
is virtually complete; and, (c) the seller does not have a substantial continuing
involvement with the subject properties. The collectibility of the sales price is
considered reasonably assured when: (a) the related loan documents have been
delivered to the banks; or (b) the full down payment comprising a substantial
portion (at least 25%) of the contract price is received and the capacity to pay and
credit worthiness of buyers have been reasonably established for sales under the
deferred cash payment arrangement.

Subsequent cancellations of prior years’ real estate sales are deducted from revenues
and cost of real estate sales in the year in which such cancellations are made.

If the transaction does not yet qualify as a sale, the deposit method is applied until
all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the recognition of sale,
payments received from buyers are presented under the Customers’ Deposits
account in the liabilities section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition
method applied. Cost of real estate property sold before completion of the
development is determined on the basis of the acquisition cost of the land plus its
full development costs, which include estimated costs for future development, as
determined by technical staff. The estimated future expenditures for the
development of the real estate property for sale are shown under the Estimated
Liability for Land and Land Development Costs account in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Interest income on loans receivables — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues using
the effective interest method.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Commission income (shown as part of rendering of services) — Revenue is recognized on an
accrual basis computed based on a certain percentage of sales.

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance — Revenue is recognized when the
increase in cash surrender value occurs and becomes determinable.

Service charges and penalties — Revenue is generally recognized on an accrual basis when
the service has been provided and when there is reasonable degree of certainty as to
their collectibility.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents — Revenue is recognized as the interest
accrues taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt
of the goods or utilization of services or at the date they are incurred. Expenditure for
warranties is recognized and charged against the associated provision when the related
revenue is recognized. All finance costs are reported in the consolidated statement of
income on an accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs, which are included as part
of the cost of the related qualifying asset (see Note 2.20).

2.16 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@)

Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
(net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.
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Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from
operating leases is recognized in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (see Note 2.15).

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

(@)

(%)

Transactions and Balances

The accounting records of the Group, except BRL and Fil-Dragon, are maintained
in Philippine pesos. Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated
into the functional currency at exchange rates which approximate those prevailing
on transaction dates. The accounting records of BRL and Fil-Dragon are
maintained in United States (U.S.) dollar and Chinese yuan renminbi (RMB),
respectively.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income as part of Finance Income or Finance Costs.

Transilation of Financial Statements of Foreign Subsidiaries

The operating results and financial position of BRL and Fil-Dragon are translated
to Philippine pesos, the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency, as
presented below and in the succeeding page.

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period,;

(ii) Income and expenses for each statement of income account are translated at
the monthly average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and,

(iif) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of
other comprehensive income under currency exchange differences on
translating financial statements of foreign operations, which is included under
items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investments in BRL and Fil-Dragon are recognized in other comprehensive income
and taken to equity under Revaluation Reserves. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are reclassified in the
consolidated statement of income as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

The translation of the financial statements into Philippine pesos should not be
construed as a representation that the U.S. dollar and Chinese yuan RMB amounts
could be converted into Philippine pesos amounts at the translation rates or at any
other rates of exchange.

2.18 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s investment in an associate, property and equipment, investment property
and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,
management estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s
latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset
enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating
unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and
asset-specific risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist. Except for impairment losses on goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount
exceeds its carrying amount.

2.19 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit
plan, as well as defined contribution plans, and other employee benefits which are
recognized as follows:

(a)  Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains
with the Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been
acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term
benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit
post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is
tax-qualified, non-contributory and administered by a trustee.
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The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for
post-employment defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows for expected benefit
payments using a discount rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon
government bond as published by the Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Corporation, that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
post-employment liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period
as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest is reported as part of
Other Gains — Net under the Other Income (Charges) — Net account in the
consolidated statement of income.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment and curtailment.

Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed
contribution. The contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution
plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current liabilities or
current assets as they are normally of a short term nature.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination
benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits
and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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(d)  Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision
where it is contractually obliged to pay the benefits, or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

(e)  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They
are included in Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement.

2.20 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.c., an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part
of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization
ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

For income tax purposes, interest and other borrowing costs are charged to expense
when incurred.

2.21 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income comprises the sum of
current tax and deferred tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the consolidated statement of income.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at the
end of each reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
petiod and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
petiod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes
of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that
is, when the investment property is depreciable and is held within the business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to setoff current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Group; (b) associates; () individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and
close members of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded
retirement plan.
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In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.23 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital (APIC) includes any premiums received on the initial issuance
of capital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from APIC, net of any related tax benefits.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares and are deducted from
equity attributable to the Group’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or

disposed of.

Revaluation reserves comprise the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
plan, cumulative translation adjustments on financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
and unrealized fair value gains (losses) arising from the revaluation of certain AFS
financial assets.

Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results of operations as reported
in the consolidated statement of income, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared,
if any.

NCI represent the portion of net assets and profit or loss not attributable to the Parent
Company’s stockholders which are presented separately in the Group’s consolidated
statement of income and consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
equity in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

2.24 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net profit attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders by the weighted average number of shares issued and
outstanding, adjusted retroactively for any stock dividends declared, stock split and
reverse stock split declared during the current period.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of potential dilutive shares. Currently,
the Group does not have potentially dilutive shares outstanding; hence, the diluted earnings
(loss) per share is equal to the basic earnings (loss) per share.

2.25 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s
consolidated financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not
adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with
PFRS requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and
estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a)  Revenue Recognition Criteria on Real Estate Sales

The Group recognizes revenues from real estate sales under the full accrual
method. Under this method, critical judgment is made by management in
determining whether the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured.
Management considers the collectibility of real estate sales as reasonably assured
when: (a) the related loan documents have been delivered to the banks; or (b) the
full down payment comprising a substantial portion (at least 25%) of the contract
price is received and the capacity to pay and credit worthiness of buyers have been
reasonably established for sales under the deferred cash payment arrangement.

(b)  Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

The determination when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flows.

Based on the recent evaluation of information and circumstances affecting the
Group’s AFS financial assets, management concluded that certain assets are
permanently impaired as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, as disclosed in Note 8.
Future changes in those information and circumstances might significantly affect
the carrying amount of the assets.

(¢)  Costing of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

The Group’s inventory costing policies and procedures were based on a careful
evaluation of present circumstances and facts affecting production operations. A
review of the benchmarks set by management necessaty for the determination of
inventory costs and allocation is performed regularly. Actual data are compared to
the related benchmarks and critical judgment is exercised to assess the
reasonableness of the costing policies and procedures which are currently in place
and to make the necessary revisions in light of current conditions.
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Distinction between Investment Property, Owner-occupied Properties and Real Estate Inventories

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the properties but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process. On the other hand,
real estate inventories are properties intended to be sold in the normal course of
business.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as either a lessor or lessee.
Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement
as either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of
significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement
or understatement of assets and liabilities. Based on management’s judgment, all of
the Group’s lease agreements were determined to be operating leases.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provision and contingencies are discussed
in Note 2.14 and the disclosures on relevant provisions and contingencies are

presented in Notes 26 and 27.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next reporting period:

(@)

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables and Advances to Related Parties

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and groups
of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates
the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length
of the Group’s relationship with the counterparties, their current credit status,
average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimate and actual
loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7. Meanwhile, there were
no impairment losses recognized on advances to related parties for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 based on management’s assessment

(see Note 25).
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Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Fair value measurement is generally determined based on quoted prices in active
markets. Where active market quotes are not available, management applies
valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments. This
requires management to develop estimates and assumptions based on market
inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate.
Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that
would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets at FVIPL and AFS financial
assets and the amounts of fair value changes recognized on those assets are
disclosed in Notes 6 and 8, respectively.

Determination of Net Realizable 1 alue of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

In determining the net realizable value of merchandise inventories and supplies,
management takes into account the most reliable evidence available at the time the
estimates are made. The Group’s core business is continuously subject to rapid
technology changes which may cause inventory obsolescence. Moreover, future
realization of the carrying amounts of inventoties is affected by price changes in
different market segments of electronic devices, modular houses, broadcast
equipment and accessories (see Note 9). Both aspects are considered key sources
of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s
merchandise inventories and supplies within the next reporting period.

Determination of Net Realizable 1 alue of Real Estate Inventories

The Group adjusts the cost of its real estate inventories to net realizable value based
on its assessment of the recoverability of real estate inventories. Net realizable
value for completed real estate inventories is assessed with reference to market
conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group
in the light of recent market transactions. Net realizable value in respect of real
estate inventories under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at
the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete
construction and less estimated costs to sell. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if different judgments were made or different
estimates were utilized.

Management’s assessment of net realizable value of properties under development
requires the estimates of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates require judgment as to the anticipated sale prices by reference to
recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate sales) and the expected costs to
completion of properties, the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

The carrying amounts of the real estate inventories are disclosed in Note 10.
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Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives
of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical/commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are analyzed in Note 11. Based
on management’s assessment as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, there is no change
in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment during those years. Actual
results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above.

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Property

The Group’s investment property, which consists of parcels of land and
improvements and buildings and improvements, are carried at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. In determining the fair value of these assets, the Group
engages the services of professional and independent appraisers applying the
relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 30.4.

For investment properties with appraisals conducted prior to the end of the current
reporting period, management determines whether there are significant
circumstances during the intervening period that may require adjustments or
changes in the disclosure of fair value of those properties.

A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets.
The amounts of fair value gains recognized on investment property are disclosed in
Notes 12 and 19.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period
and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.

The carrying value of recognized deferred tax assets, which management assessed
may be fully utilized in the coming years, as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is
disclosed in Note 22.2. Certain deferred tax assets, however, were not recognized
since management believes that there is no assurance that the related tax benefits
will be realized in the coming years.
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Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each
asset or a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an
interest rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Estimation
uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the
determination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.18). Though management
believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in those assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable
values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the
results of operations.

Based on management’s assessment, there were no impairment losses recognized
on the Group’s non-financial assets in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Estimating Liability for Land and Land Development Costs

The Group’s liability for land and development cost for future development is
determined by technical staff based on updated budgets and available information
and circumstances, as well as its previous experience. The amount of estimated
liability for land and development costs as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is
disclosed in Note 10.

Estimation of Reserve for Warranty Costs

The Group offers warranty, for a period ranging from one to two years, for each
consumer electronic product sold. Management estimates the related provision for
future warranty costs based on a certain percentage of sales, as determined based on
historical warranty claim information as well as recent trends that might suggest that
past cost information may differ from expectations. Warranty costs also include
the actual cost of materials used in repairing the electronic products.

The amounts of provision for warranty claims recognized and the outstanding
balance of Reserve for warranty costs, which is presented as part of Trade and
Other Payables account in the consolidated statement of financial position, are
disclosed in Note 15.

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment benefit
is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 21.2 and include, among
others, discount rates and expected rate of salary increases. A significant change in
any of these actuarial assumptions may generally affect the recognized expense,
other comprehensive income or losses and the carrying amount of the
post-employment benefit asset and obligation in the next reporting petiod.

The amounts of the present value of the retirement benefit asset and retirement
benefit obligation and the analysis of the movements in the present value of the
retirement benefit asset and retirement benefit obligation, as well as the significant
assumptions used in estimating such asset and obligation are presented in

Note 21.2.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
4.1 Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The Group’s
different business segments are as follows:

()  Digital mobile devices services is involved in the sale of mobile phones and devices;

(b)  Property and building services is involved in the leasing, development and sale of
industrial and other real estate properties, sale of prefabricated modular houses and
hotel operations;

(¢)  Technical support and solutions is presently engaged in the business of sale of
professional audio and video equipment, after sales services, warchousing and
distribution; and,

(d)  Investment and others include investment holding companies, and those included
in the business of financing and credit extension.

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2.4.
4.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by each business segment and consist
principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories and property and equipment, net of
allowances and provisions. Similar to segment assets, segment liabilities include all
operating liabilities used by each segment and consist principally of accounts, wages, taxes
currently payable and accrued liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities do not include
deferred taxes.

4.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between
business segments, such sales and purchases are eliminated in the consolidation.
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4.4 Analysis of Segment Information

The following tables present certain asset and liability information regarding business
segments as at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 and the related revenue and profit
information for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015

(amounts in thousands).

2015

SEGMENT RESULTS

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Total revenues

Cost of sales, services,
and rentals

Other operating
expenses

Operating profit (loss)

Finance income

Finance costs

Share in net loss of an
associate

Other gains — net

Profit (loss) before tax
Tax expense (income)

Net profit (loss)
for the year

SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and
amortization

Impariment loss

Other non-cash expenses

Digital Property Technical Investments
Mobile and Building Support and and
Devices Services Solutions Others Total
P 3,527,735 P 2,102,331 P 727,123 P 103,657 P 6,460,846
66,280 34,076 29,111 19,014 148,481
3,594,015 2,136,407 756,234 122,671 6,609,327
3,216,420 1,059,324 553,014 80,346 4,909,104
489,752 224,552 153,953 20,691 888,948
( 112,157) 852,531 49,267 21,634 811,275
20,463 57,545 1,977 9,533 89,518
( 12,307) ( 56,832) ( 1,097) ( 6,769) ( 77,005)
- - - ( 3,306) ( 3,306)
5,246 5,195 4437 1,181 16,059
( 98,755) 858,439 54,584 22,273 836,541
( 29,309) 167,603 15,737 5,253 159,284
(P 69,446) P 690,836 P 38,847 P 17,020 P 677,257
P 2,623,032 P 7,207,455 P_ 930,885 P 8,139,049 P 18,900,421
P 2296969 P 3,145,517 P 8,58 P 59,565 P 6,140,640
P 540 P 110,020 P 40,544 P 247 P 151,351
2,474 48,827 24,259 454 76,014
11,542 20 814 805 13,181
- 226,711 37,625 - 264,336
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SEGMENT RESULTS

SEGMENT ASSETS AND

Sales to external customers P

Intersegment sales
Total revenues

Cost of sales, services,
and rentals

Other operating
expenses

Operating profit (loss)
Finance income
Finance costs

Other gains — net

Profit (loss) before tax
Tax expense (income)

Net profit (loss)
for the year

LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT

INFORMATION

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and
amortization

Impairment loss

Other non-cash expenses
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Digital Property Technical Investments
Mobile and Building Support and and
Devices Services Solutions Others Total
4,060,423 P 257972 P 601,573 P 77,690 P 4,997,658
10,993 25,927 4,875 18,000 59,795
4,071,416 283,899 606,448 95,690 5,057,453
3,660,465 164,420 426,358 54,225 4,305,468
590972 134935 118,634 43,218 887,759
180,021) ( 15,456) 61,456 ( 1,753) ( 135,774)
- 13,709 3,552 15,934 33,195
45,849) ( 56,317) ( 4,588) ( 5258) ( 112,012)
2,301 756 - 124 3,181
223,569) ( 57,308) 60,420 9,047 ( 211,410)
67,089) 24,539 17,848 2,023 ( 22,679)
156,480) (P 81,847) P 42572 P 7,024 (P 188,731)
1,905,277 P_8,519,660 P 720727 P 9,827,403 P 20,973,067
1,578,938 P 5,054,011 P 159,847 P 474886 P 7,267,682
12,782 P 158,589 P 1,102 P 15846 P 188,319
7,538 20,113 1,295 18,630 47,576
10,068 - - 3,068 13,136
803 2,476 214 3,085 6,578
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Sales to external customers P

Intersegment sales
Total revenues

Cost of sales, services,
and rentals

Other operating
expenses

Operating profit (loss)
Finance income
Finance costs

Other gains — net

Profit (loss) before tax
Tax expense (income)

Net profit (loss)
for the year

SEGMENT ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and
amortization

Impairment loss

Other non-cash expenses

Digital Property Technical Investments
Mobile and Building Support and and
Devices Services Solutions Others Total
3,384,311 P 307,640 P 448,659 P 92,759 P 4,233,369
28,073 19,393 14,920 17,315 79,701
3,412,384 327,033 463,579 110,074 4,313,070
2,897,933 158,890 326,370 51,476 3,434,669
514573 97,535 105,371 37,477 754956
( 122) 70,608 31,838 21,121 123,445
418 24,252 11,570 29,669 65,909
( 13,812) ( 717) ( 3,165) ( 2,904) ( 20,598)
1,081 2,384 15,082 977 19,524
( 12,435) 96,527 55,325 48,863 188,280
( 3.597) 23,239 17,187 8,074 44,903
(P 8,838) P 73,288 P 38,138 P 40,789 P 143,377
P 1980138 P _8261,112 P 674831 P10,933241 P 21,849,322
P 1,503,020 P 4702128 P 168182 P 660,531 P 7,033,861
P 6913 P 133,321 P 1,178 P 18,449 P 159,801
5,751 11,942 878 13,758 32,329
10,158 505 176 2,761 13,600
24,329 212 - - 24,541
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4.5 Reconciliations

The total segment balances presented for the Group’s operating segments reconciled to
the Group’s consolidated balances as presented in the consolidated financial statements
are as follows (amount in thousands):

Segment Intercompany Consolidated
Totals Accounts Balances
2015
Revenues P 6,609,327 (P 148,481) P 6,460,846
Net profit for the year 677,257 ( 4,352) 672,905
Total assets 18,900,421 ( 6,538,799) 12,361,622
Total liabilities 6,140,640 ( 3,847,866) 2,292,774
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 151,351 - 151,351
Depreciation and amortization 76,014 - 76,014
Impairment losses 13,181 - 13,181
Other non-cash expenses 264,336 - 264,336
2014
Revenues P 5,057,453 (P 59,795) P 4,997,658
Net loss for the year ( 188,731) - ( 188,731)
Total assets 20,973,067  ( 7,315,775) 13,657,292
Total liabilities 7,267,682 ( 3,101,670) 4,166,012
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 188,319 - 188,319
Depreciation and amortization 47,576 - 47576
Impairment losses 13,136 - 13,136
Other non-cash expenses 6,578 - 6,578
2013
Revenues P 4,313,070 (P 79,701) P 4,233,369
Net profit for the year 143,377 2,142 145,519
Total assets 21,849,322 ( 8,245,293) 13,604,029
Total liabilities 7,033,861 ( 3,181,260) 3,852,595
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures 159,861 - 159,861
Depreciation and amortization 32,329 - 32329
Impairment losses 13,600 - 13,600

Other non-cash expenses 24541 - 24 541
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5.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as at December 31:

2015 2014
Cash on hand and in banks P 741,716,376 P 353,183,816
Short-term placements 1,835,017,337 1,270,651,031

P 2,576,733,713 P 1,623,834847

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
placements are made for varying periods of between 1 to 90 days and earn annual
interests ranging from 0.3% to 2.5% in 2015, 1.0% to 3.9% in 2014 and 1.4% to 4.0% in
2013 (see Note 20.2).

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account represents investments in unit investments trust funds (UI'TF) which have
been designated by the management as financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition.

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of these financial assets at the beginning and
end of 2015 and 2014 follows:

Note 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 746,071,954 P 294,286,160
Additions 391,971,786 2,224 255,643
Fair value gains 20.2 260,983 5,750,303
Redemptions (_1,015,296,443) (_ 1,778,220,152)
Balance at end of year P 123,008,280 P__ 746,071,954

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at their fair values which have been determined
directly by reference to published prices. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair
value of these financial assets were derived using the net asset value per unit (computed
by dividing the net asset value of the fund by the number of outstanding units at the end
of the reporting period), as published by banks and the Investment Company Association
of the Philippines.

The Group recognized gain on redemption of financial assets at FVTPL amounting to
P1.4 million, P13.7 million and P1.0 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is
presented as part of Finance Income under the Other Income (Charges) — Net account in
the consolidated statements of income (see Note 20.2).



-40-

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2015 2014
Current:
Trade receivables 25.5,26.1 P 1,055,902,278 P 992,576,279
Advances to suppliers 25.5 209,761,196 240,813,791
Loans receivables 25.3 45,980,152 195,173,248
Rental receivable 25.2 8,623,413 10,541,882
Interest receivable 596,290 23,643,317
Other receivables 44,949,005 49,783,028
1,365,812,334 1,512,531,545
Allowance for impairment ( 87,260,575) ( 74,342,5106)

1,278,551,759 1,438,189,029

Non-curtrent:
Trade receivables 9,061,513 22427768
Loans receivables 25.3 634,508 21,832,209
Cash surrender value of
investment in life

insurance 591,941,130 538,319,989

601,637,151 582,579,966

P 1,880,188,910 P 2,020,768,995

Trade receivables include amounts due from the Group’s real estate buyers arising from
the sale of industrial lots and condominium units. The title to the real estate properties
remain with the Group until such time that the Group fully collects its receivables from
the real estate buyers. Trade receivables from sale of condominium units are measured at
amortized cost and bear effective interests ranging from 9.8% to 18.0% depending on the
terms of payment (see Note 20.2).

Advances to suppliers mainly include advance payments made by My Solid for future
purchases of mobile phone inventories (see Note 25.5). These also include advances made
to various contractors for the construction of ZTC’s Tri Towers condominium building
(see Note 10) and to various suppliers for CBHI’s acquisition of supplies.

Interest income recognized on the Group’s loans receivables amounted to P10.9 million,
P12.4 million and P10.3 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are presented as
part of Interest under the Revenues section of the consolidated statements of income.
The effective interest rates on loans receivables range from 7.5% to 30.0% in 2015, 2014
and 2013.

Cash surrender value of investment in life insurance pertains to insurance policies
purchased by BRL for certain directors of the Parent Company. The investment in life
insurance is accounted for under the cash surrender value method. Under this method,
the initial cash surrender value of the insurance policies is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 19).
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The cash surrender value of the investment in life insurance is used as collateral for
interest-bearing loans obtained by BRL (see Note 14).

Other receivables consist primarily of unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash advances made
to the ZTC’s Unit Owners’ Association for expenses incurred by the unit owners.

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which are mostly due from small
business customers, were found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance for
impairment has been recognized.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at beginning and end of 2015 and 2014
is shown below.

Notes 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 74,342,516 P 38,692,587
Impairment losses during
the year 20.1 13,180,829 39,421,272
Reversal of impairment losses 20.2 ( 262,770) ( 965,468)

Write-off of receivables

previously provided with

allowance - ( 3,059,152)
Reversal of previously

written-off trade and other

receivable 20.2 - 253277

Balance at end of year P 87,260,575 P 74,342,516

In 2015, SMC foreclosed certain machineries of one of its lessees in settlement of the
latter’s outstanding liability to the former amounting to P10.6 million. Such foreclosed
machineries were eventually sold by SMC for P30.0 million and recognized gain on
settlement of receivables amounting to P19.4 million, which is presented as part of
Finance Income in the 2015 consolidated statement of income (see Note 20.2).

Certain loans receivables are secured by real estate properties and shares of stock of the
borrowing companies which are owned by a related party (see Note 25.4).
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account comprises the following AFS financial assets:

2015 2014
Current:
Investments in foreign
cutrency-denominated bonds P - P 52237573
Allowance for impairment - ( 52,237,573)
Non-current:
Club shares 15,852,400 11,472,400
Equity securities 8,580,000 8,580,000
Others 634,127 634,127
25,066,527 20,686,527
Allowance for impairment ( 11,230,000) ( 11,230,000)
13,836,527 9,456,527

P 13,836,527 P 9,456,527

A reconciliation of the net carrying amounts of AFS financial assets is shown below.

Note 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 9,456,527 P 7,236,527
Additions 3,000,000 2,000,000
Fair value gains 23.3 1,380,000 220,000
Balance at end of year P 13,836,527 P 9,456,527

Investment in equity securities pertains to the Parent Company’s 33% ownership interest
in the common stock of Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPI). The Joint Venture Agreement
(JVA) executed in 1997 with Sony Corporation of Japan covering the Parent Company’s
investment in SPI expired on May 8, 2005. On April 11, 2005, the Parent Company
received a formal notice of the expiry of the JVA. The Parent Company and Sony
Corporation have both agreed to pursue negotiations for an equitable settlement of all
matters relating to the JVA and its expiration.

As a result of the above events, the Parent Company determined that it no longer has
significant influence over the investee company. Consequently, it reclassified its
remaining investment in shares of stock of SPI with total cost of P8.6 million to AFS
financial assets in 2005.
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The Group’s management has determined that there is an objective evidence that the
decline in the fair values of SPI shares and of some of its club shares is permanent. Such
evaluation was based on the significant downturn in the business operations of SPI and
the prolonged decline in the market value of the Group’s club shares. Accordingly, the
Group recognized impairment losses on the SPI shares and such club shares in prior
years. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Parent Company’s investment in SPI is
fully provided with allowance for impairment losses. There were no additional

impairment losses recognized on other available-for-sale financial assets in 2015 and
2014.

The fair values of the Group’s investments in club shares, which represent proprietary
membership club shares, as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 have been determined
directly by reference to published prices in active markets (see Note 30.2).

MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

The details of this account are shown below.

Notes 2015 2014
Merchandise inventories 17.1 P 896,356,985 P 656,074,999
Service parts, supplies
and others 25.1 32,390,880 40,180,389
928,747,865 696,255,388
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence ( 62,592,533) ( 101,625,428)

P 866,155,332 P 594,629,960

The movements in the allowance for inventory obsolescence are as follows:

Notes 2015 2014

Balance at beginning of year P 101,625,428 P 64,316,654
Provisions for inventory

obsolescence 17.1,18 3,408,760 39,178,193
Write-off of inventory previously

provided with allowance - ( 1,477,160)
Reversal of allowance for

inventory obsolescence 17.1,18  (__42,441,655) ( 392,259)

P 62,592,533 P 101,625,428

The Group has no outstanding purchase commitment for the acquisition of merchandise
inventories and supplies as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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10. REAL ESTATE INVENTORIES

This account is composed of:

2015 2014
Land and land development costs:
Land P 4,265,299 P 9,725,593
Land development costs 421,365,404 438,069,675
425,630,703 447,795,268
Allowance for impairment ( 2,022,800) ( 2.022.800)
423,607,903 445,772,468
Property development costs —
Construction in progress
and development costs 1,223,622,163 1,925,910,395

P1,647,230,066 P 2,371,682,863

Land and land development costs pertain to cost of land and related improvements, held
by Starworld and LIIP, which are held for sale. Property development costs pertain to
the cost of land used as a building site and the accumulated construction costs of the
condominium building project being developed by ZTC and Fil-Dragon, which are also
for sale.

Borrowing costs incurred from loans availed of by Fil-Dragon were capitalized as part of
Property development costs. Borrowing costs incurred in 2013 relating to these loans
amounted to ¥6.8 million (P46.9 million) and are capitalized as part of Real Estate
Inventories in the 2013 consolidated statement of financial position (see Notes 14

and 25.7). No borrowing cost was capitalized in 2015 and 2014 as the development has
already been completed.

The allowance for impairment recognized in prior years pertains to the estimated cost of
parcels of land and land development costs which may not be fully realized as a result of
the Group’s long-outstanding claims against the seller for the transfer of title to the name
of LIIP. There were no additional impairment losses recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Under its registration with the Board of Investments, Starworld shall develop

118 hectares of land in its development project located in Calamba Premiere International
Park (CPIP) in Bo. Prinza, Calamba City, Laguna. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, lot
areas totaling 83 hectares (65 hectares for Phase 1 and 18 hectares for Phase 2) were
acquired and fully developed.

The Group, through ZTC, has initiated the planning and construction of the

Tri Towers condominium building (see Notes 27.4 and 27.5). The construction was
started by SMC in 2005. The accumulated construction costs (including cost of the land)
were eventually transferred to ZTC. The construction of Tower 1 and Tower 2 was
completed in 2008 and 2012, respectively, while the construction of Tower 3 has not yet
started as of December 31, 2015.
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In addition, the balances of Property development costs as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 include costs incurred in the construction of the Group’s Golden Hill Project
through Fil-Dragon (see Note 27.6). The Golden Hill Project involves the development
of multi-storey residential and commercial condominium units within the ASEAN
Commercial Park in Nanning City, Guangxi Province, PRC. In 2010, Fil-Dragon has
obtained sales permit for selling the property from the local government of the PRC.
Customer deposits received as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to

P538.7 million (3¥74.6 million) and P1,436.6 million (33199.9 million), respectively, and are
shown as part of Customers’ Deposits in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

There were no movements in the Estimated Liability for .and and Land Development
Costs account in 2015 and 2014 which was established for the fulfilment of Starworld’s
projects in the development and marketing of CPIP (see Note 27.3).
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses of property and equipment at the beginning and end of
2015 and 2014 are shown below.

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation and Other Computer Leasehold Tools and Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment System Improvements Equipment in Progress Total
December 31, 2015
Cost P 1277854682 P 352874436 P 129719241 P 193,871,092 P 113276561 P 9747050 P  70,705200 P 88,589,364 P 52774064 P 76494236 P 2365905926
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization - ( 52,396,919) ( 53,606,685) (  148,002,053) ( 78,333,799) ( 9,030,818) ( 68,488,935) ( 73,032,427) ( 32,841,677) - ( 515733313)
Accumulated impairment
losses - ( 35,000,000) - - - - - - - - ( 35,000,000)
Net carrying amount P 1277,854,682 P_ 265477,517 P__ 176,112,556 P 45869,039 P 34942762 P 716,232 P 2,216,265 P__ 15,556,937 P__ 19,932,387 P__ 76,494,236 1,815,172,61.
December 31, 2014
Cost P 1,277,854,682 P 323,788,521 P 124,527,734 P 199,360,565 P 120,963,265 P 103,495972 P 68,538,753 P 83,853,786 P 45,171,444 P 10,654,183 P 2,358,208,905
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization - ( 35,912,391) ( 36,852,590) ( 148,595553) ( 97,538,721) ( 102,812,248) ( 67,972,327) ( 66,771,863) ( 27,523,761) - ( 583,979,454)
Accumulated impairment
losses - ( 35,000,000) - - - - - - - - ( 35,000,000)
Net carrying amount P 1,277,854,682 P 252,876,130 P 87,675,144 P 50,765,012 P 23424544 P 683,724 P 566,426 P 17,081,923 P 17,647,683 P 10,654,183 P _1,739,229,451
January 1, 2014
Cost P 1207854682 P 155408061 P 46032938 P 154774686 P 109,596,633 P 103054255 P 68158644 P 80393594 P  29,038254 P 177,773,048 P 2132,084,795
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization - ( 30,678,741) ( 30,703,750) ( 136,263,157) ( 89,006,051) ( 101,851,777) ( 67,254,980) ( 56,402,307) ( 24,242,983) - ( 536,403,746)

Accumulated impairment
losses - ( 35,000,000) - - - - - - - - ( 35,000,000)

Net carrying amount P 1207,854,682 P 89729320 P__ 15329188 P 18511,529 P 20,590,582 P 1,202,478 P 903,064 P 23991,287 P 4795271 P__1 3,048 P _1,560,681,049
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2015 and 2014 of property and equipment is shown below.

Balance at January 1, 2015
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses

Additions

Disposals — net

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2015
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses

Balance at January 1, 2014
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses
Additions
Reclassification (see Note 12)
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2014
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation and Other Computer Leasehold Tools and Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment System Improvements Equipment in Progress Total
P 1277,854,682 P 252,876,130 87,675,144 P 50,765,012 P 23424544 P 683,724 P 566426 P 17,081,923 P 17,647.683 P 10,654,183 P 1,739,229,451
- 29,085,915 5,191,507 11,494,969 23,871,798 604,362 2,166,447 4,735,578 9,800,458 65,840,053 152,791,087
- - - ( 617,317) ( 112,551) ( 83,898) - - ( 20,457) - ( 834,223)
- ( 16,484,528) (. 16,754,095) ( 15,773,625) (. 12,241,029) ( 487.956) (. 516,608) (. 6,260,564) (. 7,495.297) - ( 76,013,702)
P 1,277,854,682 P__ 265,477,517 76,112,556 P 45,869,039 P__ 34,942,762 P 716,232 P 2,216,265 P__ 15,556,937 P__ 19,932,387 P__ 76,494,236 P 1,815,172,61
P 1207,854,682 P 89,729,320 15329188 P 18,511,529 P 20,590,582 P 1,202,478 P 903,664 P 23991287 P 4795271 P 177,773,048 P 1,560,681,049
- 93,101,118 33,979,607 20,663,067 11,366,632 441,717 380,109 3,460,192 11,668,904 4,659,688 179,721,034
70,000,000 75,279,342 44,515,189 23,922,812 - - - - 4,464,286 171,778,553) 46,403,076
- ( 5.233,650) ( 6,148.840) ( 12,332,396) ( 8,532,670) ( 960,471) (. 717,347) (. 10,369,556) ( 3,280,778) - ( 47,575,708)
P 1277854682 P 252,876,130 87,675,144 P__ 50,765,012 P__ 23424,544 P 683,724 566426 P 17,081,923 P 17,647,683 P__ 10,654,183 P 1,739,220.451
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In 2014, the Group transferred certain land and building improvements from Investment
Property to Property and Equipment as the Group intends to use such properties for the
expansion of the Group’s hotel operations. The amount recognized as deemed cost
represents the fair value of the properties at the time of transfers (see Note 12). There was
no similar transaction in 2015.

Construction in progress in prior years pertains to the construction of the Green Sun Hotel
of SMC. Construction was completed in 2014 and, accordingly, amounts have been
reclassified to the appropriate accounts. Further, construction in progress also includes costs
incurred for the acquisition of furniture and fixtures and machinery and equipment which are
not yet available for use.

No additional impairment losses were recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 based on
management’s assessment.

In 2015, the Group recognized a gain on disposal of certain property and equipment totaling
P6.7 million (see Note 20.3).

The amount of depreciation and amortization computed on property and equipment is
presented as part of the following accounts:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Cost of services 172 P 46974521 P 21794967 P 13,860,376
Cost of rentals 17.3 1,903,617 1,623,687 2,199,631
General and administrative
expenses 27,135,564 24,157,054 16,268,204

18 P 76,013,702 P 47,575,708 P__ 32328211

There were no restrictions on titles and items of property and equipment as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Fully depreciated property and equipment still in use in the Group’s operations amounted to
P227.6 million and P146.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group’s investment property, which is accounted for under the fair value method,
consists mainly of land and improvements and buildings and improvements that are held
under operating lease agreements. These properties earn rental income, presented as Rentals
in the consolidated statements of income and incur direct costs such as real property taxes,
repairs and maintenance and utilities which are presented as part of Cost of Rentals in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 17.3).

The fair values of the Group’s investment property as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were
determined based on appraisal reports dated January 22, 2016 and April 6, 2015, respectively.
Management obtains annual appraisal reports on its investment property from independent
appraisers (see Note 30.4).

The changes in the carrying amounts of investment property as presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are summarized as follows as of December 31:

Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total

2015:
Balance at beginning of year P 3,027,198,507 P 626,681,408 P 3,653,879,915
Fair value gains (loss) on
investment property — net

(see Note 19) 154,647,375  ( 66,899,563) 87,747,812
Additions - 279,581,068 279,581,068
Disposal ( 1,331,515,586) ( 36,473,675) ( 1367,989,261)
Balance at end of year P 1,850,330,296 P 802,889,238 P 2,653,219,534

2014:
Balance at beginning of year P 2,982,289,350 P 666,521,666 P 3,0648,811,016
Fair value gains (loss) on
investment property — net

(see Note 19) 114,909,157  ( 62,232,922) 52,676,235
Additions - 8,597,740 8,597,740
Disposal - ( 9,802,000) ( 9,802,000)
Reclassifications from (to)

property and equipment ( 70,000,000) 23596924  ( 46,403,076)
Balance at end of year P 3,027,198,50 P 626,681,408 P 3,653,879915

Certain real estate properties owned by SMC are the subject of litigations brought up by third
parties against the subsidiary.
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13. OTHER ASSETS

The composition of these accounts as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2015 2014
Current:
Prepayments P 246,852,021 P 254,525,544
Input VAT — net 130,023,037 71,030,015
Creditable withholding taxes 63,314,432 209,771,122
Refundable deposits 27.2 16,630,667 8,510,304
Advances to contractors 6,010,562 4,006,750
Restricted cash 4,545,963 16,317,217
Others 4,079,789 10,133,073
471,456,471 574,294,025
Non-current:

Deferred input VAT 9,357,332 26,519,873
Refundable deposits 27.2 7,741,095 4,739,045
Land under litigation 12 4,935,606 4,935,606

Investment in an associate 3,194,282 -
Investment in shares 1,460,849 1,375,290
Cash bond 568,234 568,234
Deposits to suppliers - 3,661,213
Others 2,231,331 2,471,433
29,488,729 44,270,694
P 500,945,200 P 618,564,719

Prepayments include prepaid insurance, rentals and other business taxes.

Restricted cash pertains to bank deposits pledged by Fil-Dragon as security in favor of banks
and financial institutions in the PRC, which provided mortgage loan to purchasers of
properties. Such charges would be released when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. This deposit earns interest based on daily bank deposit
rates (see Note 20.2).

The investment in an associate account represents the carrying amount of investment in
CHMI. CHMI was formally established and registered with the SEC on February 5, 2015.
The original investment of P6.5 million constitutes 50% of CHMI’s outstanding capital stock.

The Group’s share in the net loss of CHMI amounted to P3.3 million and presented as Share
in Net Loss of an Associate under Other Income (Charges) — Net in the 2015 consolidated
statement of income.
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The table below presents information on the financial position and performance of the
CHMI as of and for the period ended December 31, 2015.

Total assets P 4,793,824
Total liabilities 3,880,787
Total equity 913,037
Net loss 6,611,436

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

Short-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are
broken down as follows:

2015 2014
USD RMB Total in PHP USD RMB Total in PHP
BRL $ 2,219,474 ¥ - P 104,683,711 $ 5,273,940 ¥ - P 235307381
Fil-Dragon - 21,100,611 152,458,471 - 84,749,556 609,101,168
$ 2,219,474 ¥ 21,100,611 P 257,142,182 § 5273940 ¥ 84,749,556 P 844,408,549

The Group’s short-term interest-bearing loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounting
to P257.1 million and P844.4 million, respectively, are denominated in U.S. dollar and
Chinese yuan RMB, and are currently due within 12 months after the end of reporting period;
hence, classified as part of the Group’s current liabilities in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

Information relating to significant loan transactions of the Group are as follows:
(a) Loans of BRL

The loans of BRL are secured by the cash surrender value of investment in life insurance
(see Note 7). The loans bear interest at prevailing market rates per annum of 1.6% in
2015, 1.4% in 2014 and 1.3% in 2013. Interest expense arising from these loans
amounted to P2.7 million, P3.2 million and P2.6 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 20.1).

(b)  Loans of Fil-Dragon

In 2011, Fil-Dragon obtained loans denominated in Chinese yuan RMB from companies
that are owned by Solid Company Limited (SCL), a sharcholder owning 19% of the total
shares of Fil-Dragon (see Note 25.7). The loans bear interest at prevailing market rates
per annum ranging from 6.0% to 15.0% in 2015, 2014 and 2013. Borrowing costs
incurred in 2013 relating to these loans amounted to ¥6.8 million (P46.9 million) and are
capitalized as part of Real Estate Inventories (see Notes 10 and 25.7). Borrowing cost
incurred in 2015 and 2014 amounting to ¥7.8 million (P56.6 million) and ¥7.6 million
(P55.0 million), respectively, is shown as part of Interest expense on interest-bearing
loans under Finance Costs account in the 2015 and 2014 consolidated statements of
income (see Note 20.1).

The fair value of loans obtained approximates the carrying values since the interest rates are
repriced at market rates at the end of the reporting period. As at December 31, 2015 and
2014, the Group is not subjected to any covenants relating to the above loans.
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15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Trade payables 251,255 P 413,087,787 P 430,716,156
Accrued dealers’ incentives 101,401,648 94,206,270
Refundable deposits 18,249,826 22,462,909
Advances from customers 16,299,070 32,504,767
Due to a related party 25.5 15,588,734 25,163,043
Accrued expenses 15,154,393 51,870,459
Rentals payable 14,617,857 16,638,726
Deferred output VAT 8,252,624 9,247,138
Withholding taxes payable 4,647,743 5,608,783
Output VAT 3,806,792 5,890,577
Reserve for warranty costs 3,253,200 3,526,235
Retention payable 1,904,673 1,709,557
Other payables 20,466,053 32,846,475

P 636,730,400 P 732,391,095

Accrued dealers’ incentives pertain to rebates awarded to dealers once certain level of sales
were achieved during a particular period.

Accrued expenses include amounts charged for rentals, outside services, salaries and other
operating expenses which remained unpaid as at the end of the reporting periods.

The outstanding deferred output VAT arises from the outstanding receivables on the
Group’s sale of services.

Reserve for warranty costs pertains to amounts recognized by My Solid and SVC for
expected warranty claims on products sold based on their past experience of the level of

repairs and returns.

The movements in the Reserve for warranty costs account are as follows:

Notes 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 3,526,235 P 9,290,348
Provisions for warranty claims 18 902,095 40,456,455
Actual warranty claims ( 1,175,130) ( 43,0606,166)
Reversals 19 - ( 3,154,402)

Balance at end of year P__ 3,253,200 P 3,526,235
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The Group derecognized certain accrued expenses and other payables amounting to

P2.1 million and P15.8 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively, since management believes that
the possibility of cash outflows is remote as the purpose for which the liabilities were
recognized no longer exists. The related Gain on derecognition of liabilities is presented as
part of Other Gains — Net under the Other Income (Charges) — Net section of in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 20.3). There was no similar transaction in 2015.

Other payables primarily consist of payroll-related liabilities and due to government agencies
for unpaid contributions for social security and other benefits of the Group’s employees.

REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS

SMC and Kita have long-term refundable deposits from various tenants amounting to
P19.0 million and P13.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
refundable deposits are remeasured at amortized cost using the effective interest ranging
from 3.05% to 6.13% at the inception of the lease terms. The interest expense recognized
amounting to P0.2 million in 2015 and 2014 and P0.4 million in 2013 is presented as part of
Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 20.1).

The non-current refundable deposits is shown as a separate line item under Non-current
Liabilities section in the consolidated statements of financial position.

COSTS OF SALES, REAL ESTATE SALES, SERVICES AND RENTALS
17.1 Cost of Sales

The details of this account are shown below.

Notes 2015 2014 2013

Merchandise inventoties

at beginning of year 9 P 656,074,999 P 846,213,717 P 406,495,008
Net purchases of merchandise

inventories during the year 18, 25.5 3,856,468,664 3,626,037,578 3,400,761,914
Goods available for sale 4,512,543,663 4,472,251,295 3,807,256,922
Merchandise inventories

at end of year 9 ( 896,356,985) ( 656,074,999) (  846,213,717)
Net provision (reversal of allowance)

for inventory obsolescence 9,18 ( 39,032,895) 38,785,934 22,732,244

18 P 3,577,153,783 P 3,854,962,230 P 2,983,775,449
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17.2 Cost of Services

The following are the breakdown of direct costs and expenses from rendering of services:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Materials, supplies and
other consumables 25.1 P 97,147,412 P 89,083322 P 75,893,537
Salaries and employee benefits 211 66,314,648 53,323,404 52,970,338
Service fees 26.3 60,651,473 54,224,793 53,624,045
Subcontracting services 59,894,407 48,650,916 48,267,737
Outside services 48,801,512 35,097,330 31,139,187
Depreciation and amortization 11 46,974,521 21,794,967 13,860,376
Rentals 27.2 25,120,095 23,145,362 6,941,302
Communication, light and water 20,844,345 15,611,204 15,236,009
Transportation and travel 10,391,314 13,109,575 1,244,466
Repairs and maintenance 4,902,902 6,001,267 7,673,524
Transponder rental and leased line - - 11,756,596
Others 19,260,573 14,155,507 13,896,734
18 P 460,303,202 P 374,197,647 P_ 332,503,851
17.3 Cost of Rentals
The details of this account are as follows (see Note 12):
Notes 2015 2014 2013
Taxes and licenses P 22956,318 P 10,720,113 P 9,337,528
Outside services 11,826,310 8,027,405 7,399,654
Repairs and maintenance 9,314,104 4,563,745 4,069,623
Rentals 27.2 7,353,293 7,353,293 7,353,293
Salaries and employee benefits 21.1 3,554,777 1,039,865 999,943
Depreciation and amortization 11 1,903,617 1,623,687 2,199,631
Others 417,404 2,623,435 3,611,989
12,18 P 57,325,823 P 35951,543 P__ 34,971,661
Others primarily consists of supplies and transportation and travel expenses.
17.4 Cost of Real Estate Sales
The following are the breakdown of direct costs and expenses for sale of real estate:
Notes 2015 2014 2013
Construction costs 18 P 836,387,295 P - P -
Land and land use rights 18 44,027,715 22,179,971 70,127,647
Borrowing costs 14,18 36,523,690 - -
Miscellaneous 8,281,790 - -
18 P 925,220,490 P 22179971 P__ 70,127,647
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OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of operating expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Net purchases of merchandise
inventories 17.1,25.5 P 3,856,468,664 P 3,626,037,578 P 3,400,761,914
Construction costs 17.4 836,387,295

Subcontracting services
Changes in merchandise,

finished goods and

work-in-process inventories
Salaries and employee benefits 211
Advertising and promotions
Outside services
Materials, supplies and other

consumables 25.1
Depreciation and amortization 11
Taxes and licenses
Utilities and communication

Service fees 26.3
Transportation and travel
Land and land use rights 17.4
Net provision (reversal) for

inventory obsolescence 9,171
Rentals 27.2
Borrowing costs 17.4
Repairs and maintenance
Provisions for warranty claims 15
Miscellaneous

207,353,663

126,467,788

244,046,046
240,281,986) 190,138,718 439,718,709)
225,646,424 223,808,616 219,517,826
148,948,033 140,419,774 167,120,420
148,829,489 175,321,773 132,939,229
116,310,895 89,083,322 76,982,915

76,013,702 47,575,708 32,328,211
69,491,359 81,226,435 42,803,859
67,336,289 41,254,412 35,505,747
60,651,473 54,224,793 53,624,045
52,800,901 35,983,040 33,565,112
44,027,715 22,179,971 70,127,647
39,032,895) 38,785,934 22,732,244
37,486,808 60,981,507 43,028,069
36,523,690 . -
16,419,968 23,362,447 22,051,837
902,095 40,456,455 34,108,528
157,971,735 121,279,661 87,171,647
P 5916,947,700 P 5219473807 P 4,161,118,329

2015

2014

These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

2013

Notes
Cost of sales 171
Cost of real estate sales 17.4
Cost of services 17.2
Cost of rentals 17.3

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

P 3,577,153,783
925,220,490
460,303,202

57,325,823
559,990,238
336,954,164

P 3,854,962,630
22,179,971
374,197,647
35,051,543
552,366,111
379,815,905

P 2,983,775,449
70,127,647
332,503,851
34,971,661
451,129,327
288,610,394

P 5,916,947,700

P 5,219,473,807

P 4161,118,329




19.

20.

Gain on sale of

investment property
Fair value gains on

investment property — net
Increase in cash surrender value

of investment in life insurance
Common usage service area
Reversal of provision for penalty
Reversal of reserve for

watranty costs
Gain on settlement of

insurance claims
Miscellaneous

20.1 Finance Costs

Interest expense on
Interest-bearing loans
Impairment losses on trade
and other receivables
Foreign currency exchange losses

Interest amortization on
refundable deposits
Loss on write-off of
trade receivables
Impairment losses on
AFS financial assets
Others
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The breakdown of this account is as follows:

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) — Net

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
12 P 138,520,266 . .
12 87,747,812 52,676,235 23,784,336
7 21,921,474 20,796,230 19,231,829
3,732,705 963,131 -
1,476,161 . .
15 - 3,154,402 938,314
- - 1,546,124
9,625,785 8,450,885 7,835,782
P 263,024,203 86,040,883 53,336,385
Notes 2015 2014 2013
14 P 59,348,521 58,225,272 2,610,444
7 13,180,829 39,421,272 13,599,854
493,499 7,934,423 2,771,014
16 155,895 150,003 388,412
- 294,090 326,860
8 - . 800,000
3,826,826 5,986,941 101,870
P 77,005,570 112,012,001 20,598,454
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20.2 Finance Income

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2015 2014 2013

Interest income from cash

and cash equivalents and

restricted cash 5,13 P 35,504,679 P 9,263,982 P 33327776
Foreign currency exchange gains 32,691,145 3,272,353 15,792,663
Gain on settlement of receivables 7 19,395,000 - -
Gain on redemption of

financial assets at FVTPL 6 1,403,189 13,689,363 1,006,736
Reversal of impairment losses on

trade and other receivables 7 262,770 965,468 6,336,140
Fair value gains on

financial assets at FVTPL 6 260,983 5,750,303 144,292
Reversal of previously written-off

trade and other receivable 7 - 253277 -
Interest income from financing 7 - - 9,301,544

P 89,517,766 P 33,194,746 P__ 65,909,151

Interest income earned by SGI, SMFI, BRL, Starworld, and Interstar from cash and cash
equivalents amounting to P26.0 million in 2015, P9.1 million in 2014 and P23.6 million in
2013 are presented as part of Interest account under the Revenues section in the consolidated
statements of income, as these were generated from the entities’ primary business operations.

20.3 Other Gains — Net

The breakdown of this account is as follows:

Notes 2015 2014 2013

Gain on sale of

property and equipment 11 P 6,685,469 P - P -
Net interest income on

retitement benefit asset 21.2 4,754,859 1,846,008 1,641,760
Proceeds from litigation claims 2,532,114 - -
Proceeds from insurance 1,554,837 - -
Gain on derecognition of liabilities 15 - 2,108,461 15,825,655
Loss on sale of investment property - ( 1,766,286)
Miscellaneous 531,528 994,160 2,057,041

P 16,058,807 P 3182343 P 19,524,456
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

21.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are summarized below

(see Notes 25.8 and 25.9).
Notes 2015 2014 2013
Short-term benefits P 213,467,517 P 210,617,881 P 205,531,568
Post-employment benefits 21.2 12,178,907 13,190,735 13,986,258

18 P 225,646,424 P 223.808,616 P_ 219,517,826

These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Cost of services 17.2 P 66,314,648 P 53323404 P 52,970,338
Cost of rentals 17.3 3,554,777 1,039,865 999,943
General and administrative expenses 149,602,672 140,737,415 139,718,889
Selling and distribution costs 6,174,327 28,707,932 25,828,656

18 P 225,646,424 P 223808,616 P_ 219,517,826

21.2 Post-employment Benefits
(a)  Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

(%)

The Group maintains a funded, tax-qualified, non-contributory post-employment
benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that is legally separated from
the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination with the Group’s
management who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is responsible for
setting the investment policies. The post-employment plan covers all regular full-time
employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of five years of credited service.
The Group’s post-employment benefit plan provides retirement benefits ranging from
100% to 115% of the final monthly salary for every year of credited service.

Explanation of Amonnts Presented in the Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and
the amount of contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the
actuarial valuation reports obtained from an independent actuary in 2015 and 2014.

The components of the retirement benefit asset of SGI and certain subsidiaries at the
end of the reporting periods are shown below.

2015 2014
Fair value of plan assets P 187,905,653 P 186,230,815
Present value of obligation (__70,623,835) ( 63,164,721)

P 117,281,818 P_123,066,094
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The amounts of the retirement benefit obligation recognized by certain subsidiaries at
the end of the reporting periods are shown below.

2015 2014
Fair value of plan assets P 2,463,150 P -
Present value of obligation (__22,202,604) ( 20,705,704)

(P__19,739,454) (P__20,705,704)

The movements in the present value of the retirement benefit obligation recognized in
the books are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 83,870,425 P 94,033,079
Current service costs 12,178,907 13,190,735
Interest costs 3,935,635 4,846,353
Benefits paid ( 3,431,215)* ( 1,592,787)
Remeasurements — actuarial
losses (gains) arising from:

Experience adjustments (  10,795,456) -

Changes in financial assumptions 6,118,553 ( 26,6006,955)

Changes in demographic

assumptions 949,590 -

Balance at end of year P 92,826,439 P 83,870,425

* This amonnt includes benefits paid directly by the SEC, OSSI and My Solid amounting to
P526,683, P253,200 and P1,920,000, respectively.

The movements in the fair value of plan assets of the Group are presented below.

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P 186,230,815 P 181,854,959
Interest income 8,690,494 9,366,444

Return on plan assets (excluding

amounts included in net interest) ( 5,626,689)  ( 6,019,977)
Contributions paid into the plan 1,789,556 2,622,176
Benefits paid by the plan ( 715,373)  ( 1,592,787)

Balance at end of year P 190,368,803 P_186,230,81
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The plan assets consist of the following as of December 31:

2015 2014
Debt securities:
Philippines government bonds P 127,122,059 P 155,215,174
Corporate bonds 19,200,688 16,155,433
Mutual funds 25,466,354 4,783,981
UITF 18,759,495 10,076,227
Others ( 179,793) -

P 190,368,803 P 186,230,815

The fair values of the above debt securities and investments are determined based on
quoted market prices in active markets.

UITF and mutual funds are composed of short-term and money-market funds
denominated in Philippine peso.

The plan assets earned a net return of P3.1 million, P3.3 million and P12.0 million in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Reported in consolidated statements
of income:
Current service cost 21.1 P 12,178,907 P 13,190,735 P 13,986,258
Net interest income 20.3 ( 4,754,859) ( 1,846.008) ( 1,641,760 )

P 7,424,048 P 11,344,727 P 12,344,498

Reported in consolidated statements
of comprebensive income:
Actuarial gains (losses) from:

Changes in experience

adjustments P 10,795,456 P - P 13,751,877
Financial assumptions ( 6,118,553 ) 26,606,955 ( 3,374,665 )
Changes in demographic

assumption ( 949,590) - -

Return on plan assets

(excluding amounts

included in net interest) ( 5,626,689) ( 6,019,977) 1,787,287
Effect of asset ceiling - 33,935,160  ( 4,807,592)

(P_1,899,376) P 54522138 P 7,356,907

Current service cost is presented as part of salaries and employee benefit account under
the General and Administrative Expenses account in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 18).
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The net interest income is included in Other Gains — Net account in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 20.3). Amounts recognized in other comprehensive
income, net of tax, were classified within items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

For determination of the post-employment benefit obligation, the following actuarial
assumptions were used:

2015 2014 2013
Discount rates 5.0% - 5.4% 3.5% - 5.5% 4.0% - 5.0%
Salary increases rate 8.00% 7.00% 9.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average remaining working lives of employees before retirement at the age
of 60 ranges from 3.5 to 35 years for males and 10 to 35 years for females. These
assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of an independent
actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each reporting period by
reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond with terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the post-employment obligation. Other assumptions are
based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical experience.

Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(1) Investment and Interest Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bonds will increase the
plan obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return
on the plan’s investments in debt securities and if the return on plan asset falls
below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan. Currently, the plan has generally
concentrated on investment in debt securities, although the Group also invests in
UITF and mutual funds.

(i) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after
their employment, and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.

(i7i) Inflation Risk

A significant proportion of the defined benefit obligation is linked to inflation.
The increase in inflation will increase the Group’s liability. A portion of the plan
assets are inflation-linked debt securities which will mitigate some of the effects of
inflation.
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Other Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial
assumptions, the Group’s asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retirement plan are described below
and in the succeeding page.

(1) Sensitivity Analysis
The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the defined benefit obligation as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption

2015

Discount rate +/-0.5% P 6,799,635) P 15,481,564

Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 7,665,630 (  12,392,184)
2014

Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 12,535,944) P 14,114,556

Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 14,301,179 (  11,413,997)

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in prepating the sensitivity analysis
did not change compared to the previous years.

(1) Asset-liability Matching Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its Management
Committee, ensures that the investment positions are managed in accordance with
its asset-liability matching strategy to achieve that long-term investments are in
line with the obligations under the retirement scheme. This strategy aims to
match the plan assets to the retirement obligations by investing in long-term fixed
interest securities (i.e., government or corporate bonds) with maturities that match
the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. The Group
actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are
matching the expected cash outflows arising from the retirement obligations.
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In view of this, investments are made in reasonably diversified portfolio, such that
the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the
overall level of assets. A large portion of the plan assets as at December 31, 2015
and 2014 consists of government and corporate debt securities, although the
Group also invests in UI'TF and mutual funds.

(i7i) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions

The plan is currently overfunded by P97.5 million based on the latest actuarial
valuations.

The Group expects to make contribution of P16.7 million to the plan during the
next reporting period.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan

follows:
2015 2014
Within one yeat P 3,130,910 P 603,683
More than one year to five years 5,302,148 6,217,666
More than five years to 10 years 50,961,247 44.111,082
More than 10 years to 15 years 89,331,834 96,871,267
More than 15 years to 20 years 169,887,912 147,445,343
More than 20 years 1,838,193,071 1,431,810,776

P2,156,807,122 P1,727,059,817

e — —

TAXES

22.1 Registration with Economic Zone Authorities and Fil-Dragon Taxation

(a)

()

Registration with Clark Development Corporation (CDC)

Kita, a subsidiary, is registered with CDC under RA No. 7227, The Bases Conversion and
Development Act of 1992, as amended under RA No. 9400, An Act Amending RA

No. 7227, as Amended, Otherwise Known as the Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992,
and for Other Purposes. As a registered business enterprise within the Clark Freeport
Zone, Kita is exempted from national and local taxes and is entitled to tax and duty free
importation of raw materials, equipment, household and personal items. In lieu of said
taxes, Kita is subject to a 5% preferential tax rate on its registered activities. However,
the 30% regular corporate income tax (RCIT) tax rate is applied to income coming
from sources other than Kita’s registered activities.

Registration with Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA)

SMC is registered with the PEZA as an Ecozone Facilities Enterprise at the Laguna
International Industrial Park — Special Economic Zone (LIIP — SEZ). As an Ecozone
Facilities Enterprise, SMC shall lease its building in LIIP — SEZ to PEZA-registered
export enterprises located therein. SMC is subject to 5% tax on gross income earned
on such facilities in lieu of all national and local taxes.
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SMC waived its right to avail of the 5% special tax rate on gross income tax for the
taxable year ended December 31, 2015. As such, SMC reported all its taxable income in
2015 in accordance with the regular corporate income tax rules under the 1997 Tax
Code, as amended, and the related Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) rules and
regulations.

On July 1, 1998, the PEZA approved Starworld’s registration as an Ecozone developer
and operator of the CPIP — Special Economic Zone located at Bo. Parian, Calamba
City. Under the terms of the registration and subject to certain requirements, Starworld
shall be exempt from all national and local taxes and instead will be subject to the

5% preferential tax rate on gross income after allowable deductions.

Fil-Dragon Taxation

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Fil-Dragon is subject to PRC
corporate income tax of 25% on the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision has been provided in the consolidated financial statements in 2015, 2014 and
2013 as Fil-Dragon did not generate any assessable profits. In 2015, Fil-Dragon
recognized tax expense amounting to P214.5 million (see Note 22.2).

22.2 Current and Deferred Taxes

The components of tax expense (income) as reported in the consolidated statements of
income and consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Reported in consolidated statements of income.
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate
income tax (RCIT) at 30% P 252,629,434 P 23255725 P 23,536,894
PRC corporate income tax at 25% 214,541,027 - -
Final taxes at 20% and 7.5% 11,373,538 2,118,018 8,592,626
Minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) at 2% 6,587,196 10,464,465 11,063,933
Preferential tax at 5% 2,062,586 2,317,513 1,921,077
487,193,781 38,155,721 45,114,530
Deferred tax income relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary differences (___327,910,166) ( 60,834,614) ( 211,422)

P 159,283,615 (P__ 22,678,893) P__ 44903,108

Reported in consolidated statements of

comprehensive income:
Deferred tax expense (income) on
remeasurements of defined benefit

post-employment obligation ® 508,268) P 15,481,707 P 2,207,070
Deferred tax expense on changes
in fair value of AFS financial assets 414,000 66,000 1,156,237

e 94,268) P 15,547,707 P 3,363,30
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit (loss) computed at the applicable statutory rate to tax
expense reported in the consolidated statements of income is shown below.

2015 2014 2013
Tax on pretax profit (loss) at 30% P 249,656,567 (P  063,423,096) P 57,126,765
Adjustment for income subjected
to lower tax rates ( 14,790,374) ( 6,141,378) ( 10,493,932)
Tax effects of:
Excess of itemized deductions
over optional standard deduction (  133,754,476) - -
Nondeductible expenses and losses 59,185,631 32,196,473 3,869,521
Unrecognized deferred tax assets (DTA)
from net operating loss
carry-over (NOLCO) and MCIT
and other temporary differences 14,295,227 27,007,912 8,637,590
Nontaxable income ( 7,339,663) ( 4,761,937) ( 2,601,399)
Income of foreign subsidiaty not
subject to taxes ( 7,232,973) ( 6,934,118) ( 6,218,370)
Benefit from previously
unrecognized NOLCO, MCIT
and other temporary differences ( 944,037) ( 1,283,511) ( 5,512,277)
Others 207,713 660,762 95,210

P 159,283,615 (P_ 22,678,893) P__ 44,903,108

The net deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries having a net deferred tax asset position as
of December 31 relate to the following:

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets:

NOLCO P 59,067,267 P 22,499,960
Accrued expenses 30,556,450 32,392,525
MCIT 27,369,486 20,338,677
Allowance for impairment on

trade and other receivables 22,814,658 19,013,913
Allowance for inventory

obsolescence 18,300,158 30,213,350
Unrealized foreign currency loss (gain) 4,258,476 ( 1,218,530)
Retirement benefit obligation 2,853,896 2,827,969
Provision for warranty claims 975,960 1,057,870

Deferred tax assets — net P 166,196,351 P 127125734

= —
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The net deferred tax liabilities of SGI and other subsidiaries which have a net deferred tax
liability position as of December 31 relate to the following:

Deferred tax liabilities — net

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets:

NOLCO P 5,183,576 P 7,017,490
Allowance for impairment on

trade and other receivables 2,359,282 1,761,507
Unamortized past service costs 925,584 1,104,176
Loss on investment in subsidiaries 838,709 838,709
Allowance for inventory

obsolescence 312,182 108,857
MCIT 91,988 821,226
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17 - 1,362,172
Changes in fair value of AFS

financial asset - 174,000
Unearned rent income - 47,083

Deferred tax liabilities:

Fair value gains on investment

property — net (  466,812,439) (  756,438,495)
Accumulated depreciation on

investment property ( 140,599,874) ( 159,517,857)
Retirement benefit asset ( 31,624,672)  ( 33,876,845)
Excess of FV over cost of property ( 14,653,835) -
Unrealized foreign currency gains ( 1,812,794) ( 9,313)
Deferred rent income — PAS 17 ( 1,685,071) ( 213,036)
Changes in fair value of AFS ( 240,000) -
Changes in fair value of financial

assets at FVTPL - ( 1,584,259)

(P_647,717,364)

(P_938,404,585)
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The components of net deferred tax expense (income) reported in the consolidated
statements of income are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Fair value gains on
investment property — net P 289,768,359) P 15,802,871 P 3,409,799
NOLCO ( 35,518,264) ( 29,517,450) ( 432914)
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 11,709,868 ( 11,880,671) ( 6,054,252)
Unrealized foreign currency gains — net ( 7,634,216) ( 2,775,783) 6,966,359
Accrued expenses 6,957,200 ( 17,788,274) 116,834
Benefits from previously unrecognized MCIT  ( 6,456,516) ( 10,063,378) ( 10,810,770)
Allowance for impairment on
trade and other receivables ( 4,398,520) ( 10,723,596) ( 2,081,353)
Accumulated depreciation on
investment property ( 1,849,819) 5,652,610 ( 253,842)
Retirement benefit obligation (asset) ( 984,648) ( 1,042,378) 4,945,352
Deferred rent income — PAS 17 ( 227,395) ( 652,160) 1,717,719
Unamortized past service costs 178,593 232,161 321,314
Provision for warranty claims 81,910 1,729,126 1,407,090
Changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL - 1,584,260 -
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17 - ( 1,414,138) 1,896,896
Refundable deposits - 22,192 -
Change in fair value of AFS - - ( 1,024,237)
Unearned rent income - - 210,312
Unamortized pre-operating expenses - - 54,271
(P__327,910,166) (P__ 60,834,614) (P 211,422)

The deferred tax expense recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income pertains to the tax effect of the changes in fair value of AFS financial assets and
remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit plan (see Note 23.3).

The movements in the Group’s NOLCO and MCIT are as follows:

Original Applied in Applied in Expired Remaining Valid
Year Amount Previous Years Current Year Balance Balance Until
NOLCO:
2015 P 99,706,286 P - P - P - P 99,706,286 2018
2014 157,221,922 - - - 157,221,922 2017
2013 36,638,281 - - - 36,638,281 2016
2012 15,862,462 - - 15,862,462 - 2015
P 309,428951 P P - P 15,862,462 P 293,566,489
MCIT:
2015 P 6,970,739 P - P - P - P 6,970,739 2018
2014 10,352,997 - - - 10,352,997 2017
2013 11,066,107 - - - 11,066,107 2016
2012 222,424 - - 222424 - 2015

P 28,612,267 P - P - P 222,424 P 28,389,843
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Fil-Dragon has incurred tax losses amounting to P138.5 million (¥19.1 million) and

P30.0 million (¥4.3 million) in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Similar to NOLCO, these tax
losses can be applied as deductions from future taxable income of Fil-Dragon. The benefits
from the tax losses which have expiration of five years, were claimed in 2015.

The NOLCO, MCIT and other deductible temporary differences as of December 31 for
which the related deferred tax assets have not been recognized by certain entities in the
Group are shown below.

2015 2014 2013

Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect

NOLCO P 79397,012 P 23,819,104 P 92004878 P 27,601,463 P  70997,903 P = 21,299,371
Unrealized foreign currency gain ( 13,297,033) ( 3,989,110) ( 5,031,816) ( 1,509,545) ( 13,745,572)  ( 4,123,672)
Allowance for impairment loss on

AFS financial assets 3,809,492 1,142,848 - - - -
Retitrement benefit obligation 1,063,827 319,148 2,316,827 695,048 4,686,238 1,405,871
MCIT 928,369 928,369 909,797 909,797 640,139 640,139
Allowance for impairment of

trade receivables 165,422 49,627 844,748 253,424 - -
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 844,748 253,423 165,422 49,627 914,262 274,279
Unearned income - - - - 1,170,000 351,000

P 72,911,837 P 22,523409 P 91,209,856 P 27,999,814 P 04,662,970 P 19,846,988

Except for SMC, the Group opted to claim itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due in 2015, 2014, and 2013. SMC opted to claim optional standard deductions in 2015
while it claimed itemized deductions in 2014 and 2013.

EQUITY
23.1 Capital Stock

The Parent Company has a total authorized capital stock of P5.0 billion divided into
5,000,000,000 shares with P1 par value.

On June 18, 1996, the SEC issued an Ozrder approving the Registration Statement covering
the securities which comprised the Parent Company’s entire authorized capital stock. On
September 4, 1996, the Parent Company’s shares were listed in the PSE and the trading of
offer shares commenced. The Parent Company offered to the public 665,000,000 shares at
an offer price of P5.85 per share. The offer shares consisted of 524,475,000 primary shares
(new shares) and 140,525,000 secondary shares (existing shares).

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Parent Company has issued shares of 2,030,975,000
(with P1 par value), of which, 395,965,704 and 394,465,704 shares are held by the public,
respectively. There are 4,366 and 4,415 holders of the listed shares which closed at P1.13 and
P1.24 per share on December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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23.2 Retained Earnings

The BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends in 2015, 2014 and 2013 as follows:

Date of Stockholders of No. of Shares Amount per
Declaration Record as of Outstanding Share Total
August 7, 2015 August 28, 2015 1,821,542,000 P 0.06 P 109,292,520
August 12, 2014 August 29, 2014 1,821,542,000 0.06 109,292,520
August 8, 2013 August 30, 2013 1,821,542,000 0.06 109,292,520

Retained earnings is restricted in the amount of P115.6 million as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, equivalent to the cost of 209,433,000 shares held in treasury.

23.3 Revaluation Reserves

The components of this account and its movements are as follows:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Remeasurement of
post-employment benefit:
Balance at beginning of year P 26,955,226 (P 12,085,205) (P 17,235,042)
Actuarial gains (loss)
during the year 21.2 ( 1,899,376) 54,522,138 7,356,907
Tax income (expense) 22.2 508,268 ( 15,481,707) ( 2,207,070)
Balance at the end of the year 25,564,118 26955226 ( 12,085,205)

Cumulative translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year 89,361,006 90,686,928 49,374,055
Currency exchange differences
on translating financial
statements of foreign
operations 2 14,380,981 ( 1,325,922) 41,312,873

Balance at end of year 103,741,987 89,361,006 90,686,928

Fair value losses on AFS
financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year ( 95,268,932) ( 95,422,932) ( 95,728,537)
Fair value gains 8 1,380,000 220,000 1,461,842
Deferred tax expense on
changes in fair value of
AFS financial assets 22.2 ( 414,000) ( 66,000) ( 1,156,237)

Balance at end of year ( 94,302,932) ( 95,268,932) ( 95,422 932)

Other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interest 35,000 35,000 35,000

P 35,038,173 P 21082300 ([P__ 16,786,209)
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EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) for profit (loss) attributable to the Parent Company’s
stockholders are computed as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Net profit (loss) for the year attributable
to the Parent Company’s stockholders P 486,807,389 (P 121,266,766) P__ 157,821,890

Divided by weighted average
shares outstanding:
Number of shares issued 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000
Treasury shares (__209,433,000) (__ 209.433,000) (__ 209,433,000)

1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000

Earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted P 027 @ 0.07) P 0.09

There were no outstanding convertible preferred shares and bonds or other stock equivalents
as of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013; hence, diluted earnings (loss) per share is equal to
the basic earnings (loss) per share.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include other companies owned by the Parent Company’s
majority stockholders and the Group’s key management personnel.

A summary of the Group’s related party transactions as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and
for each of the three years in the period ended is summarized below and in the succeeding

pages.

Outstanding
Amounts of Transaction Receivable (Payable)
Related Party Category Notes 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014

Related Parties Under
Common Ownership:
Purchase of mobile phones 25.5 P 2,881,839,025 P3,383,722,069 P3,165472,663 (P  67,026,256) (P 231,208,127)

Advances to suppliers 255 (  174,696,873) 8,629,196 7,264,159 51,950,834 226,647,707
Availment (payment)

of loans 25.7 ( 456,642,697)( 156,946,396) 92,841,796 ( 152,458,471) (  609,101,168)
Interest expense 25.7 56,567,376 54,957,751 46,917,606  ( 16,891,866) ( 8,901,893)
Cash advances obtained 254 36,384,895 ( 44,450,070) 69,759,951 ( 73,258,388) (  36,873,493)
Interest income 25.3,25.6 8,991,695 10,659,395 10,270,326 5,042,015 21,664,409
Lease of real property 252 823,650 4,941,813 15,375,161 93,222 619,066
Cash advances granted 254 ( 27,327,315) 4,245,206 3,102,051 1,653,330 28,980,645
Commissions 25.5 1,800,000 1,800,000 4,366,100 1,800,000 1,800,000
Advances for equipment 25.5 401,786 741,153 2,839,816  ( 7,939) ( 992,122)
Collection of receivables 255 15,588,734 277,483 1,634,470 ( 16,312,002) (  17,168,822)
Purchase of parts 25.1 772,315 4,653,561 31,349,823 ( 10,293,439) (  10,425,847)
Granting (collection)

of business loans 253,256 (  162,688,761) - - 14,000,000 176,688,761

None of the companies under the Group is a joint venture. The Parent Company is not
subject to joint control. Related parties that exercise significant influence over the Parent
Company are AA Commercial, Inc. and AV Value Holdings Corporation.

None of the Group’s outstanding receivables and advances from related parties are impaired.
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25.1 Purchase of Goods

SE Corp. purchases parts and supplies from CPD. Total purchases of parts and supplies
amounting to P0.8 million in 2015, P4.7 million in 2014 and P31.3 million in are recorded as
part of Materials, supplies and other consumables under Cost of Services in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 17.2) while unused parts and supplies are included as part of
Service parts, supplies and others under the Merchandise Inventories and Supplies account in
the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 9). The outstanding liability
arising from these are presented as part of Trade payables under the Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 15).

25.2 Lease of Real Property

SMC leases out certain land and buildings to Avid Sales Corporation (Avid), a related party
under common ownership. Also, SE Corp. leases out its office space to CPD and Avid.
Income from these leases is shown as part of Rentals in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 12). Uncollected billings, on the other hand, form part of Rental
receivables under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured and do not bear any interest.
Based on management’s assessment, all receivables from related parties are fully collectible;
hence, no impairment loss was recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

25.3 Granting of Loans

SMFT grants business loans and other loans to its related parties that bear interests ranging
from 7.5% to 9.0% in 2015, 2014 and 2013. Total interest earned from these loans amounted
to P4.0 million in 2015, P5.0 million in 2014 and P4.9 million in 2013 and is presented as part
of Interest under the Revenues account in the consolidated statements of income. The
outstanding receivables from these business loans are shown as part of Loans receivables
undet the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from business loans as of December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014
Avid P 14,000,000 P 25,000,000
AA Export and Import Corp. (AA Export) - 8,332,060
AA Marine Development Corp. (AA Marine) - 7,847,899
Philippine Prawn, Inc. (PPI) - 7,492,418
Baybayan Farm, Inc. (BFI) - 7,492,418
Kawayan Farm, Inc. (KII) - 7,492,418

P 14,000,000 P _ 63,657,213

In prior years, SMFI granted unsecured business loan to Avid with the original principal loan
amounting to P80.0 million. Principal repayment related to this loan amounted to

P11.0 million in 2015 and P2.0 million in 2014. There was no principal repayment in 2013.
This loan is payable on demand.
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The business loans to AA Export, AA Marine, PP, BFI and KFI were originally repayable
with a lump sum payment in January 2009 of the outstanding principal balance as of
December 31, 2008. On January 12, 2009, SMFI’s BOD approved the extension of the
payment term of the business loan for an additional period of seven years until

December 31, 2015. Also, on August 23, 2012, SMFI’s BOD approved the suspension of
the payment of amortization for the principal amount of these loans; hence, there were no
principal repayments on these loans in 2013. In 2014, principal repayment amounted to
P2.0 million. These loans were fully settled in 2015.

The business loan granted to AA Export is secured by its own shares of stock which are
owned by a related party. All other business loans granted to related parties are unsecured.

There were no impairment losses recognized on the outstanding balances of business loans
to granted to related parties in 2015, 2014 and 2013 based on management’s assessment.

25.4 Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Group grants and obtains unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash
advances to and from related parties owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders
for working capital requirements and other purposes. The outstanding balances of Advances
to Related Parties amounted to P1.7 million and P29.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, while the outstanding balances of Advances from Related Parties
amounted to P73.3 million and P36.9 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

These advances have no definite repayment dates and are generally settled in cash depending
on available resources of the parties involved. No impairment losses were recognized on the
outstanding balances of Advances to Related Parties as management has assessed that such
amounts are fully collectible.

25.5 Transactions with Solid Trading Limited (STL)

SVC earns commission from sales of STL, a company owned by SGI’s majority stockholders,
to customers in the Philippines. Commissions earned are presented as part of Rendering of
Services in the consolidated statements of income. The outstanding balance arising from
these transactions as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are shown as part of Trade receivables
under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 7).

SVC also collects the receivables related to the sales of STL which are payable immediately
upon receipt. Total collections received in behalf of STL in 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted
to P15.6 million, P0.3 million and P1.6 million, respectively. Total obligations arising from
this transaction as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounting to P15.6 million and

P25.2 million, respectively, is presented as Due to a related party under the Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 15).

In 2014, STL paid certain purchases made by SVC amounting to P0.7 million, on behalf of
SVC. Outstanding balance arising from this transaction amounting to P1.0 million as of
December 31, 2014 is presented as part of Trade payables under the Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 15). There
were no similar transaction that took place in 2015.
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My Solid purchases mobile phone inventories from STL. Total purchases amounted to

P2.9 billion in 2015, P3.4 billion in 2014 and P3.2 billion in 2013 and are presented as part of
Cost of Sales in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 17.1). Outstanding
liabilities relating to these transactions amounted to P67.0 million and P231.2 million as of
December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively, and are shown as part of Trade payables under
the Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 15).

My Solid also made advance payments to STL for its future purchase of mobile phone
inventories. The outstanding advances amount to P52.0 million and P226.6 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are presented as part of Advances to
suppliers under Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 7).

25.6 Transactions with SCL

In 2008, BRL granted an unsecured, interest-bearing loan denominated in Chinese yuan RMB
to SCL, a related party owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders, amounting to
P125.1 million (¥17.4 million) which matures on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an annual
interest rate of 6% payable annually with any unpaid interest compounded annually at the
same rate of the principal amount. In 2009, the parties agreed to amend the loan agreement
reducing the annual interest rate to 4% and making the loan payable in U.S. dollar. In 2011,
the parties agreed to increase the annual interest rate to 5% and extend the loan for another
year. In 2014, the parties agreed to further extend the term of the loan to March 31, 2015.
Interest rate was maintained at 5%. In 2015, all of the loan receivable has been collected
which has been used to partially pay the loan obtained from Bank of Singapore.

Interests earned from these loans amounted to P5.0 million in 2015, P5.6 million in 2014 and
P5.4 million in 2013, and is presented as part of Interest account under the Revenues section
in the consolidated statements of income. The outstanding balance of the loan amounting to
P113.0 million as of December 31, 2014, is presented as part of Loans receivables under the
Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014 consolidated statement of financial position
(see Note 7). No impairment loss was recognized on these loans in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
based on management’s assessment.

25.7 Loan Availments

In 2011, Fil-Dragon obtained loans from companies that are owned by SCL. Outstanding
balance from these loans amounted to ¥21.1 million (P152.5 million) and ¥84.7 million
(P609.1 million) as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These loans bear annual
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 6% to 15% in 2015, 2014 and 2013. The
liabilities are unsecured and payable on demand. The amount of loan is presented as part of
Interest-bearing loans in the consolidated statements of financial position. Borrowing costs
incurred in 2013 amounted to ¥6.8 million (P46.9 million) and is capitalized as part of Real
Estate Inventories in the 2013 consolidated statement of financial position (see Notes 10
and 14). Borrowing cost incurred in 2015 and 2014 amounting to ¥7.8 million

(P56.6 million) and ¥7.6 million (P55.0 million), respectively, are shown as part of Interest
expense on interest-bearing loans under the Finance Costs account in the consolidated
statements of income (see Notes 14 and 20.1).
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25.8 Key Management Personnel Compensation

The compensation of key management personnel is broken down as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Short-term benefits P 42,692,723 P 41,905,261 P 42,900,808
Post-employment benefit 3,361,129 3,468,820 3,503,007

P 46,053,852 P 45374081 P 46,403,815

These amounts are shown as part of Salaries and employee benefits under General and
Administrative Expenses account in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 21).

25.9 Transactions with the Retirement Fund

The Group has established a formal multi-employer retirement plan which is administered by
a trustee bank, except for CBHI, My Solid, SGTC and ZTC, whose retirement fund remained
unfunded as of December 31, 2015.

The retirement fund consists of government securities, corporate bonds, UITF and mutual
funds with fair values totaling P190.4 million and P186.2 million, as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively (see Note 21.2). The retirement fund neither provides any guarantee
or surety for any obligation of the Group. The retirement fund also has no investments in
the Parent Company’s shares of stock which are listed for trading at the PSE.

The details of the contributions of the Group and benefits paid out by the plan to employees
are presented in Note 21.2.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS
26.1 Memorandum of Understanding with SPI

On July 1, 2003, SE Corp. entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SPI
for network support services to be performed by the former to the latter. Under the MOU,
SPI authorized SE Corp. to perform in-warranty and out-of-warranty services to customers
in the Philippines for a fee equivalent to a certain percentage of SPI’s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of charge to customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty services shall be shouldered by SPI. In the first
quarter of 2009, SE Corp. and SPI agreed to lower the network support fees to 0.45% of
SPI’s net sales. Subsequently, SE Corp. and SPI agreed that network support fees shall be
fixed at P1.25 million per month effective April 2009. Management believes that the MOU
continues to be effective unless revoked by any of the parties.

Network support fees and in-warranty service fees relating to Sony products amounted to
P80.8 million and P90.5 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are presented as part of
Rendering of Services in the consolidated statements of income. Outstanding balances
arising from these transactions amounted to P5.8 million and P5.5 million as of December
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are included as part of Trade receivables under the Trade
and Other Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).



27.

-75-

26.2 Distributorship Agreement with Sony Corporation of Hong Kong
Limited (Sony HK)

SVC has a non-exclusive Distributorship Agreement (the Agreement) with Sony HK, a
corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of Hong Kong. Under
the Agreement, SVC was designated by Sony HK as its non-exclusive distributor of

Sony products in the Philippines. In addition, SVC shall provide the customers in the
Philippines with repair and parts replacement services, including but not limited to repair and
parts replacement services rendered by SVC which are covered under the 12 month-warranty
period at its own costs and expenses. Management believes that the Agreement continues to
be effective although no formal renewal has been made since 2007.

26.3 Management Agreement with Sky Cable Corporation

SBC and Sky Cable Corporation (SCC) agreed that the management and administration of
the sale, assighment and transfer of its assets, equipment, contracts, permits, licenses and
subscriber base (the “Assets”) of SBC be entrusted to SCC. SCC, as the manager of the
Assets, was given the overall power and responsibilities to handle all aspects necessary to
carry out the administration and operations of the Assets and SBC, to accord the necessary
additional authorizations, should the need arise.

Revenues arising from this transactions amounted to P1.8 million in 2015 (nil in 2014 and
2013) and is presented as part of Rendering of Services under Revenues in the 2015
consolidated statement of income. The outstanding receivable amounted to P1.8 million as
of December 31, 2015 and included as part of Trade Receivables under Trade and Other
Receivables account in the 2015 consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).
The expense related to it is presented as part of Service fees under Cost of Services account
in the 2015 consolidated statement of income (see Note 17.2).

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group:
27.1 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

Certain subsidiaries lease out real estate properties under various non-cancellable lease
agreements with terms ranging from one to ten years. Some of these lease transactions are

subject to 5% to 10% escalation rate. The future minimum lease receivables under these
non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014
Within one year P 45,283,142 P 82,297,563
After one year but not more
than five years 48,757,787 60,208,163
Morte than five yeats 673,905 4,090,127

P 94,714,834 P 146,595,853

Rental income earned from these transactions amounted to P146.1 million, P151.0 million
and P152.0 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are presented as Rentals under
Revenues in the consolidated statements of income.
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27.2 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under non-cancellable operating leases covering several parcels of land.
These leases have terms of 25 years expiring in 2019. Lease payments are fixed for the first
five years. Thereafter, the lease on land is subject to 100% escalation rate every five years
while the lease on land improvements is subject to an annual escalation rate of 10%.

2015 2014
Within one year P 10,729,435 P 22,874,016
After one year but not more
than five years 26,593,770 15,045,179

P 37,323,205 P 37,919,195

Rental expense charged to operations from these operating leases amounted to P7.4 million
each in 2015, 2014 and 2013, and are shown as part of Rentals under Cost of Rentals account
in the consolidated statements of income (see Notes 17.2 and 17.3).

Refundable deposits received in relation to these lease arrangements amounted to

P24.4 million and P13.2 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. These amounts are presented
as part of Other Current Assets and Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 13).

27.3 Estimated Liability for Land and Land Development Cost

The Group has commitment of about P68.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 for
the fulfillment of projects in the development and marketing of CPIP (see Note 10).

27.4 Purchase Commitments

In 2007, ZTC entered into several construction contracts with various suppliers for the
construction of the Tri Towers condominium building (see Note 10). The construction of
Tower 1 and Tower 2 was completed in 2008 and 2012, respectively, while the construction
of Tower 3 was not yet started as of December 31, 2015.

27.5 Possible Impact of Government Project

In 2005, ZTC received a notification from the Urban Roads Projects Office (URPO) of the
Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWH) that the location of the Tri Towers
condominium building project (see Note 10) might be affected by the plans of the National
Government of the Philippines for the construction of the proposed 2nd Ayala Bridge.
However, the URPO stated that it has not yet undertaken the detailed engineering design that
will ascertain if the location of the ZTC’s property will be affected by the road’s right-of-way.

The Group decided to continue the Tti Towers condominium building project despite the
notification received from the DPWH because management believes that the likelihood of a
possible expropriation of the land is remote given the current status of the government
project.
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27.6 Properties Under Development

Fil-Dragon has a commitment for about P54.4 million (3¥7.6 million) as of December 31,
2015, for the construction of the Golden Hill Project (see Note 10).

27.7 Option Agreement

Relative to SBC’s sale of its broadband assets and subscriber base, SGI granted SCC with an
option to purchase SGI'S shares in SBC. The said option is exercisable until December 31,
2013. As of December 31, 2013, SCC has not exercised this option (see Note 26.3); hence,
the Parent Company still holds the ownership interests in SBC.

27.8 Others

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has unused credit facilities amounting to
P866.1 million and P709.0 million, respectively.

There are other commitments, guarantees, litigations and contingent liabilities that arise in the
normal course of the Group’s operations which are not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2015, management is of the opinion that losses, if any, that
may arise from these commitments and contingencies will not have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments. The
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities by category are summarized in Note 29.1.
The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its BOD and focuses on actively securing
the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial
markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate continuous returns.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described in the succeeding page.

28.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically
to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and certain other price risk which result from both
its operating, investing and financing activities.

(a)  Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s foreign
currency denominated trade and other receivables, interest-bearing loans and trade and
other payables, which are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars and Chinese yuan
RMB. The Group also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso
cash flows are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Philippine pesos
at the closing rate are as follows:

2015 2014
U.S. Chinese Yuan U.S. Chinese Yuan
Dollar Renminbi Dollar Renminbi
Financial assets P 92,591,221 P 152,824,103 P 134,695,957 P 249,674,557
Financial liabilities (__76,481,790) (_440,655,210) (_380,841,477) (_787,203,671)
Short-term exposure P 16,109,431 (P287,831,107) (P 246,145,520) (P537,529,114)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit (loss) before tax with
respect to changes in Philippine pesos against foreign currency exchange rates. The
percentage changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in
exchange rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence
level.

2015 2014 2013
Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effectin
Possible Profit Before Possible Loss Before Possible Profit Before
Change in Rate Tax Change in Rate Tax Change in Rate Tax
Php — USD 10.42% P 1,678,603 11.56% P 28,454,422 18.63% (P 49,061,560)
Php — RMB 17.36% ( 49,967,480) 14.07% 75,630,346 21.52% (148,292,096
@ 48,288,877) P_104,084,768 (P_197,353,656)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of
the Group’s foreign currency risk.

(b)  Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents, which are subject to variable interest rates
(see Note 5). All other financial assets and financial liabilities have fixed rates.

The following illustrates the sensitivity of profit (loss) before tax for the year to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of +/-2.03% in 2015, +/-2.31% in 2014 and +/-2.14% in
2013. These changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility

in interest rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months, estimated at 99% level
of confidence. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held

at each reporting date, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other
variables held constant, if the interest rate increased by 2.03%, 2.31% and 2.14%, profit
before tax in 2015 would have increased by P26.8 million, loss before tax in 2014 would have
decreased by 33.4 million and profit before tax in 2013 would have increased by

P49.8 million, respectively. Conversely, if the interest rate decreased by the same
petcentages, profit before tax in 2015 and 2013 would have been lower and loss before tax in
2014 would have been higher by the same amounts.
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(¢)  Other Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its investments carried at fair value

(i.e., financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets). The
Group manages exposures to price risk by monitoring the changes in the market price of the
investments and at some extent, diversifying the investment portfolio in accordance with the
limit set by management.

28.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparties may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from granting
loans and selling goods and services to customers including related parties, placing deposits
with banks and investing in UITF.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position (or in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements), as
summarized below:

Notes 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 2,576,733,713 P 1,623,834,847
Financial assets at FVTPL 6 123,008,280 746,071,954
Trade and other
receivables (excluding
advances to suppliers) — net 7 1,670,427,714 1,779,955,204
Advances to related parties 25 1,653,330 28,980,645
Restricted cash and cash bond 13 5,114,197 16,885,451
Refundable deposits 13 24,371,762 13,249,349
P 4,401,308,996 I 4,208,977,450

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified
cither individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls.
Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports and other
counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. In addition, for a significant proportion of real estate sales, advance payments
are received to mitigate credit risk.

The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired
or past due at the end of each reporting period are of good credit quality.

(a)  Cash and Cash Equivalents and Financial Assets at F1TPL

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at FVIPL in the
consolidated statements of financial position, is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in
the cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which are
insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of
P500,000 for every depositor per banking institution.
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(b)  Trade and Other Receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having
similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in
various industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about
customer default rates, management consider the quality of trade and other receivables
that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Except for trade receivables arising from real estate sales, none of the financial assets
are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements. Trade receivables arising from
real estate sales are secured by industrial lots and condominium units sold to buyets and
are covered by postdated checks.

(¢)  Adpances to Related Parties

The Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure in respect of advances
to related parties. These advances are generally receivable in cash upon demand. These
related parties are considered to be in good financial condition.

Some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due at the end of the reporting period.
Trade receivables and advances to related parties past due but not impaired can be shown as
follows:

2015 2014
Not mote than three months P 51,781,362 P 46,188,160
More than three months but
not more than one year 7,041,902 13,642,967
More than one year - 7,497,623

P 58,823,264 P 67,328,750
There were no other financial assets that are past due as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
28.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity
needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods.
Excess cash is invested in short-term placements and UITF. Funding for long-term liquidity
needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to sell long-term financial assets.
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As of December 31, 2015, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities, which

are presented below.

Interest-beating loans

Trade and other payables
Advances from related parties
Refundable deposits

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 1to5
6 Months Months Years
P 269,414,037 P P -
600,470,971 -
73,258,388 _
- 19,022,892
P 943,14 6 P P 19,022,892

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of December 31, 2014 as

follows:

Interest-beating loans

Trade and other payables
Advances from related parties
Refundable deposits

Current Non-current
Within 6to12 1to5
6 Months Months Years
P 873,532,553 P P -
675,613,595 -
36,873,493 -
- 13,313,947
P _1,586,019,641 P P 13,313,947

The above contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ with the
carrying values of the financial liabilities at the end of reporting period.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

29.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of financial position are shown below.

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other
receivables — net
Advances to related parties
Restricted cash and cash bond
Refundable deposits

Financial assets at FVTPL

AFS financial assets:
Golf club shares — net
Others

2015 2014
Carrying Catrying
Notes Amounts Fair Values Amount Fair Values

5 P2,576,733,713 P 2,576,733,713 P 1,623,834,847 P 1,623,834,847
7 1,670,427,714 1,670,427,714  1,779,955,204 1,779,955,204
25 1,653,330 1,653,330 28,980,645 28,980,645
13 5,114,197 5,114,197 16,885,451 16,885,451
13 24,371,762 24,371,762 13,249,349 13,249,349

4,278,300,716 4,278,300,716 _ 3.462.905,496 3,462,905,496
6 123,008,820 123,008,820 746,071,954 746,071,954
8

13,202,400 13,202,400 8,822,400 8,822,400
634,127 634,127 634,127 634,127
13,836,527 13,836,527 9,456,527 9,456,527

P 4,415,146,063 P 4,415,146,063 P 4,218,433,977 P4, 218,433,977
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2015 2014
Carrying Carrying
Notes Amounts Fair Values Amount Fair Values
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans — net 14 P 269,414,037 P 269,414,037 P 844,408,549 P 844,408,549
Trade and other payables 15 600,470,971 600,470,971 675,613,595 675,613,595
Advances from related parties 25 73,258,388 73,258,388 36,873,493 36,873,493
Refundable deposits — net 16 19,022,892 19,022,892 13,313,947 13,313,947

P 962,166,288 P 962,166,288 P1,570,209,584 P 1,570,209,584

See Notes 2.5 and 2.11 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and policies
for financial instruments is provided in Note 28.

29.2 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

The Group has not setoff financial instruments and does not have relevant offsetting
arrangements. Currently, financial assets and financial liabilities are settled on a gross basis;
however, each party to the financial instrument (particulatly related parties) may have the
option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party
through approval by the respective BODs and stockholders of both parties.

The Group’s outstanding cash advances obtained from other related parties amounting to
P73.3 million and P36.9 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and
presented as Advances from Related Parties account in the consolidated statements of
financial position, can be offset by the amount of outstanding cash advances granted to other
related parties amounting to P1.7 million and P29.0 million as at December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

For financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting agreements
or similar arrangements above, certain agreements between the Group and counterparties
allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both
parties elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and
financial liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the master netting
agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
cash surrender value of investment in life insurance amounting to P591.9 million and
P538.3 million, respectively, and presented as part of Trade and Other Receivables in the
consolidated statements of financial position may be used to settle the outstanding loans of
BRL amounting to P104.7 million and P235.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, and included as part of Interest-bearing Loans in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Notes 7 and 14).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
30.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities and
non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis
and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed
in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three levels based on the
significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:
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The different levels have been defined as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
an entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);
and,

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by using
generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current
market of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the
related credit risk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the
underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

30.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value
The table below shows the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s classes of financial assets

measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

2015
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL 6 P - P 123,008,280 P - P 123,008,280
AFS financial assets 8 - 13,202,400 - 13,202,400
P - P 136,210,680 P - P 136,210,680
2014
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL 6 P - P 746,071,954 P - P 746,071,954
AFS financial assets 8 - 8,822,400 - 8,822400
P - P 754894354 P - P 754,894,354

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has certain unquoted AFS financial assets
amounting to P634,127 that are measured at cost; hence, these assets are not included
within the fair value hierarchy.
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The Group has no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2015 and
2014.

There were neither transfers between Levels 1 and 2 nor changes in Level 3 instruments
in both years.

UITF classified as financial assets at FVTPL and club shares and equity securities
classified as AFS financial assets are included in Level 2 as their prices are not derived
from market considered as active due to lack of trading activities among market
participants at the end or close to the end of the reporting period.

30.3 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is
Disclosed

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of
financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

2015
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 2576,733,713 P P - P 2,576,733,713
Trade and other receivables 7 - 1,670,427,714  1,670,427,714
Advances to related parties 25 - 1,653,330 1,653,330
Restricted cash and cash bond 13 - 5,114,197 5,114,197
Refundable deposits 13 - 24,371,762 24,371,762
P 2,576,733,713 P P1,701,567,003 P 4,278,300,716
Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans — net 14 P - P P 269414,037 P 269,414,037
Trade and other payables 15 - 600,470,971 600,470,971
Advances from related parties 25 - 73,258,388 73,258,388
Refundable deposits - net 16 - 19,022,892 19,022,892
P - P P 962,166,288 P 962,166,288
2014
Notes Level 1 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 1,623,834,847 P P - P 1,623,834,847
Trade and other receivables 7 - 1,779,955,204  1,779,955,204
Advances to related parties 25 - 28,980,645 28,980,645
Restricted cash and cash bond 13 - 16,885,451 16,885,451
Refundable deposits 13 - 13,249,349 13,249,349
P 1,623,834.847 P P 1,839,070,649 P 3,462905,496
Financial 1iabilities
At amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans — net 14 P - P P 844408549 P 844,408,549
Trade and other payables 15 - 675,613,595 675,613,595
Advances from related parties 25 - 36,873,493 36,873,493
Refundable deposits - net 16 - 13,313,947 13,313,947
P - P P 1,570,209,584 P 1,570,209,584

For financial assets with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their

short duration.
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The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in Level 3, which are
not traded in an active market, are determined based on the expected cash flows of the
underlying net asset or liability based on the instrument where the significant inputs required
to determine the fair value of such instruments.

30.4 Fair Value Measurements of Non-financial Assets

The table below shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at
fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31.

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Land and improvements P - P2,209,452,699 P - P2,209,452,699
Building and building improvements - - 443.766,835 443,766,835
P - P2,209,452,699 P 443,766,835 P2,653,219534
2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Land and improvements P - P3,027,198,507 P - P3,027,198,507
Building and building improvements - - 626,681,408 626,681,408
P - P3,027,198,507 P_ 626,681,408 P3,653,879915

The fair value of the Group’s land and improvements and building and building
improvements classified under Investment Property (see Note 12) are determined on the
basis of the appraisals performed by Royal Asia Appraisal Corporation in 2015, Cuervo
Appraisers, Inc. in 2014 and Asian Appraisal, Inc. in 2013, all are independent appraisers with
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraisers in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs
such as the size, age, and condition of the land and buildings, and the comparable prices in
the corresponding property location. In estimating the fair value of these properties,
management takes into account the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the assets in their highest and best use. Based on management assessment, the best
use of the Group’s non-financial assets indicated above is their current use.

The fair value of these non-financial assets were determined based on the following
approaches:

(a)  Fair Value Measurement for Land and Improvements

The Level 2 fair value of land and improvements was derived using the market
comparable approach that reflects the recent transaction prices for similar properties in
nearby locations. Under this approach, when sales prices of comparable land in close
proximity are used in the valuation of the subject property with no adjustment on the
price, fair value is included in Level 2. On the other hand, if the observable recent
prices of the reference properties were adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size, zoning, and accessibility, the fair value is included in Level 3. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the price per square foot; hence, the
higher the price per square foot, the higher the fair value.
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(b)  Fair Value Measurement for Building and Building Improvements

The Level 3 fair value of the buildings and improvements under Investment Property
account was determined using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market
participant to construct an asset of comparable usage, construction standards, design
and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant inputs used in the
valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not limited to,
labor and contractor’s profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs,
electricity and utility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees.
These inputs were derived from various suppliers and contractor’s quotes, price
catalogues, and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated costs
used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of the properties.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the cartying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. The Group’s goal in capital
management is to maintain a debt-to-equity structure ratio of not higher than 1:1 on a
monthly basis.

The following is the computation of the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio:

2015 2014
Total liabilities (excluding advances
from related patties) P 2,219,515,682 P 4,129,138,902
Total equity 10,068,847,607 9.491,279,309
0.22:1.00 0.44:1.00

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,

i.e., equity and liabilities excluding amounts due to related parties. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group is not subject to any externally-imposed
capital requirements, except for SMFI as indicated below.

Under Section 6 of RA No. 8556, SMFI is required to maintain a minimum paid-up capital of
not less than P10.0 million. SMFI is in compliance with the minimum paid-up capital
requirement as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule A - Financial Assets
December 31, 2015

Number of shares of

Amount shown in statement

Value based on market
quotation at end of reporting

Income received and

Name of Issuing entity and assocation of each issue principal amount of . ..
financial position . accrued
bonds and notes period
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company/

Security Bank Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) P 123,008,280 P 123,008,280 260,983
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - Current p - P - -
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - Non-Current

The Country Club 3 P 6,000,000 P 6,000,000 -
Sta. Elena Golf Club 1 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 -
Alabang Country Club 1 2,264,400.00 2,264,400 -
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club 4 2,200,000 2,200,000 -
Philam Properties Corporation 1 272,127 272,127 -
Subic Bay Yacht Club Inc. 1 100,000 100,000 -

P 13,836,527 P 13,836,527 -




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable/Payable from/to Related Parties which are Eliminated During the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Deductions Ending Balance
Name and designation of debtor 'Ba'lance ar i Additions Amounts collected | Amounts written off Current Not current Balance zft end of
beginning of period period
Trade Receivables:
Kita Corporation P 13,600,000 P - P - P - P 13,600,000 P - P 13,600,000
My Solid Devices & Technologies Corporation 4,752,715 2,640,904 - - 7,393,619 - 7,393,619
Solid Electronics Corporation 2,702,880 - 2,519,111 - 183,769 - 183,769
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation 109,177 - 84,565 - 24,612 - 24,612
Omini Solid Services Inc. 6,901,518 - 6,901,518 - - - -
Solid Broadband Corporation - 47,446 - - 47,446 - 47,446
Solid Video Corporation 2,734,906 62,755,492 - - 65,490,398 - 65,490,398
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. 4,213,914 - 4,080,822 - 133,092 - 133,092
Solid Manila Corporation 2,633,654 - 2,431,745 - 201,909 - 201,909
P 37,648,764 P 65,443,842 P 16,017,761 P - P 87,074,844 P - P 87,074,844
Kita Corporation P 465,259,173 - P 21,000,000 - P 444259173 - P 444259173
Zen Towers Corporation 439,507,157 - 23,000,000 - 416,507,157 - 416,507,157
Solid Manila Corporation 417,043,188 - 190,000,000 - 227,043,188 - 227,043,188
Precos, Inc. 149,511,000 - - 149,511,000 - 149,511,000
Solid Manila Finance Inc. 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - - -
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 - - - -
Brilliant Reach Limited 144,452,535 9,905,984 - - 154,358,519 - 154,358,519
Solid Electronic Corporation - 10,333,934 - - 10,333,934 - 10,333,934
My Solid Devices & Technologies Corporation 1,182,000,000 857,400,900 - - 2,039,400,900 - 2,039,400,900
Skyworld 1,145,469 - 1,145,469 - - - -
Laguna International Industrial Park 6,066,841 - 6,066,841 - - - -
Interstar Holdings Corporatin, Inc. 598,204 - 598,204 - - - -
Phil-Nanning Consortium, Inc. 146,650,000 - 146,650,000 - - - -
Solid Video Corporation - 90,000,000 - 90,000,000 - 90,000,000
MyApp Corporation 40,960 - 40,960 - - - -
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation 66,000,000 - 29,000,000 - 37,000,000 - 37,000,000
P 3,039,274,527 P 967,640,818 P 438,501,474 P - P 3,568,413,871 P - P 3,568,413,871




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable/Payable from/to Related Parties which are Eliminated During the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Deductions Ending Balance
Bal: t Bal. t end of
Name and designation of debtor paanceal Additions Amounts collected | Amounts written off Current Not current alance atend o
beginning of period period

Trade payables:
My Solid Devices & Technologies Corporation P 7,211,092 58,726,673 - - 65,937,765 - P 65,937,765
Solid Electronics Corporation 75,398 582,545 - - 657,943 - 657,943
Precos, Inc. - 79,797,900 - - 79,797,900 - 79,797,900
Solid Manila Corporation 3,959,969 - 3,754,281 - 205,688 - 205,688
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation 18,000,000 - 17,366,430 - 633,570 - 633,570
Omni Solid Services Inc. 311,302 6,303,694 - - 6,614,996 - 6,614,996
P 29,557,761 145,410,811 P 21,120,711 P - 153,847,861 - P 153,847,861




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule F - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Companies)
December 31, 2015

Title of issue and type of obligation

Amount authorized by indenture

Amount shown under caption"Current portion of
long-term debt" in related statement of financial
position

Amount shown under caption"Long-
Term Debt" in related statement of
financial position

Loans:

Short term loans

p 152,458,471

P -




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule H - Capital Stock
December 31, 2015

Number of shares held by

Number of shares issued Number of shares
Title of Issue Number 04"' shares and outstanding as shown reserved for opt.mns, Related partics (B) Directors, officers and Others
authorized under the related balance | warrants, conversion and employees
sheet caption (A) other rights
Common shares - P1 par value

Authorized - P5,000,000,000 shares 5,000,000,000

Issued 2,030,975,000

Outstanding 1,821,542,000 1,083,377,816 342,203,480 395,960,704

A: Number of shares issued and outstanding = 2,030,975,000 issued shares less 209,433,000 treasury shares

B: This represents shares held by AA Commercial and AV Value Holdings Corp., related parties which are ultimately owned by the Lim Family.




SOLID GROUP INC.
Schedule I

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year P 810,535,246

Prior Years’ Outstanding Reconciling Items, net of tax ( 375,817)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 810,159,429

Net Profit Realized during the Year

Net profit per audited financial statements 29,994,800
Unrealized foreign exchange gain ( 8,256,553 )
Deferred tax income ( 94,813) 21,643,434

Other Transaction During the Year
Dividends declared ( 109,292,520 )

Retained Earnings Restricted for Treasury Shares ( 115,614,380 )

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at End of Year r 606,895,963




Liquidity Ratios

Current ratio

Acid Test ratio

Solvency Ratios

Debt to Equity ratio

Gearing Ratio

Asset-to-equity Ratio

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

Profitability Ratios

Operating Margin

Net Profit Margin

Return on Total Assets

Return on Equity

SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule J - Financial Soundness Indicators

FORMULA

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Cash & Cash Equivalents + Trade Receivables

FAFVPL + AFS

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities (excluding advances

from related parties)

Total Equity

Financial Debt

Total Equity

Total Assets

Total Equity

EBIT

Interest Expense

Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Revenues

Net Income (Loss) after Tax

Total Revenues

Net Income (Loss) after Tax

Average Total Assets

Net Income (Loss) after Tax

Total Equity

DECEMBER 31, 2015

4.34:1

0.22:1

0.03:1

123:1

15.02:1

12%

10%

5%

7%

DECEMBER 31, 2014

2.31:1

0.44:1

0.09:1

1.44:1

-2.63:1

-3%

4%

-1%

-2%



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule K

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the

Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2015

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics

Qe

Practice Statement Management Commentary

5

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

PFRS 1
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters

SRESARY)

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for
First-time Adopters

©

Amendment to PFRS 1: Government Loans

PFRS 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Qe

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Business Combinations

©

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

SRS

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

©

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

5

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date and
Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Qe O (a6

Amendment to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
(effective when PFRS 9 is first applied)

5

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

©

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments (2014)* (effective Janunary 1, 2018)

5

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendment to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendment to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

Amendment to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture* (¢ffective date deferred indefinitely)

e |a|ele

Amendment to PFRS 10: Investment Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception*
(effective date deferred indefinitely)

5

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendment to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

SRS

Amendment to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations*

(effective January 1, 2016)

©




PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not N.Ot
Adopted | Applicable
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 95
Amendment to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance 95
PERS 12 Amendment to PFRS 12: Investment Entities 5
Amendment to PFRS 10: Investment Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception* =
(effective January 1, 2016) =
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 95
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts* (effective January 1, 2016) 95
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
Presentation of Financial Statements 95
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising o=
PAS1 on Liquidati =
Jiquidation
(Revised) - -
Amendment to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 95
Amendment to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative* (effective Jannary 1, 2016) 5
PAS 2 Inventories 95
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 95
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 95
PAS 10 Events After the Reporting Period 5
PAS 11 Construction Contracts 95
Income Taxes 95
PAS 12
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 95
Property, Plant and Equipment 5
PAS 16 Amendment to PAS 16: Bearer Plants* (effective January 1, 2016) 95
Amendment to PAS 16: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and o=
Amortization* (effective January 1, 2016) =
PAS 17 Leases 95
PAS 18 Revenue 95
PAS 19 Employee Benefits %
(Revised) | Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions 5
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance 95
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 5
PAS 21
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 95
PAS 23
i S5
(Revised) Borrowing Costs 29
PAS 24 .
(Revised) Related Party Disclosures
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 5
Separate Financial Statements 95
PAS 27 Amendment to PAS 27: Investment Entities 95
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements* =
(effective January 1, 2016) =
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 5
Amendment to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
PAs28 |\ o o definiteh ©
(Revised) ssociate or Joint Venture* (effective date deferred indefinitely)
Amendment to PAS 28: Investment Entities - Applying the Consolidation Exception* (effective o=
\January 1, 2016) =
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 95




PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not N.Ot
Adopted | Applicable
Financial Instruments: Presentation 95
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising >
PAS 32 on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues 95
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 5
PAS 33 Earnings Per Share 95
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 5
Impairment of Assets 95
PAS 36
Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets er)
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 5
Intangible Assets 5
PAS 38 Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and o=
Amortization* (effective January 1, 2016) =
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 5
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial >
Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions er)
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option 95
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts er)
PAS 39 Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets 95
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective Date o=
and Transition =
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives 5
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items 95
Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting s
PAS 40 Investment Property 95
Agticulture 5
PAS 41
Amendment to PAS 41: Bearer Plants* (effective Jannary 1, 2016) 95
Philippine Interpretations - International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities**
IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments or)
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease er)
IFRIC 5 nghts‘t‘o l'nterests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 3
Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Llab‘llmes Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic 3
Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applymg the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 3
Economies
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives** er)
IFRIC 9
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives** %
IFRIC 10 |Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment %
IFRIC 12  |[Service Concession Arrangements %
IFRIC 13  |Customer Loyalty Programmes %




PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted A dlj;))tte d Ap}:IiZZble
PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 3
IFRIC 14 Interaction
Amegdments to Phil%ppine lnt?rpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding 3
Requirement and their Interaction**
IFRIC 16 |Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 5
IFRIC 17 |Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners** 5
IFRIC 18 |Transfers of Assets from Customers** 95
IFRIC19 |Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments** 3
IFRIC 20  |[Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine** 95
IFRIC 21 |Levies 5
Philippine Interpretations - Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro 95
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities 5
SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers 5
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives 5
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders** 5
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease 95
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures 5
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services** 5
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs** 95

* These standards will be effective for periods subsequent to 2015 and are not early adopted by the Company.

** These standards have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements but the Company has no significant transactions covered

in both years presented.




Map Showing the Relationships Between and Among the Company and its Related Parties

Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries

Solid Group Inc (SGI)

Omni Solid Services, Inc. Solid Group Technologies . e . . . Precos Inc.
(0SSI) 4 Corp. (SGTC) Zen Towers Corp. (Zen) Solid Broadband Corp. (SBC) Solid Video Corp. (SVC) Kita Corporation (Kita) (Precos)
Solid Manila Corporation Solid Electronics Corporation Solid Manila Finance, Inc. MyApp Corporation My S.olid Technolog‘ies. & Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL)
(SMC) (SEC) (SMFT) (MyApp) Devices Corp. (MySolid)
75% 73% 50%
Skyworld Corporation Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. O GO Creauve.HotHouse Phil-Nanning Consortium,
(Skyworld) (CBHI) I I D Manila, Inc. Inc.(PNCI)
*October YE CEN (St tan) (CHMI)
20% 22.5% 51%
Starworld Corporation Laguna International Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real
(Starworld) Industrial Park, Inc.(LIIP) Estate Development, Limited
40% *October YE *October YE 37.5% (Fil-Dragon)

Legend:

100% ownership
~ Less than 100%

ownership




©)

®)

(8)
(9)

(10)

(13)
(16)
(18)

(19)

(20)
(21)

(29)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Form 17-A

Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation
or Succession

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, including
Indentures

Voting Trust Agreement
Material Contracts

Annual Report to Security Holders, Form 17-Q or Quarterly
Report to Security Holders

Letter re Change in Certifying Accountant
Report Furnished to Security Holders
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Published Report Regarding Matters Submitted to Vote of
Security Holders

Consent of Experts and Independent Counsel
Power of Attorney

Additional Exhibits

Audited Financial Statements (AFS) of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Redl

Estate Development Limited for the period December 31, 2015

Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2015

Page No.

68

These Exhibits are either not applicable to the Company or require no answer.
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EXHIBIT9 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts that are not made in the ordinary course of business entered into
by the Company and its subsidiaries during the year.
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EXHIBIT 18 SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Solid Group Inc. has thirteen consolidated subsidiaries, each of which is wholly owned, as
follows:

Name Jurisdiction
Solid Video Corporation Makati City, Philippines
Kita Corporation Clark, Pampanga, Philippines
Omni Solid Services Inc. (formerly Solid Binan, Laguna, Philippines
Laguna Corporation)
Solid Electronic Corporation Balintawak, Quezon City, Philippines
Solid Manila Corporation Manila, Philippines
Solid Manila Finance Inc. Makati, Philippines
Solid Broadband Corporation Makati, Philippines
Brilliant Reach Limited British Virgin Islands
Zen Tower Corporation Manila, Philippines
Precas, Inc. Makati, Philippines
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation Paranaque, Philippines

MySolid Technologies & Devices Corporation  Makati, Philippines

MyApp Corporation Makati, Philippines
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Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited
(established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited
(the “Cornpany”) set out on pages 3 to 23, which comptise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 2
summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company ate responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or ettot.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards ot accept lability to any othet person for the contents of this teport.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical tequirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.




GrantThornton 2
2[5

Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves petforming ptocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the tisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethet
due to fraud ot error. In making those tisk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedutes that ate appropriate in the citcumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the ditectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for out audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accotdance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

VGrant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

24 March 2016

Lin Ching Yee Daniel
Practising Cettificate No.: P02771
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Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2015
Notes 2015 2014
RMB RMB
Revenue 5 242,478,822 -
Cost of sales (82,376,146) -
Gross Profit . 160,102,676 -
Other income 6 274,654 92,952
Selling and distribution expenses (30,669,219) (4,161,959)
Administrative and other operating expenses (27,703,105) (8,052,343)
Finance cost 7 (7,810,428) (7,588,686)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 8 94,194,578 (19,710,036)
Income tax expense 10 (29,622,326) -
Profit/(loss) and totai other comprehensive :
income/(expense) for the year 64,572,252 (19,710,036)

The notes on pages 7 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015

Notes 2015 2014
RMB RMB
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 126,456 191,595
Current assets
Stock of properties 12 182,496,541 263,404,202
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 13 18,868,926 32,612,201
Income tax recoverable 4,908,844 22,224,286
Restricted cash 15 629,172 1,365,955
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,395,675 761,242
208,299,158 320,367,886
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 31,779,487 21,108,279
Receipt in advance from customers 74,556,956 199,882,375
Loan from related companies 18 21,100,611 84,749,556
Amounts due to directors 14 5,850,000 4,252,963
133,287,054 309,993,173
Net current assets 75,012,104 10,374,713
Net assets 75,138,560 10,566,308
EQUITY
Paid in capital 19 50,000,000 50,000,000
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses) 25,138,560 (39,433,692)
Total equity 75,138,560 10,566,308

—< P

Director (/

Director

'The notes on pages 7 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Guangyt Fil-Dragon Resl Estate Development Limited

Finanolal stalaments for the ysar endsd 31 Decarnber 2018

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax 94,194,578 (19,710,036)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 65,139 71,087
Write down of stock of properties to net realisable value 24,294,728 -
Interest income (70,836) (35,543)
interest expenses 7,810,428 7,588,686
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 126,294,037 (12,085,806)
Decrease in stock of properties 56,612,933 16,397
Decrease/(Increase) Increase in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 13,743,275 (15,718,085)
Increase in restricted cash as guarantee for construction of :
projects and other operating activities 736,783 (521,611)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 10,671,208 (11,746,405)
(Decrease)/Increase in receipt in advance from customers (125,325,419) 31,849,379
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 82,732,817 (8,206,131)
PRC corporate income tax paid (12,306,884) (5,089,698)
Interest paid - (7,588,686)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 70,425,933 (20,884,515)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (27,998)
Interest received 70,836 35,543
Receipts/(Payment to) from directors 1,597,037 (6,114,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 1,667,873 (6,106,455)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loan from related companies 3,800,000 72,854,000
Repayment of loan from related companies (75,259,373) (49,946,878)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (71,459,373) 22,907,122
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 634,433 (4,083,848)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 761,242 4,845,090
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,395,675 761,242

The notes on pages 7 to 23 ate an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Retained
earnings/
(Accumulated Total
Paid in capital losses) equity
RMB RMB RMB
Balance at 1 January 2014 50,000,000 (19,723,656) 30,276,344
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the
year - (19,710,036) (19,710,036)
Balance at 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015 50,000,000 (39,433,692) 10,566,308
Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year - 64,572,252 64,572,252
Balance at 31 December 2015 50,000,000 25,138,560 75,138,560

The notes on pages 7 to 23 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company established and domiciled in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
The address of its registered office is 16 Zhujin Road, ASEAN Commercial Park, Nanning
City, Guangxi Province, PRC.

The Company is controlled by Phil-Nanning Consortium, Inc., a company registered in the
Philippines. The ultimate patent of the Company is Solid Group Inc., a company registered
in the Philippines and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The Company is ptincipally engaged in the property development in the PRC.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved for issue by
the board of directors on 24 March 2016.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 3 to 23 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Repotting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and all applicable individual Intetnational
Accounting Standards and Intetpretations as originated by the Board of the
International Accounting Standards Committee and adopted by the IASB. The
Company also prepares a set of statutory financial statements in accordance with
the relevant accounting principles and regulations applicable to PRC enterprises.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepated on the historical cost basis. The
measurement basis is fully desctibed in the accounting policies below:.

The financial statements have been presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also
the functional cutrency of the Company.



Guangyi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited &

Financial sfaterments for the yvear ended 31 Decambser 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

2.2

23

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used in
preparation of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of cutrent events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Property, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impaitment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comptises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives for the cutrent and comparative petiods are as

follows:

Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles . 5 years

The assets’ residual values, depteciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss atising on retirement or disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs ate included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as apptoptiate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial petiod in which they are incurred.

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
depending on the putpose for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and approptiate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases of
financial assets are recognised on trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fait value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occuts when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments expire or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whethet there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is
determined and tecognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that ate not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral patt of
the effective interest rate and transaction cost. Interest is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to determine whether there is

any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Company about one or more of the
following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest ot principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reotrganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.



Guesngxl Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited 10
PR S R IR A
statwnenis for the vear erled 31 December 2018

Financla

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include observable data

indicating that thete is a measurable dectease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such obsetvable data includes but not limited to
adverse changes in the payment status of debtots in group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impaitment loss is measured and recognised as
follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
cattied at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s cattying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future ctedit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the petiod in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent petiod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit ot loss of the period in which the reversal

occutrs.

Impairment losses on financial assets are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Stock of properties

Stock of propetties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and, in case of properties undet development
for sale, anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of propetty under development for sale comptises construction
costs, cost of land use rights, botrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Stock of properties ate classified as cutrent assets unless those will not be realised
in one normal operating cycle.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short term highly
liquid investments with otiginal maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are included in “restricted cash”.
Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows.

Financial liabilities

‘The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, receipt in
advance from customers, loan from related companies and amounts due to
directors. They are included on the face of the statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities ate recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related charges are recognised

in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for botrowing costs (see note
2.10).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability is

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables, receipt in advance from customers, loan from related
companies and amounts due to ditectors are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amottised cost, using the effective interest method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fait value of the consideration received or receivable for
sale of properties, net of discount. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and specific ctitetia have been met as described
below, and the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Revenue from sales of propetties is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is when the construction of
relevant properties has been completed and the properties have been deliveted to
the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement and collectibility of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income is tecognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment ate subject to impairment testing and are tested for
impairment whenever thete are indications that the asset’s cattying amount may
not be recovetable.

An impairment loss is tecognised as an expense immediately for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fait value, reflecting market conditions less costs of
disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
cutrent market assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impaitment, where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest gtoup of assets that generate cash inflows
independendy (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets ate tested
individually for impaitment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units is chatrged pro rata to the
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Impairment loss is teversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation ot amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined contribution plans.

The employees of the Company ate required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the relevant local municipal government in PRC. The
Company is required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as employees render
setvices during the year. The Company’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed petcentage contributions payable.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

2.1

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incutred, net of any investment income earned on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition, construction ot
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial petiod of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepate the asset for its intended use or sale are
being undertaken. Capitalisation of bortowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to ptepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comptises current and deferred taxes.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comptise those obligations to, or claims
from, tax authorities relating to the cutrent or prior reporting period, that ate
unpaid at the end of the reporting petiod. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal petiods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets ot liabilities are
recognised as a component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferted tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable tempotary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporaty differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporaty differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ate not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
labilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable not accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to
apply in the petiod the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or labilities are recognised in profit or loss, ot in
other comprehensive income or ditectly in equity if they relate to items that ate
charged to other comptehensive income or credited directly in equity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

212

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented net if, and only if,

(a) the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Company presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities net if, and

only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax Habilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the defetred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

Related parties
() A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Company if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; ot

(ifi) is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, éubsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (ot an
associate ot joint venture of a member of a group which the other entity
is a member).

(iify Both entity are joint ventures of the same thirty party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity. ' '

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Company ot an entity related to the Company.

(vi) The entity is controlled ot jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a petson are those family members who may be
expected to influence, ot be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs

In the cutrent year, the Company has applied for the first time, all amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB, which are televant to and effective for the Company’s financial
statements for the annual petriod beginning on 1 January 2015. The adoption of these new
standards had no material impact on how the results and financial position for the current
and prior petiods have been prepated and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, cettain new and amended IFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Company.

The directors are in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these IFRSs on
the financial statements of the Company in their initial application.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of futute events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Net realisable value of stock of properties
Management’s assessment of net realisable value of stock of properties tequires the

estimates of future cash flows to be detived from these properties. These estimates requires
judgement as to the anticipated sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing costs (including price discounts
required to stimulate sales) and, in case of properties under development for sale, the
expected costs to completion of properties, the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. Details of stock of properties are set out in note 12.

Revenue recognition
The Company has recognised revenue from the sale of propetrties held for sale as disclosed

in note 2.7. The assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to purchasets requires the examination of the circumstances of the
transactions. In most cases, the transfer of tisks and rewards of ownership coincides with
the transfer of the legal title or the passing of possession to the buyer or a completion
certificate is issued by the relevant government authotities. The Company believes that its
recognition basis of sales is approptiate and is the current practice in China.

REVENUE
The Company’s principal activity is disclosed in note 1 to these financial statements.

2015 2014
RMB RMB

Sales of properties 242,478,822 -
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OTHER INCOME
2015 2014
RMB RMB
Reversal of provision for penalty 203,818 -
Bank interest income 70,836 35,543
Sundry income - 57,409
274,654 92,952
FINANCE COSTS
2015 2014
RMB RMB
Interest charges on:
Loan from related companies 7,810,428 7,588,686
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
Profit/ (loss) before income tax is atrived at after charging:
2015 2014
RMB RMB
Depreciation 65,139 71,087
Write down of stock of properties to net realisable
value (note 12) 24,294,728 -
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
2015 2014
RMB RMB
Wages, salaries and other benefits 1,622,679 1,744,037
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 105,909 87,420
1,728,588 1,831,457
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, the Company is subject to PRC
cotporate income tax of 25% (2014: 25%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/ (loss) at applicable tax rate:

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Profit/(loss) before income tax 94,194,578 (19,710,036)
Tax at PRC corporate income tax rate of 25%

(2014: 25%) 23,548,645 (4,927,509)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,073,681 2,038,395
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences - 36,718
Others - 2,852,396
Total income tax expense 29,622,326 -

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture Motor
equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
RMB RMB RMB RNMB
At 1 January 2014
Cost 247,275 99,761 598,712 945,748
Accumulated depreciation (180,619) (89,786) (440,659) (711,064)
Net book amount 66,656 9,975 158,053 234,684
Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount 66,656 9,975 158,053 234,684
Additions 27,998 - - 27,998
Depreciation (25,250) - (45,837) (71,087)
Closing net book amount 69,404 9,975 112,216 191,595
At 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015

Cost 275,273 99,761 598,712 973,746
Accumulated depreciation (205,869) (89,786) (486,496) (782,151)
Net book amount 69,404 9,975 112,216 191,595
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 69,404 9,975 112,216 191,595
Depreciation (22,226) - (42,913) (65,139)
Closing net book amount 47,178 9,975 69,303 126,456
At 31 December 2015
Cost 275,273 99,761 598,712 973,746
Accumulated depreciation (228,095) (89,786) (5629,409) (847,290)

Net book amount 47,178 9,975 69,303 126,456
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12.

13.

14.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Completed properties held for sale 182,496,541 263,404,202
Comprise of:
Land use rights 11,268,035 15,318,050
Construction costs and capitalised expenditures 177,618,643 225,138,625
Interest capitalised
Balance at 1 January 22,947,527 22,947,527
Recognised in cost of sales (5,042,936) -
Balance at 31 December 17,904,591 22,947,527
Write down of stock of properties to net realisable
value (note 8) (24,294,728) -

Stock of propetties with a value of RMB58,481,800 (2014: nil) are carried at net realisable
value, this being lower than cost.

Stock of propetties included leasehold interests in land located in the PRC with lease terms
expiting in 2077.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2015 2014

RMB RMB
Other receivables and deposits 4,449,713 3,984,952
Prepaid business taxes and other taxes 14,419,213 28,627,249
18,868,926 32,612,201

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values of other receivables are not
materially different from theit cartying amounts because these amounts have short maturity
petiods on their inception.

At each reporting dates, the Company reviews receivables for evidence of impairment on
both an individual and collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on other
receivables for the yeats ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. No amounts in relation to
other receivables were past due at the reporting date (2014: nil).

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS
The amounts due are unsecuted, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of the amount due approximates its fair values.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

RESTRICTED CASH

2015 2014
RMB RMB

Deposit pledged against mortgage loans
granted to the purchasers of properties Note 692,172 1,365,955

Note:

The bank deposits wete pledged as security in favour of banks and financial institutions in
the PRC which provided mottgage loan to putchasers of properties for the period from the
date of draw-down of mottgage loans to the date when the certificates for housing
ownership and cettificates of others’ interest for housing ownership (collectively known as
“Certificates™) are granted to the property purchasers. Such charges would be released when
the Certificates are granted to the propetty purchasers. This deposit earns interest at floating
tates based on daily bank deposit rates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) are placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible cuttency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Company is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authotised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2015 2014

RMB RMB

Trade payables — third parties 29,441,613 19,869,681
Other payables and accrued charges 2,337,874 1,238,598
31,779,487 21,108,279

All amounts are short term and hence the cattying values of the Company’s trade and other
payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

LOAN FROM RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-bearing at 15% (2014:
15%) per annum. The cartying amounts approximate their fair values. The related
companies are controlled by a shareholder of the Company.

PAID IN CAPITAL

2015 2014
RMB RMB

Registered and paid in capital 50,000,000 50,000,000
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20.

21.

22,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Contracted but not provided for - 7,576,000

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, during the year, the Company had the following material transactions with
related parties:

21.1  Details of the transactions between the Company and its related parties are
summarised below.

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Companies in which a shareholder of the
Company have beneficial interests
Interest expense 7,810,428 7,588,686

21.2 Key management personnel remuneration
Key management of the Company are members of the board of directors as well as
certain seniotr management personnel. Included in staff costs are key management
personnel remuneration which includes the following expenses:

2015 2014
RMB RMB

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 676,835 605,958
Pension costs ~ defined contribution plans - -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in its
otdinaty coutse of operations and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
foteign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In light of the simplicity
of the operations, the risk management of the Company is carried out by the board of
directots ditectly. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company’s financial petformance. The Board discusses principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
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22, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

221

22.2

22.3

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial position relate to the
following categoties of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2015 2014
RMB RMB
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Other receivables and deposits 4,449,713 3,984,952
Restricted cash 629,172 1,365,955
Cash and cash equivalents 1,395,675 761,242
6,474,560 6,112,149
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 31,779,487 21,108,279
Loan from related companies - 21,100,611 84,749,556
Amounts due to directors 5,850,000 4,252,963
58,730,098 110,110,798

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency tisk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The management considers that the Company is not exposed to foreign cutrency
risk as all of the transactions, monetaty assets and liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the tisk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the matket interest rates. The
Company’s interest tate risk atises primatily from bank balances and botrowings.
Borrowings bear fixed rates and the exposute to interest rate risk is minimal. The
exposure to interest rates for the Company’s short term bank deposits is
considered immaterial.
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

224

22.5

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the countetparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the tetms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from its investing activities.

The Company’s maximum exposute to credit risk on recognised financial assets is
limited to the catrying amount at the reporting date as summarised in note 22.1

above.

In respect of credit risk associated with other receivables, management closely
monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the collectability of other receivables
periodically. The ctedit risk for liquid funds is considered negligible as the
counterparties are reputable international banks with high quality external credit
ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
ot another financial asset. The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables and its financing obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor cutrent and
expected liquidity requitements and ensute that the Company maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from related companies
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Analysed below is the Company’s temaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities as at the repotting date. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date when the
Company is required to pay. Where settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the eatliest period in which the Company is
committed to pay.
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22, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)
22.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

Total
Within contractual
1 year or undiscounted Carrying
on demand cash flow amount
RMB RMB RMB
2015
Trade and other payables 31,779,487 31,779,487 31,779,487
Loan from related companies 24,265,703 24,265,703 21,100,611
Amounts due to directors 5,850,000 5,850,000 5,850,000
61,895,190 61,895,190 58,730,098
2014
Trade and other payables 21,108,279 21,108,279 21,108,279
Loan from related companies 97,461,989 97,461,989 84,749,556
Amounts due to directors 4,252,963 4,252 963 4,252,963

122,823,231 122,823,231 110,110,798

22.6 Fair values
The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are not
matetially different from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short
term maturity of these financial instruments.

23. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risks.

The Company actively and regulatly reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM - ACGR

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Report is Filed for the Year: 2015

Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter: SOLID GROUP INC.

Address of Principal Office: Postal Code: 1231
2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue, Makati City, Philippines

SEC Identification Number : 845
(SEC Use Only)

Industry Classification Code

BIR Tax Identification Number:  000-508-536-000

Issuer’s Telephone number, including area code: (632) 843-15-11

Former name or former address, if changed from the last report: Not Applicable



A. BOARD IM AT TERS . ... e e et e ettt et e s e e e e eee sttt eee et easaaa e eeeeeaassaaaseaeeeenssaansseeereennnnnnnsnns 4
1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(a) Composition Of The BOArd........ccccccueeiiiiieie et e e e e bae e e s eane e e e snreeas 4
(b) Corporate Governance POLICY/IES .....ccceeiieieiiie e eieeeeee et etee et e sre e s e sbe e sbe e e reeeeane 4
(c) Review and Approval of Vision and ViSioNn .........ccceeciiiiiie e sciee et 5
(d) Directorship in Other COMPANIES .....coccveiiiiiiiiee et e e seabe e e s erre e e e eaneeens 5
(e) Shareholding in the COMPANY .....ccccieiiiiiiiie et e e e e ae e eane 8
2) CHAIRMAN AND CEO ....uviiiiiiiriieiiieeeeeeteeeseitteeesetreessetaeeesasbaeessastaeesssseeesasssesssassesessnssssesastesessnssneesans 8
3) PLAN FOR SUCCESSION OF CEO/MANAGING DIRECTOR/PRESIDENT AND TOP KEY POSITIONS...9
4) OTHER EXECUTIVE, NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS......ccceeitrreeeerreeeeereee e 9
5) CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ....ouiiiiitiiiiiittiie e ctteeeeettee e eestreessbae s e seabesessnbesessnbaeeesennaeens 11
6) ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM ....coctiiiiittiie e ctteee e sttt settre e seavaee s sabae e seaban e s snree e s snnns 16
B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS..........ccttiiiiieei ittt e e e e s sntaee e e e e e s s e snnnae e e e e e s s ennnnnneeeeens 18
1) POLICIES «.ttiiei ittt ettt ettt e s ettt e et e e e b e e e s sab e e e e s ea b e e e e sbbe e e s eabbeeesasbeeeesasbeeesaabbeeesanbeeessbbenessnbaeeenans 18
2) DISSEMINATION OF CODE .....vviiiiiieieeictieee e ettt e s eitteeeeetreessbaeeessabaeessesbeeessasseeessnsseeesensseessesnseessnnens 19
3) COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ....uvtiiiiiieieiitteee e eitee e eebee e s sesbaeessbae s e s ssbaeessasbeeessbbesessabseeesesbaeessassseessnnens 19
4) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ....oviiiiitiiieiiieeeecttee e e eire e s eetteeesebaeessenbeeessnbaeeesenbseesssseeessnnneeesennns 19
(2) POlICIES AN PrOCEAUIES ...eiciivviiiicitieie sttt e et e e ebre e s sb e e e s eabae e e seabe e e s sbbeeessnbreeesannns 19
(o) I OeT Y [Tet o Y =T =T RSP 21
5) FAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS ...ooiiiitiieiitreie ettt saree s 22
6) ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION ...vviiiiittiieiiitieeeeeteeeeeesteeessssbeeessbeesssnbeesssabsessssnsasessnssesessnnsenas 23
C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANC E..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e s s st e e e e e e e s s e s aa e e e e e e s seesnnsaaeeeeeeeennnsrnenes 23
1) SCHEDULE OF IMEETINGS.....cciiitiiiiiitiiieicitiee e e eteee s seateeesebre e e s eabaesssabbesessnbaeeesasbsesesasbesessasbanessnreneesans 24
2) DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS.....ciiiiittiieiittieeeiitteeesetteeesesteeesssasesessabeeessntesessnsnneesennenens 24
3) SEPARATE MEETING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS......cuttiiiriieeiitteee e ctre e e cetee e eenveeessnbae e e senree s 24
4) QUORUM REQUIREMENT ..iiiicttteeiiitieeeeetrteeseteeessetreeeseisseessasbeeessnsseeesesbaeessassesessssesessnssesesansesessnsens 24
5) ACCESS TO INFORMATION. .. uttiiiiitiiieieteie s iitieeeeetre e e sesbeeesssate s e sasbesessbbeeessabseeesesbasesssbeeessbseeesasrenens 24
6) EXTERNAL ADVICE......cicititieictteeeeeitteeeseteeessetteeeseisaeessasbeeessbaeeesasbseessasbeeesasseeesasseeesasbesesansaeeesassenens 25
7) CHANGES IN EXISTING POLICIES.....ceciiitteeiieieeeeeitteeeeetreeeeeteeesseateeessabaeessenbeeessnseeesensneessessenessnnsens 25
D. REMUNERATION IMATTERS......oooeeiiiiiiiiiie e e ettt e e e e et e it e e e e e e e eaaaa e e e eeeeansaan e aaseeeensnnnnssaaaenes 25
1) REMUNERATION PROCESS .....ccutiieiiitteieeeitteeeeeieeesseteeesessreesssabasessasbeeesssseeesassssessassssessnssesessnsesesns 25
2) REMUNERATION POLICY AND STRUCTURE FOR DIRECTORS......coiiiitriieeitieieccireee e eerreee e sireeeeenree e 26
3) AGGREGATE REMUNERATION ......utiiiiiieieeiitteeeeeitreeeeeteeessesreeesssbaeesssteeesssaeeesessasessassesessnsseeesanssees 26
4) STOCK RIGHTS, OPTIONS AND WARRANTS .. .uitiiictiiie ittt e cetree e s eire e e s ebre e e ssabesessabaesessnbeeessnbeeessnnens 27
5) REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT ...ooiiiiiiieeiiitiieeccteee e esire e e s eireeesente e e s sabaeeesenbaeessnbeeessnnneeesennnnens 27
E. BOARD COMMITTEES ....... ..ottt e e e e e et e et t e e e e e e eeaaaaa e eeeeesasssanneaaeeeensnnnnssaneenns 28
1) NUMBER OF MEMBERS, FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES......ccoceeeiiieeeeeireeeeereeeeseereeeeeenreee s 28
2) COMMITTEE MEMBERS ... ctieeietieee ettt e e ettt e s eitee e e s e taee s sbre e e s eabaeessnbeeessbaeeesesnaeesssbeeessnseeesnrenens 30
3) CHANGES IN COMMITTEE MEMBERS.......iicttiiiiitiiee ettt citte e ettt e e s sbae e e s eabe e e s snb e e e s snbaeeesenreeeas 32
4) WORK DONE AND ISSUES ADDRESSED .....coiituiiiiiieieeiitreee e eiteeeseiteee s stree e seabee e s sbbesessnbaeeesenneeessnnens 32
5) COMMITTEE PROGRAM ......cccttitetcttete e ettt e e sttt e s eitte e e s eteee s sbaeeessabaeesssbaeessnsaeeesesbaeessasseeessnsseeesanrenens 33

TABLE OF CONTENTS



F.

G.

— -
. .

z22r =

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i s s s e 33

1) STATEMENT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.....ccceeviivieeeeireeeceieeeeeereee s 33
b T 1] (G = ] T TS 34
3) CONTROL SYSTEM ..uiiiiictieeeiitteee e ettt e e etee e s setteee s ssate e s s asbeeessbaeeesasbaeeesasbeeesssseeesansseeesasbesesansaeeesasrenens 35
INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL.......uiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e e e et e s e e e e e eaaaae e e e e e e eeaaaan e e e eeeeeannannsnns 36
1) STATEMENT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM....ccoeeiiiirieeeirieeeeereee e etveee s 36
2) INTERNAL AUDIT

(a) Role, Scope and Internal Audit FUNCLION ......ceeeiieeiiie et 37
(b) Appointment/Removal of Internal AUdItOr .......ccueeicieiiiieeceec e 37
(c) Reporting Relationship with the Audit Committee .......ccccccveeeiiiieee i 37
(d) Resignation, Re-assignment and REASONS ........ccceevieeriieenieiesreeeiteeeseeeseeesaeeesnressneeens 37

(e) Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and
1T YT = o o T I T=T Vo 3 37
(f) Audit Control Policies and ProCeAUIES ........cueeeviieieiicieee et erre e enree e enes 38
(g) Mechanisms and Saf@BUAIAS .......cceeeiiiiiie et enre e e e nes 38
ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS. ........ ..ot e ettt e e e e e e et st e e e e e et eaaaaa e aeeeeasetaaa s eeeeeeannnannsnns 39
DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY....... .ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaa e e e e e e e e annnanaas 40
RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS............coottttttttttttueeteaeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeee—eeee—————————————.——————...snnnnnnnnnnnnnnnsssnsnsssssssssssssnnnnnns 43
1) RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE EFFECTIVELY IN STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS ......ccovveeeviieeeccieeee e 44
2) TREATMENT OF MINORITY STOCKHOLDERS ......cueiiiittiieectreiecetiee e eetteee s eite e e seabe e e sbbe e e s sabaeeesenreeeas 49
INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAIV........ccootititiiiiieieeeeeeaeeeeeeeeneanaeesnesreeeeeeeeaeereeeeeeenaeeeennensnnennnnnnnnsssnssnnsnssnsnns 49
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES ....... oottt e e e e e e e e e e an e 50
. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL........ e 50
INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS ... .ottt e e ettt s e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e aaa e e e e e e e nnnnanneans 50



A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

|| Number of Directors per Articles of Incorporation || 9 ||

|| Actual number of Directors for the year || 9 ||

(a) Composition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors:

Type [Executive If Nominator in Date last elected Elected No. of
(ED), Non- nominee, | the last election Date (if ID, state th when years
Director’s Name Executive identify (if ID, state the first nluml'a:rao: e:rs (Annual served as
(NED) or the relationshipwith | elected i 1 /Special director
i . served as ID) N
Independent principal the nominator) Meeting)
Director (ID)]
Elena S. Lim NE 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 19
Susan L. Tan ED 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 19
David S. Lim ED 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 19
Jason S. Lim ED 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 19
Vincent S. Lim ED 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 19
Quintin Chua ID 2003 | June 25, 2015 Annual 12
Maria G. Goolsby ID 2015 | June 25, 2015 Annual .5
Joseph Lim NE 1996 | June 25, 2015 Annual 15
Beda Manalac ED 2010 | June 25, 2015 Annual 5

(b) Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please
emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority
shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

The Company adopted a Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the rules and principles of good
corporate governance in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance promulgated by SEC. Its Manual on
Corporate Governance was submitted to the SEC on September 2, 2002 in accordance with SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 2 Series of 2002. The Board of Directors approved the Company’s Revised Manual of Corporate
Governance in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2009 on September 30, 2010. The
Company adopted the Revised Manual of Corporate Governance and submitted it to the SEC on September 30,
2010. The Company also adopted the Amended Manual of Corporate Governance and submitted it to the SEC on
July 25, 2014.

Pursuant to the Manual, three Board Committees — Audit, Nomination and Compensation and Renumeration
Committees were created in 2003 to aid in complying with principles of good corporate governance. On June 13,
2013, the Board of Directors approved the Audit Committee Charter. On April 2, 2014, the Board of Directors
approved the Revised Code of Business Conduct of the Company. On August 12, 2014, the Company’s Board of
Directors approved the following charters: Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee Charter,
Compensation or Renumeration Committee Charter and Risk Management Committee Charter. On April 1, 2009,
the Board of Directors approved the Whistle Blowing Policy. On November 11, 2014, the Board of Directors
approved the policies on:  Enterprise Risk Management Policy, Conflict of Interest Policy, Related Party
Transaction Policy and Insider Trading Policy.

! Reckoned from the election immediately following January 2, 2012.

In 2003, the Company increased the number of independent directors from one (1) to two (2). In 2004, in compliance with SEC



Memorandum Circular No. 6, the Company increased the number of independent directors in its Audit Committee, from one
independent director to two (2) independent directors, and appointed an independent director to head the Audit Committee.
The company has reelected Mr. Quintin Chua and nominated Mrs. Maria G. Goolsby as Independent Directors during the
Annual Stockholders’ meeting on June 25, 2015. In 2008, the company created another committee, the Risk Management
Committee in addition to the 3 existing committees composed of four (4) members chaired by an independent director. In
2012, the Company, while retaining the services of Punongbayan & Araullo as external auditor, designated a new engagement
partner for the audit of the financial statements of the Company beginning the year ending December 31, 2011 in compliance
with its Manual on Corporate Governance, which requires that the Company’s external auditor be rotated or the handling
partner changed every five (5) years or earlier. A Compliance Officer was appointed in 2002, directly reporting to the Chairman
of the Board to monitor compliance with the provisions and requirements of the Manual. The Compliance Officer has
established an evaluation system to measure or determine the level of compliance of the Company with its Manual.

In connection to Stockholder’s Rights and Protection of Minority Stockholder’s Interests, the Board shall respect the
right of the stockholders as provided for in the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, By-laws and Corporate Code.
The Company promotes disclosure and transparency. Information such as earnings, acquisition, disposition of assets,
related party transactions and other information are disclosed timely to the SEC and PSE. It is the Board’s
responsibility to foster the long-term success of the Company, and to sustain its competitiveness and profitability in a
manner consistent with its corporate objectives and the best interests of its stockholders. It formulates the Company’s
vision, mission, strategic objectives, policies and procedures.

(c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?
The vision and mission statement of the Company is reviewed and approved every year by the Board.

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorship in the Company’s Group2

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of director
in other companies within its Group:

: Corporate Name of the (Bracatve, Non-Besutiv
Director’s Name Group Company Independent). ’
Indicate if director is also the
Elena S. Lim Interstar Holdings Co., Inc. ED-Chairman
Kita Corporation NED
Laguna International Industrial Park Inc. ED-Chairman
My Solid Technologies & Devices Corp. NED
Omni Solid Services Inc. NED
Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. NED
Precos Inc. NED
Skyworld Corporation ED-Chairman
Solid Broadband Corporation NED
Solid Electronics Corporation NED
Solid Video Corp. NED
Starworld Corp. ED-Chairman
Zen Towers Corp. NED
Susan L. Tan Kita Corporation ED-Chairman
My Solid Technologies & Devices Corp. NED
MyApp Corporation ED-Chairman
Omni Solid Services Inc. ED-Chairman
Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. ED
Precos Inc. ED-Chairman
Solid Broadband Corp. ED-Chairman
Solid Electronics Corporation ED-Chairman

H Solid Manila Corp. NED




Solid Manila Finance Inc. ED-Chairman
Solid Video Corp. ED
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation NED
Zen Towers Corp. ED
Brilliant Reach Limited ED

David S. Lim Casa Bocobo Hotel Inc. ED-Chairman
Interstar Holdings Co., Inc. ED
Kita Corporation NED
Laguna International Industrial Park Inc. ED
My Solid Technologies & Devices Corp. ED
MyApp Corporation ED
Omni Solid Services Inc. NED
Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. ED
Precos Inc. ED
Skyworld Corporation ED
Solid Broadband Corporation ED
Solid Electronics Corp. ED
Solid Manila Corp. NED
Solid Video Corp. ED-Chairman
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation NED
Starworld Corp. ED
Zen Towers Corp. ED-Chairman
Brilliant Reach Limited ED

Jason S. Lim Casa Bocobo Hotel Inc. ED
Interstar Holdings Co., Inc. NED
Kita Corporation ED
My Solid Technologies & Devices Corp. ED-Chairman
MyApp Corporation NED
Omni Solid Services Inc. ED
Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. NED
Skyworld Corp. NED
Solid Broadband Corp. NED
Solid Electronics Corp. NED
Solid Manila Corp. ED-Chairman
Solid Manila Finance Inc. ED
Solid Video Corp. NED
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation ED-Chairman
Zen Tower Corp. NED
Brilliant Reach Limited ED

Vincent S. Lim Casa Bocobo Hotel Inc. ED
Interstar Holdings Co., Inc. ED
Kita Corporation ED
Laguna International Industrial Park Inc. ED
My Solid Technologies & Devices Corp. ED
Omni Solid Services Inc. ED
MyApp Corporation ED
Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. ED
Precos Inc. ED
Skyworld Corporation ED
Solid Broadband Corp. ED

H H Solid Electronics Corp. H ED H




Solid Manila Corp. ED
Solid Manila Finance Inc. ED
Solid Video Corp. ED
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation ED
Starworld Corp. ED
Zen Towers Corp. ED
Brilliant Reach Limited ED
Joseph Lim Phil-Nanning Consortium Inc. ED-Chairman
Precos Inc. NED
Solid Broadband Corporation NED
Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Ltd. | ED- Chairman
Beda Manalac Solid Manila Corp. ED
Quintin Chua Solid Manila Finance Inc. ID

’The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.

(ii) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors of publicly-

listed companies outside of its Group:

Director’s Name

Name of Listed Company

Type of Directorship
(Executive, Non-Executive,
Independent). Indicate if
director is also the Chairman.

Not applicable; the Company’s BOD are not directors of other listed

companies.

(iii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors, which
them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

Director’s Name Name of the Description of the relationshi
Significant Shareholder P P
Elena S. Lim AA Commercial Inc. Stockholder
AA Commercial Inc. ED
Susan L. Tan - -
AV Value Holdings Corp. ED — Chairman
David S. Lim AA Commeraa'l Inc. ED
AV Value Holdings Corp. ED
. AA Commercial Inc. NED
Jason S. Lim -
AV Value Holdings Corp. NED
Vincent s. Lim AA Commercial Inc. ED
' AV Value Holdings Corp. ED
Joseph Lim AA Commercial Inc. ED — Chairman

links

(iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies (publicly listed, ordinary and

companies with secondary license) that an individual director or CEO may hold simultaneously? In particular,

is the

limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If yes, briefly describe other

guidelines:



2)

Guidelines

Maximum Number of
Directorships in other
companies

Executive Director

None; the Company did not set a
limit on the number of board seat
in other companies but its BOD
does not hold directorship position
in other listed companies.
However, the capacity of the
directors to diligently and
efficiently perform their duties and
responsibilities to the boards they
serve should not be compromised.

No limit set. But they may be
covered by a lower indicative
limit.

Non-Executive Director

Same as for Executive Director

No limit set.

CEO

Same as for Executive Director

No limit set.

(e)

Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and indirectly

own shares in the company:

Number of Ramberet % of Capital
Name of Director R Indirect shares / Through (name of
Direct shares Stock
record owner)

Elena S. Lim 1,894 - -
Susan L. Tan 78,645 | 7,300,000/ (thru Christopher James Tan) 0.40

499,999,999/ (thru AV Value Holding

Corp.)
David S. Lim 179,488,591 | 5,000,000/(thru Julia C.C. Lim) 37.58
Jason S. Lim 65,176,160 - 3.58

583,377,817 (thru AA Commercial Inc.)
Vincent S. Lim 71,887,187 | 5,996,000 (thru Michael Jordan T. Lim) 36.30
Joseph Lim 2 - -
Quintin Chua 5,000 - -
Maria G. Goolsby 10,000 - -
Beda Manalac 1,001 - -

Chairman and CEO

(a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the checks
and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

vo [

Identify the Chair and CEO:

Chairman of the Board

Susan L. Tan

CEO/President

David S. Lim




3)

4)

(b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEO.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Role The Chairman shall exercise such other The President shall be the Chief
powers that are given to him in the Executive Officer of the Company.
Company By-laws and perform such
other duties as the Board of Directors He shall do and perform such other
may from time to time fix or delegate. duties as may from time to time be
assigned to him by Board of
Directors.
Accountabilities He may sign and execute all

He shall preside at all meetings of | authorized bond contracts or
stockholders and of the Directors and in | obligations in the name of the
his absence or with his consent, the | corporation and with the Secretary

President shall preside at such meeting. may sign all certificates of shares in
the capital stock of the Company.
Deliverables He shall ensure that the meetings of the | He shall from time to time make

Board are held in accordance with the By- | reports of the affairs of the

laws or as the Chair may deem necessary. | corporation as the Board of
Directors may require and shall

He shall supervise the preparation of the | annually present a report of the
agenda of the meeting in coordination | preceding years’ business to the
with the Corporate Secretary, taking into | Board of Directors at their meeting
consideration the suggestions of the | immediately preceding the annual
CEO, management and directors. meeting of the stockholders, which
report may be read at the annual
He maintain qualitative and timely lines of | meeting of the stockholders.
communication and information between
the board and management.

Explain how the board of directors plan for the succession of the CEO/Managing Director/President and the top key
management positions?

The Board adopted through the Nomination Committee an effective succession planning program by selecting or
recruiting professional managers in the Group. Top key management positions are reviewed periodically to ensure that
competent, professional, honest and highly motivated management officers are in place.

Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board? Please
explain.

The Company has no written policy. However, the Company ensures that members have diversity of experience and
background. The Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance provides that the board shall implement a process for
the selection of directors who can add value and contribute independent judgment to the formulation of sound
corporate strategies and policies.

Does it ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company
belongs to? Please explain.

Yes. The Company has a non-executive director who has experience in the field and industry of the Company. Also,



the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance provides that the board shall implement a process for the selection
of directors who can add value and contribute independent judgment to the formulation of sound corporate
strategies and policies.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:

Executive (CEO/President)

Non-Executive “ Independent Director

Role

The President shall be the Chief
Executive  Officer of the
Company.

He shall do and perform such
other duties as may from time
to time be assigned to him by
Board of Directors.

A director’s office is one of trust and confidence.

Directors should act in the best interest of the
Company in a manner characterized by
transparency, accountability and fairness. He
should also exercise leadership, prudence and
integrity in directing the Company toward
sustained progress.

Accountabilities

He may sign and execute all
authorized bond contracts or
obligations in the name of the
corporation and with the
Secretary may sign all
certificates of shares in the
capital stock of the Company.

It shall be the duty of the Directors:

* To cause to be kept a complete record of all
their minutes and acts and of the proceeding of
stockholders’ meeting a statement of the
accounts showing in details the assets and
liabilities of the corporation an generally the
condition of the company’s affairs. A similar
statement shall be presented at any other
meeting of the stockholders, when thereto
required by the persons holding at least one-
third of the capital stock of the corporation

* To declare dividends out of the surplus profits
when such profits shall in the opinion of the
directors, warrant the same.

e To supervise all officers, agents and employees
and see that their duties are properly performed.

Deliverables

He shall from time to time make
reports of the affairs of the
corporation as the Board of
Directors may require and shall
annually present a report of
the preceding years’ business
to the Board of Directors at
their meeting immediately
preceding the annual meeting
of the stockholders, which
report may be read at the
annual  meeting of the
stockholders.

The Directors shall have the power:

e To call special meetings of the stockholders
when they deem it necessary. And they shall call a
meeting at any time upon the written request of
the stockholders holding one-third of the
subscribed and paid-in capital stock.

* To appoint and remove at the pleasure all
officers, agents and employees of the
corporation, prescribe their duties, fix their
compensation and required from them security
for faithful service

¢ To conduct, manage and control the affairs and
business of the corporation and to make rules
and regulations not inconsistent with the laws of
the Philippine Islands or By-Laws of the
corporation for the guidance and management
of the corporation.

10



Provide the company’s definition of "independence" and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.

The Company uses the “independence” definition of Section 38 of Securities Regulation Code. Independent Director is a
person who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business or other
relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent
judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director in any corporation and includes, among others, any person who:
(a) is not a director or officer of the corporation or of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders; (b) is not
a substantial shareholder of the corporation or of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders; (c) is not a
relative of any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the corporation, any of its substantial shareholders; (d) is not
acting as a nominee or representative of any director or substantial shareholder of the corporation, any of its related
companies or any of its substantial shareholders; (e) has not been employed in any executive capacity by that public
company, any of its related companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last five (5) years; (f) is not
retained as professional adviser by that public company, any of its related companies or any of its substantial
shareholders within the last five (5) years (f) is not retained as professional adviser by that public company, any of its
related companies or any of its substantial shareholders, either personally or through his firm (g) has not engaged and
does not engage in any transaction with the corporation or with any of its related companies or with any of its substantial
shareholders, whether by himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is a partner or a company of which
he is a director or substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are conducted at arms’ length and are
immaterial.

Independent directors are nominated and elected in the annual stockholders’ meeting and each independent director
issues a certification confirming his independence.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the company
wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no more than four
additional years? Please explain.

The Company complies with the SEC requirements on term limits for independent directors of a maximum of 5
consecutive years, subject to a 2-year cooling-off period, after which, he may be re-elected for another 5 consecutive
years.

5) Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)
(a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:

Name Position Date of Cessation Reason
Luis-Maria Independent February 2015 Death
Zabaljauregui Director

(b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and  Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal, reinstatement and
suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes adopted (including the
frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

Procedure Process Adopted Criteria

a. Selection/Appointment

11



(i) Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive
Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

b. Re-appointment

The Board thru its Nomination
Committee pre-screens the
qualifications of all nominees to the
Board of Directors. Afterward, the
Committee prepares a final list of
candidates.

The Directors shall be elected by
ballot at the annual meeting of the
stockholders. Each shareholder,
either in person or by proxy, shall be
entitled to as many votes as he owns
shares of stock. Cumulative voting
shall be allowed for the election of
board of directors in accordance with
Section 24 of the Corporation Code.
Section 24 provides that a stockholder,
may vote such number of shares
registered in his name as of the record
date for as many persons as there are
directors to be elected or he may
cumulate said shares and give one
candidate as many votes as he number
of directors to be elected multiplied by
the number of his shares shall equal,
or he may distribute them on the
same principle among as many
candidates as he shall see fit. The
total number of votes cast by such
stockholder should not exceed the
number of shares owned by him as
shown in the books of the corporation
multiplied by the whole number of
directors to be elected.

The Company complies with the
requirements of SRC Rule 38 on the
nomination and election of directors.

Qualifications of Directors:

In addition to the qualifications for
membership in the Board provided
for in the Corporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code and other
relevant laws, the Board may provide
for additional qualifications which
include, among others, the following:
i. College education or equivalent
academic degree;

ii. Practical understanding of the
business of the Corporation;

iii. Membership in good standing in
relevant industry, business or
professional organizations; and

iv. Previous business experience.

Additional qualifications for
independent director:

A candidate for independent director
must be independent of management
and free from any business or other
relationship which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to,
materially interfere with his exercise
of independent judgment in carrying
out his responsibilities as a director.

He should satisfy the definition,
possess the qualifications and none of
the disqualifications as provided in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code.

(i) Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive
Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

c. Permanent Disqualification

Same process as selection/
appointment

Same criteria as selection/
appointment

(i) Executive Directors

Nomination Committee shall review
and evaluate the qualifications of all
persons nominated to the Board of
Directors. The Committee shall pre-
screen all nominees, considering the
rules and issuances by the SEC and in

The following shall be grounds for the
permanent disqualification of a
director:

a) Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by acompetent
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(ii) Non-Executive
Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

conformity to the Company Manual
on Corporate Governance.

judicial or administrative body of any
crime that (a) involves the purchase
or sale of securities, as defined in the
Securities Regulation Code; (b) arises
out of the person's conduct as an

underwriter, broker, dealer,
investment adviser, principal,
distributor, mutual fund dealer,
futures commission merchant,

commodity trading advisor, or floor
broker; or (c) arises out of his
fiduciary relationship with a bank,
quasi-bank, trust company,
investment house or as an affiliated
person of any of them;

b) Any person who, by reason of
misconduct, after hearing, is
permanently enjoined by a final
judgment or order of the Commission
or any court or administrative body of
competent jurisdiction from: (a)
acting as underwriter, broker, dealer,

investment adviser, principal
distributor, mutual fund dealer,
futures commission merchant,

commodity trading advisor, or floor
broker; (b) acting as director or officer
of a bank, quasi-bank, trust company,
investment house, or investment
company; (c) engaging in or
continuing any conduct or practice in
any of the capacities mentioned in
sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, or
willfully violating the laws govern
securities and banking activities. The
disqualification shall also apply if such
person is currently the subject of an
order of the Commission or any court
or administrative body denying,
revoking or suspending any
registration, license or permit issued
to him under the Corporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code or any
other law administered by the
Commission or Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP), or under any rule or
regulation issued by the Commission
or BSP, or has otherwise been
restrained to engage in any activity
involving securities and banking; or
such person is currently the subject of
an effective order of a self-regulatory
organization suspending or expelling

13



d. Temporary Disqualification

him from

membership, participation or
association with a member or
participant of the organization;

¢) Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by a court or
competent administrative body of an
offense involving moral turpitude,
fraud, embezzlement, theft, estafa,
counterfeiting, misappropriation,
forgery, bribery, false affirmation,
perjury or other fraudulent acts;

d) Any person who has been adjudged
by final judgment or order of the
Commission, court, or competent
administrative body to have willfully
violated, or willfully aided, abetted,
counseled, induced or procured the
violation of any provision of the
Corporation Code, Securities
Regulation Code or any other law
administered by the Commission or
BSP, or any of its rule, regulation or
order;

e) Any person earlier elected as
independent director who becomes
an officer, employee or consultant of
the Corporation;

f) Any person judicially declared as
insolvent;

g) Any person found guilty by final
judgment or order of a foreign court
or equivalent financial regulatory
authority of facts, violations or
misconduct similar to any of the acts,
violations or misconduct enumerated
in sub-paragraphs (1) to (v) above;

h) Conviction by final judgment of an
offense punishable by imprisonment
for more than six (6) years, or a
violation of the Corporation Code
committed within five (5) years prior
to the date of his election or
appointment.
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(i) Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive
Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

Nomination Committee shall review
and evaluate the qualifications of all
persons nominated to the Board of
Directors. The Committee shall pre-
screen all nominees, considering the
rules and issuances by the SEC and in
conformity to the Company Manual
on Corporate Governance.

The Board may provide for the
temporary disqualification of a
director for any of the following
reasons:

a) Refusal to comply with the
disclosure  requirements of the
Securities Regulation Code and its
implementing Rules and Regulations.
The disqualification shall be in effect
as long as the refusal persists.

b) Absence in more than fifty (50)
percent of all regular and special
meetings of the Board during his
incumbency, or any twelve (12) month
period during the said incumbency,
unless the absence is due to illness,
death in the immediate family or
serious accident. The disqualification
shall apply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

c) Dismissal or termination for cause
as director of any  corporation
covered by this Code. The
disqualification shall be in effect until
he has cleared himself from any
involvement in the cause that gave
rise to his dismissal or termination.

d) If the beneficial equity ownership
of an independent director in the
Corporation or its subsidiaries and
affiliates exceeds two percent (2%) of
its subscribed capital stock. The
disqualification shall be lifted if the
limit is later complied with.

e) If any of the judgments or orders
cited in the grounds for permanent
disqualification has not yet become
final.

A temporarily disqualified director
shall, within sixty (60) business days
from such disqualification, take the
appropriate action to remedy or
correct the qualification. If he fails or
refuses to do so for unjustified
reasons, the disqualification shall
become permanent.
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e. Removal

(i) Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive Same process stated above for Same criteria stated above for
Directors permanent disqualification. permanent disqualification.

(iii) Independent Directors

f. Re-instatement

(i) Executive Directors

(ii) Non-Executive Same process stated above for Same criteria stated above for
Directors selection/appointment. selection/appointment.

(iii) Independent Directors

g. Suspension

(i) Executive Directors

(ii) Non-Executive Same process stated above for Same criteria stated above for
Directors temporary disqualification. temporary disqualification.

(iii) Independent Directors

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

Name of Director Votes Received
Elena S. Lim
Susan L. Tan
David S. Lim
Jason S. Lim
Vincent S. Lim 1,401,260,295

Quintin Chua
Maria G. Goolsby

Joseph Lim

Beda Manalac

6) Orientation and Education Program
(a) Disclose details of the company’s orientation program for new directors, if any.

New directors are asked to attend the Corporate Governance Orientation Program conducted by Institute of
Corporate Directors (ICD).

(b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Managementafor the past
three (3) years:

*Senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the company.
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Corporate Governance Orientation Program conducted by Institute of Corporate Directors
SEC’s Revised Code of Corporate Governance conducted by Center for Global Best Practices

Enterprise Risk Management Seminar conducted by The Institute of Internal

(c) Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the year.

Auditors.

Name of Date of Trainin Program Name of Training
Director/Officer & i Institution
Quintin Chua August 7, 2015 Risks, Opportunities,

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Maria G. Goolsby

August 7, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Joseph Lim August 7, 2015 . Risks, Opportunities,
Seminar on Corporate
Governance Assessment and
Management (ROAM), Inc.
Elena S. Lim August 7, 2015 . Risks, Opportunities,
Seminar on Corporate
Governance Assessment and
Management (ROAM), Inc.
Susan L. Tan August 7, 2015 . Risks, Opportunities,
Seminar on Corporate
Governance Assessment and
Management (ROAM), Inc.
David S. Lim August 7, 2015 . Risks, Opportunities,
Seminar on Corporate
Governance Assessment and
Management (ROAM), Inc.
Jason S. Lim August 7, 2015 Risks, Opportunities,

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Vincent S. Lim

August 7, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Beda T. Manalac

August 7, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Roberto V. San Jose

April 21, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Ana Maria April 21, 2015 . Risks, Opportunities,
. Seminar on Corporate
Margarita A. Governance Assessment and
Katigbak Management (ROAM), Inc.
A t7,2015 Risks, O tuniti
) . ugust 7, Seminar on Corporate ISKS, Dpportunities,
Lita Joaquin Assessment and

Governance

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Mellina T. Corpuz

August 7, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.

Josephine T.
Santiago

August 7, 2015

Seminar on Corporate
Governance

Risks, Opportunities,
Assessment and

Management (ROAM), Inc.
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B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior
management and employees:

Business Conduct &
Ethics

Directors

Senior Management

Employees

(a) Conflict of Interest

Director should act in the
best interest of the
Company in a manner
characterized by
transparency,
accountability and
fairness. He should avoid
situations that may
compromise his
impartiality.

Senior Management do
not tolerate conflict of
interest. Managers who
approve and implement
incentive/ promotion
programs for employees
or customers shall not be
entitled to such
incentives unless
disclosed and approved.

The Company does not
tolerate conflict of
interest. Employees are
required to disclose
possible areas of conflict
of interest.

(b) Conduct of
Business and Fair
Dealings

Directors should conduct
fair business transactions
with the Company and
ensure that his personal
interest does not conflict
with the interest of the
Company.

Senior Management is
honest and fair in dealing
with Business Partners
and Suppliers/Buyers and
do not engage in bribery,
extortion or corruption.

The Company is honest
and fair in dealing with
Business Partners and
Suppliers/Buyers and do
not engage in bribery,
extortion or corruption.

(c) Receipt of gifts from
third parties

Directors do not solicit or
accept personal gifts
from Suppliers/ Buyers. If
given, gifts, incentive
trips, or major raffle
items won in corporate
events are considered
intended for the
company and should be

disclosed or surrendered.

Senior Management do
not solicit or accept
personal gifts from
Suppliers/ Buyers. If
given, gifts, incentive
trips, or major raffle
items won in corporate
events are considered
intended for the company
and should be disclosed
or surrendered for
management discretion.

Employees do not solicit
or accept personal gifts
from Suppliers/ Buyers. If
given, gifts, incentive
trips, or major raffle items
won in corporate events
are considered intended
for the company and
should be disclosed or
surrendered for
management discretion.

(d) Compliance with
Laws & Regulations

Directors should abide by
government laws and
regulations including
payment of taxes and
duties.

Senior Management
abides by government
laws and regulations
including payment of
taxes and duties.

Employees abide by
government laws and
regulations including
payment of taxes and
duties.

(e) Respect for Trade
Secrets/Use of Non-
public Information

Directors should keep
secure and confidential
all non-public
information he may
acquire or learn by
reason of his position as
director. He should not
reveal confidential
information to
unauthorized persons
without the authority of
the Board.

Senior Management will
maintain confidentiality
of information including
but not limited to legal
suits, marketing
strategies, financial data
and other sensitive
information.

Employees will maintain
confidentiality of
information including but
not limited to legal suits,
marketing strategies,
financial data and other
sensitive information.

18



2)

(f) Use of Company
Funds, Assets and
Information

The Company prohibits
Directors the use of
company funds and
assets without proper
approval. Information
should be treated with
confidentiality and
cannot be released

without proper approval.

The Company prohibits
Senior Management the
use of company funds
and assets without
proper approval.
Information should be
treated with
confidentiality and
cannot be released

without proper approval.

The Company prohibits
Employees the use of
company funds and assets
without proper
authorization.
Information should be
treated with
confidentiality and cannot
be released without
proper approval.

(g) Employment &
Labor Laws &
Policies

Directors abide by labor
laws and regulations
especially on wages,
health and safety in the
workplace.

Senior Management
abides by labor laws and
regulations especially on
wages, health and safety
in the workplace.

Employees abide by labor
laws and regulations
especially on wages,
health and safety in the
workplace.

(h) Disciplinary action

Directors should abide
the Company policy on
disciplinary action.

Senior Management
should abide the
Company policy on
disciplinary action.

Employees should abide
the Company policy on
disciplinary action.

(i) Whistle Blower

The Company has whistle
blowing policy to aid in
the discovery of fraud
and to reinforce ethical
behavior.

The Company has whistle
blowing policy to aid in
the discovery of fraud
and to reinforce ethical
behavior.

The Company has whistle
blowing policy to aid in
the discovery of fraud and
to reinforce ethical
behavior.

(j) Conflict Resolution

The Company initiates
investigation which are
confidential and
conducted urgently and
discreetly. Corrective
actions are made after
the investigation.

The Company initiates
investigation which are
confidential and
conducted urgently and
discreetly. Corrective
actions are made after
the investigation.

The Company initiates
investigation which are
confidential and
conducted urgently and
discreetly. Corrective
actions are made after the
investigation.

Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees?

Yes. The Company Code of Ethics and Business Conduct has been disseminated to all directors, senior management

and employees.

Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

The Company has Code of Ethics and Business Conduct and Whistle Blowing Policy. Under this Whistle Blowing policy,
stakeholders can report fraud, waste, abuse or misconduct activities. The Company made a group-wide orientation and
dissemination of the policy.  The policy is available online. Reports can also be made by text, calls and emails.

Related Party Transactions

(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and recording
of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures, subsidiaries,
associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses, children and
dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the Board.
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Related Party
Transactions

Policies and Procedures

(1) Parent Company

All Related Party Transactions (RPT) shall be made on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in an arm’s length transactions.

The Audit Committee may assists in the review of the propriety of RPT and their
required reporting disclosures.

RPT before its commencement or if the same is not identified beforehand shall
be approved in accordance with the Threshold policy.

The Director or Officer may participate in any discussion or approval of a RPT
for which he/she or any member of his/her Immediate Family is a Related
Person provided any damages/loss incurred by Company related to his/her
action/inaction detrimental to the Company shall be borne by him/her.

The total amount per annum of each RPT shall be considered for purposes of
applying these thresholds.

Threshold Amount Required Approval of Authority

Php0.5 million and below Local Management

Php0.5 million up to Php20.0

L Parent’s Executive Management
million

Above Php20.0 million Board

Each Director, Officer or Significant Stockholder shall promptly notify respective
authority based on threshold policy of any materials interest that such person or an
Immediate Family Member of such person had, has or may have in a Related Party
Transactions. The notice shall include a description of the transaction and the
aggregate amount.

During review, the respective authority shall consider whether the terms of the
Related Party Transactions are on arms’ length and fair to the Company, and such
factors as the following: (1) Materiality (2) The purpose and timing of the
transactions (3)Extend of the Related Party’s interest (4) Conflict of interest, actual
or apparent, of the Related Party participating in the transaction (5)Any other
relevant information regarding the transaction.

If any Director or Officer becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction with a Related
Party that has not been approved or ratified prior to its consummation, he/she shall
promptly inform the respective authority based on threshold policy for proper review.
Such authority shall consider the General Criteria listed above upon review and
approval.

If the Related Party Transactions is pending or on-going, the respective authority
may ratify, amend, or terminate the transaction; if it has been completed, the
respective authority may ratify or rescind the transaction; and in either-case, the
respective authority may direct an Officer, Internal Auditors or Independent
Auditors to evaluate the internal controls and procedures to determine why the
transaction was not submitted for prior approval.

The Board through the Audit Committee may establish guidelines to manage and
monitor Related Party Transactions.
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(2) Joint Ventures NA; no joint venture.

(3) Subsidiaries
(4)Entities Under
Common Control

(5)Substantial
Stockholders

(6) Officers including

spouse/children/siblings

/parents Same as with parent company.

(7) Directors including

spouse/children/siblings
/parents
(8) Interlocking director
relationship

of Board of Directors

(b) Conflict of Interest
(i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

Identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders may

be involved.
Details of Conflict
of Interest (Actual or Probable)
Name of Director/s Not Applicable
Name of Officer/s Not Applicable
Name of Significant Shareholders Not Applicable

(ii) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest between
the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders.

Directors/Officers/Significant Shareholders

The Company has a policy that seeks to adopt measures to
avoid, identify and disclose the existence of conflict of
interest. It has mechanism that sets out the process and
internal controls to facilitate compliance. The poalicy
describes the level of authority, accountabilities and
responsibilities of all directors, officers, employees and
consultants.

Company

The Company obtains approval for transactions with
directors/officers/significant shareholders. No contract or
other transaction between the Company and any other
corporation and no act of the Company shall in any way be
affected or invalidated by the fact that any of the directors
of the Company are peculiarly or otherwise interested in,

Group




or are directors or officers, of such other corporation; any
director individually, or any firm of which any director may
be a member, may be a party to, or may be peculiarly or
otherwise interested in, any contract or transaction of the
Company, provided that the fact that he or such firm is so
interested shall be disclosed or shall have been known to
the board of directors or a majority thereof; and any
director of the Company who is also a director or officer of
such corporation or who is interested may be counted in
determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting of
the board of directors of the Company which shall authorize
any such contract or transaction and may vote thereat to
authorize any such contract or transaction with like force
and effect as if he were not such director or officer of such
corporation or not so interested.

RPT are fully disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(@) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,4 commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between
the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

Names of Related Type of Relationship Brief Description of the
Significant Shareholders Relationship

Elena S. Lim Family Married to Joseph Lim
Joseph Lim Family Married to Elena Lim
Susan L. Tan Family Daughter of Joseph and Elena Lim
David S. Lim Family Son of Joseph and Elena Lim
Jason S. Lim Family Son of Joseph and Elena Lim
Vincent S. Lim Family Son of Joseph and Elena Lim

(b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity (5% or more) and the company:

Names of Related Type of Brief Description
Significant Shareholders Relationship
Solid Broadband Corp. (SBC), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, bills Destiny Cable
Inc. (DCI), a subsidiary of AV Value Holdings
. . Corp., a fee per subscriber for the use of the
AV Value Holdings Corp. Business

cable infrastructure. In May 2012, SBC sold
the broadband assets to Sky Cable
Corporation and the billings to DCI were
stopped.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. (SMFI), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, grants
Lim, David S. Business business loans to Avid Sales Corp., AA Export
and Import Corp., AA Marine Development
Corp., Philippine Prawn, Inc., Baybayan Farm,

¢ Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.



Inc. and Kawayan Farm, Inc., companies
where Mr. David Lim holds an ownership
which was collected in 2015.

Business Solid Video Corp. (SVC), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, earns commission
from Solid Trading Ltd. (STL), a company
where Mr. David Lim holds an ownership.
Business My Solid Tecnologies & Devices Corp., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Lim, David S. purchases mobile phones from STL, a
company where Mr. David Lim holds an
ownership.

Business Brilliant Reach Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, granted an unsecured,

Lim, David S. interest-bearing loan to Solid Company Ltd.
(SCL), a company where Mr. David Lim holds
an ownership which was collected in 2015.
Business Fil-Dragon, 51% owned by the Company,
obtained loans from companies owned by
SCL, a company where Mr. David Lim holds an
ownership.

Lim, David S.

Lim, David S.

(c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of the
company:

% of Capital Stock affected Brief Description of the

BT G S (Parties) Transaction

Not applicable; the Company has no shareholder agreements.

6) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amicably
settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the corporation and third parties,
including regulatory authorities.

Alternative Dispute Resolution System
Corporation & Stockholders The Company’s manual on corporate governance provides that the board
Corporation & Third Parties shall establish and maintain an alternative dispute resolution system in the
Company that can amicably settle conflicts or differences between the
Corporation and its stockholders, and the Corporation and third parties,
including the regulatory authorities.

Corporation & Regulatory
Authorities

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?

They are scheduled before the meeting.
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2)

3)

5)

Attendance of Directors

N.o. of No. of
Board Name Date of Election M:::;:istﬂzld Meetings %
T Attended
Chairman Susan L. Tan June 25, 2015 4 4 100
Member Elena S. Lim June 25, 2015 4 3 75
Member David S. Lim June 25, 2015 4 3 75
Member Jason S. Lim June 25, 2015 4 4 100
Member Vincent S. Lim June 25, 2015 4 4 100
Member Joseph Lim June 25, 2015 4 3 75
Member Beda Manalac June 25, 2015 4 4 100
Independent | Quintin Chua June 25, 2015 4 4 100
Independent | Maria G. Goolsby June 25, 2015 4 3 100

Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If yes,
how many times? None.

Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

No. A majority of the entire number of directors present shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business.
Action or decision of the Board shall be taken only upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present;
unless the Corporation Code or the Company By-Laws require the vote of a greater number.

Access to Information

How many days in advance are board papers5 for board of directors meetings provided to the board? 3
days.

Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?
Yes

State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc.?

Yes. The Corporate Secretary shall be a Filipino citizen and a resident of the Philippines and an officer of
the corporation. He shall be responsible for the safekeeping and preservation of the integrity of the
minutes of the meeting of the Board and its committees. He shall work fairly and objectively with the
Board, Management and stockholders, inform the members of the board, in accordance to the by-laws
of the agenda of their meetings and ensure that the members have before them accurate information
that will enable them to arrive at intelligent decisions on matters that require their approval, ensure that
all board procedures, rules and regulations are strictly followed by the members and keep them updated
regarding relevant statutory and regulatory changes.

Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
should the answer be in the negative.

Yes.

® Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting.
Information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets, forecasts
and internal financial documents.
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e. Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information necessary to
be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

Committee Details of the procedures
Executive Not applicable; no executive committee.
Audit Directors are given access to management. They can obtain
Nomination information, including background, explanation, disclosure, budgets,
Remuneration forecasts and internal financial documents.
Others (specify) NA

6) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details:

Procedures Details

The Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance | The director can consult the Corporate Secretary,
provides that directors have access to independent | outside counsel or the external auditor.
professional advice at the Company’s expense, such
as seeking legal advice and/ or opinion.

7) Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on existing
policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

Existing Policies Changes Reason

Not applicable: no significant changes on policies.

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS
1) Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four (4) most highly compensated
management officers:

Process CEO Top 4 Highest P?id Management
Officers
(1) Fixed remuneration Company salary structure. Adjustments are approved by the
Board.
(2) Variable remuneration
(3) Per diem allowance None
(4) Bonus Approved bonus per company policy.
(5) Stock Options and other None
financial instruments
(6) Others (specify) None
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2)

3)

Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how the

compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

. Structure of X
Remuneration ) How Compensation
. Compensation .
Policy is Calculated
Packages
Executive Directors Based on company Fixed compensation Monthly salary is
salary structure. and variable amount divided by 26.08 to
and bonus based on arrive at daily rate
approved company which is used for
policy. benefits and leave
conversions.
Non-Executive Directors Non-executive director and independent director receive fixed amount
(P30,000- net of taxes) per meeting participation.

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benefits-in-
kind and other emoluments) of board of directors?  Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Yes

Date of
Stockholders’ Approval
There has been no change in remuneration policy and scheme in the last three years which would
require stockholders’ approval.

Remuneration Scheme

Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:

. Non-Executive Directors
) Executive X Independent
Remuneration Item i (other than independent X
Directors . Directors
directors)

(a) Fixed Remuneration 16,800,000 -
(b) Variable Remuneration - - -
(c) Per diem Allowance - 200,000 378,431
(d) Bonuses 2,960,429 - -
(e) Stock Options and/or

other financial - - -

instruments
(f) Others (Specify) 1,354,482 -

Total 21,114,911 200,000 378,431
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Non-Executive
Director Independent
Other Benefits Executive Directors (other than X P
. Directors
independent
directors)
1) Advances None None
2) Credit granted None None
3) Pension Plan/s Included as part of the None
Contributions Company’s contribution
(d) Pension Plans, Included as part of the None
Obligations incurred Company’s contribution
The Company paid premium
on life insurance policy of its
(e) Life Insurance Premium key officers. However, the None
Company is also the main
beneficiary.
Included as part of the
(f) Hospitalization Plan " 3 P None
Company’s health plan.
(g) CarPlan The Company Provides carto None
its executive directors.
(h) Others (Specify) None
Total

4) Stock Rights, Options and Warrants
(a) Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are entitled to
stock rights, options or warrants over the company’s shares:

Number of Direct Num!)er of Number of
Director’s Name Option/Rights/ Indirect Equivalent LG
P g Option/Rights/ q Capital Stock
Warrants Shares
Warrants
Not Applicable; There are no outstanding stock rights, options or warrants.

(b) Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria used
in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting:

Date of

Incentive Program Amendments Stockholders! Approval

Not applicable; the Company has no amendments or discontinuation of incentive program.

5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time executive directors and indicate the total
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remuneration received during the financial year:

Name of Officer/Position

Total Remuneration

Senior management as a group (includes the following officers: Lita L.
Joaquin/ VP & Treasurer, Mellina T. Corpuz/ VP & Chief Accounting
Officer,Josephine Santiago/Chief Information Officer, Roberto V. San
Jose/ Corporate Secretary, Ana Maria A. Katigbak-Lim/ Assistant
Corporate Secretary

P6,947,074

BOARD COMMITTEES

Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the
power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

No. of Members

; Non- Indepen | Committee Key
Committee | Executive i Functions S Power
Director | SXecutive | dent Charter Responsibilities
(ED) Director Director
(NED) (1D)
Executive NA; the Company has no executive committee
Audit - 2 Audit Assists the Board | Key responsibilites | The Committee is
. A . are :
Committee | in its oversight empowered to
Charter responsibility for (1) Financial conduct or
the financial Statements - authorize

reporting process,
system of internal
control, audit
process and
monitoring of
compliance with
applicable laws,
rules and
regulations.

Review significant
accounting and
reporting issues and
recent regulatory
pronouncements
and understand their
impact on the
financial statements.

(2) Internal Control—
monitor and
evaluate the
adequacy and
effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal
control system,
including financial
reporting controland
information
technology security

(3) Internal Audit —
review the charter,
annual internal audit
plans to ensure its
conformity with the
objectives of the
Company

(4) External Audit —
review the
appointment of an
independent
external auditor, the
audit fees and any
question of
resignation or

investigations into
any matter within
its scope of
responsibility and
seek any
information it
requires, as
necessary.
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dismissal, if any.

5) Others-

Report to the Board
significant / critical
compliance issues.

Nomination

Corporate
Governance
and
Nominations
Committee
Charter

Reviews and
evaluates the
qualifications of
all persons
nominated to the
Board and other
appointments for
Board’s approval
and assess the
effectiveness of
the Board’s
processes and
procedures or
replacement of
directors.

Implement a
process for the
selection of
directors who can
add value and
contribute
independent
judgment to the
formulation of
sound corporate
strategies and
policies, appoint
competent
professional,
honest and highly
motivated
management
officers and adopt
an effective
succession
planning program
for the
management.

The Committee
is empowered
to enforce and
administer the
Nomination
procedures of
the Company.

Remunerati on

Compensation

To establish a

Establish a system

Develop policy on

or ) formal and with sufficient executive
Remuneration .
Committee transparent levels of remuneration and
Charter procedure for remuneration to compensation
developing policy | be able to attract packages based
on remuneration and retain the on formal and
of directors and services of transparent
officers by qualified and procedures or
constant review competent determine
and appropriate directors and remuneration
recommendations | officers with a levels for
portion of the individual
remuneration of directors and
Executive officers
directors to be depending on the
structured or particular needs
based on of the
corporate and Corporation.
Individual
performance.
Others Risk To oversee the Identify risk areas | The Committee
(specify) Risk Management | jdentification, and performance has an oversight
Management Committee | measurement, indicators and role on the
Charter monitoring and monitor these company’s risk
controlling of the factors with due management

Company’s
principal business

diligence to
enable the

program and
after reviewing
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2)

risks. Corporation to and evaluating,
anticipate and makes
prepare for recommendation
possible threats to the Board for
to its operational approval on
and financial matters relating
viability. to risk
management.
Committee Members
(a) Executive Committee
Date of SO hLHCy IS.::vgl::Z ?r:
Office Name e R Meetings Meetings % the
Held Attended Committee
Chairman
Member (ED)
Member (NED) | Not applicable; the company has no executive committee.
Member (ID)
Member
(b) Audit Committee
No. of : .
office Name W2 | eetings | meetngs | 5 | Serdcein
Held Attended
Committee
Chairman (ID) Maria G. Goolsby June 25, 2015 2 1 100 1
Member (ED) Vincent S. Lim June 25, 2015 2 2 100 4
Member (ED) Susan L. Tan June 25, 2015 2 2 100 4
Member (NED) | -
Member (ID) Quintin Chua June 25, 2015 2 2 100 4
Member Mellina T. Corpuz June 25, 2015 2 2 100 4

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

Mr. Quintin Chua has Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, major in Economics from Philippine School of
Business Administration. He is the Chairman and Managing Director of Quantum Capital Management, Inc. (formerly
QC Investments Pty. Ltd) and Chairman and President of Nature’s Harvest Corp. He has business experience for more
than five (5) years.

Mr. Vincent S. Lim holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the Philippine School of Business
Administration. He is Sr. Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since September 2010 and was Sr. Vice President
for Finance and Investments since June 2006 up to September 2010. He was Sr. VP and Chief Financial Officer from
May 2002 up to June 2006. He was VP/ Chief Finandal Officer from 1996 up to May 2002. He has also been VP
Finance, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary for Solid Corporation for more than five years and is also VP Finance
and Treasurer for Solid Laguna Corporation and Solid Distributors, Inc., Solid Electronics Corporation, Kita
Corporation, Solid Video Corporation and Solid Manila Corporation. He has business experience for more than five
(5) years.
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Ms. Susan L. Tan has Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Cum Laude) from the University of the Philippines. She
is Chairman of the Board since May 2001. She was Vice President of the Company from April 1999 to April 2001.
She was Chief Operating Officer of the Company since 1996 up to March 1999. She is currently President of Solid
Laguna Corporation and Solid Corporation and is also Managing Director of Solid Electronics Corporation and
Solid Video Corporation. She is Director of Sony Philippines Inc. since 1997 up to the present. She has business
experience for more than five (5) years.

Ms. Maria G. Goolsby was elected as Independent Director of the company on June 25, 2015. She was connected
with Union Bank of the Philippines as Executive Director of Corporate Philanthropy and Social Responsibility from
2003 to 2014 and Special Assistant to the Chairman and CEO from 1993 to 2014. Prior to that, she was the Senior
Vice President of the Human Resource and Administration Group of the bank. She has business experience for more
than five (5) years.

Mellina T. Corpuz has Bachelor of Science in Commerce from University of San Carlos Cebu City and is a Certified
Public Accountant. She is the Chief Accounting Officer effective June 2006. Prior to that, she was the Senior
Accounting Manager since 2002 and was the Accounting Manager since 1996. She has business experience for more
than five (5) years.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.
The Audit Committee performs oversight function over the Company’s external auditor. It ensures that external

auditors act independently from the internal auditor of the Company and that the auditor are given unrestricted
access to all records, properties and personnel to enable them to perform their audit function.

(c) Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee

No. of No. of Length of
. 0. O . o
Office Name A Da.te of Meetings | Meetings % Serv;\ce n
ppointment B Attended the
Committee
Chairman Vincent S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 4
Member (ED) Susan L. Tan June 25, 2015 1 1 100 4
Member (NED) | - - - - - -
Member (ID) Quintin Chua June 25, 2015 1 1 100 2
Member Mellina T. Corpuz June 25, 2015 1 1 100
(d) Remuneration Committee
pateot | No:of | oo ST
Office Name a. €0 Meetings | Meetings % th
Appointment Held Attended t?
Committee
Chairman David S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 1
Member (ED) Vincent S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 4
Member (ED) Jason S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 2
Member (NED) | -
Member (ID) Quintin Chua June 25, 2015 1 1 100 2
Member -

(e) Others (Specify)
Risk Management Committee
Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:
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Date of LT & % IS.::\ﬁ::Z ?rt
Office Name AT Meetings | Meetings % the
Held Attended
Committee

Chairman (ID) Quintin W. Chua June 25, 2015 1 1 100 1
Member (ED) Susan L. Tan June 25, 2015 1 1 100 3
Member (ED) Jason S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 1
Member (ED) Vincent S. Lim June 25, 2015 1 1 100 3
Member (ED) Beda T. Manalac June 25, 2015 1 1 100 5
Member (NED)
Member (ID) -
Member

Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

Name of Committee Name Reason

Executive Not applicable; the Company has no executive committee.

Audit Current Chairman is Maria G. Goolsby Observance of good
(previously was Quintin Chua). corporate governance

Nomination Current Chairman is Vincent S. Lim (previously | Observance of good

was Susan L. Tan). Current Vice Chairman is
Susan L. Tan (previously was Quintin Chua).

corporate governance

Remuneration

Current Chairman is David S. Lim (previously
was Vincent S. Lim). Current Vice Chairman is
Jason S. Lim. Current Member is Quintin
Chua and Vincent S. Lim.

Observance of good
corporate governance

Others (specify)
Risk Management

Current Chairman is Quintin Chua (previously
was Luis Ma. Zabaljauregui).

Observance of good
corporate governance

Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

Name of Committee

Work Done

Issues Addressed

Executive

NA; The Company has no executive committee.

Audit

Assisted the board in the
performance of its oversight
responsibility for financial reporting
process, system of internal control,
audit process and monitoring of
compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations. Review of
quarterly reports and annual audited
FS prior to submission to the board.
Review the appointment/ approval
of external auditor. Review and

Compliance to rules and regulations
and reporting deadlines.

32



approval of internal audit plans.

Reviewed and evaluated the
qualifications of candidates
nominated to the Board and other
Nomination appointments that require Board None
approval. Recommended
appointment and approval of
directors and officers.
Remuneration Established a formal procedure for
developing a policy on compensation | None
of directors and officers.

Others (specify) Assisted the Board to oversee the
Risk management identification, measurement,
monitoring and controlling of the
Company’s principal business risk.
Created awareness of risk
management through Enterprise
Risk Management Seminar.

Asset impairment and obsolescence.
Credit risk on receivables.

5) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plansto undertake to address relevant issues in the improvement or
enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Name of Committee Planned Programs Issues to be Addressed
Executive Not applicable; the Company has no exeautive committee.
Audit Amendment of the Audit Committee Compliance to SEC Audit Committee
Charter. self-assessment form.
Nomination Succession planning of Company Implement formal process for
directors and officers. effective succession planning
program for management.
Remuneration Annual update of formal policy on None
compensation structure and
benefits.
Others (specify) Formal policy on credit setting and Formulate a formal and transparent
Risk Management limits. policy on credit risk assessments and
Setting of shared services for setting of credit limits.
accounting and financial Create a team to monitor the
transactions. migration of accounting and other
financial transactions.

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
1) Disclose the following:
(@) Overall risk management philosophy of the company;
Risk assessment and risk management are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. The Board and
Management believe that risk management is an integral part of corporate planning. It is a process to identify,

measure, monitor and manage uncertainty.

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and commenting
on the adequacy thereof;

33



2)

(c)
(d)

(e)

The Directors had no formal written statement about the review of the risk management system. However, the
Company and its subsidiaries identify the major risks of the businesses by assessing the business environment in
which they operate. Major risks and threats are addressed through the corporate planning process, which
defines appropriate strategic directions and actions to be taken. These directions and actions are managed by
regular audit and management review of the operations and financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Significant issues, which may arise as a result of the management review, are then presented to Board for
corrective action/ resolution. Risk Management Committee of the Company: (a) ensures that the overall risk
management policies and procedures exist for the Corporation, (b) reviews the adequacy of the Corporation’s risk
management framework / process, (c) reviews the results of the annual risk assessment done by the Corporation
and /or its subsidiaries, including the risks identified and the risk treatments, their impact on the Corporation’s
business, (d) evaluates the risk assessment and treatment report submitted by the Corporation and/or its
subsidiaries, which may include existing and identified possible risks as well as action plans adopted by
Management, (e) monitors the Corporation’s implementation of the various risk management activities and
evaluate effectiveness of the risk treatments and action plans, with the assistance of the internal auditors. This
includes a framework for Whistleblower Program and plans for Corporation’s business continuity, and, (f) meets
with Management to discuss the Committee’s observation and evaluation on its risk management activities.

Period covered by the review; 2015
How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its effectiveness; and

Review is conducted yearly during the corporate planning process. The criteria for assessing its effectiveness is
through use of benchmarking such as industry practices and best practices provided by experts.

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not. — Not applicable; annual review is
conducted.

Risk Policy

(a)

(b)

Company

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered
by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure Risk Management Policy Objective
Compliance Annual tax planning and | Ensure timely submission and
review. accurate information.

Tax training and hiring tax
consultants

Group

Give a general description of the Group’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered by
the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure Risk Management Policy Objective

Market competition Continuous market research Maximize available opportunities
on trends and products. in the market.

Rapid technology changes The Company will set Effective management of inventory

which may cause inventory reasonable inventory levels levels to limit product

obsolescence. considering market demands. obsolescence.

Compliance Annual tax planning and | Ensure timely submission and
review. accurate information.
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Tax training and hiring tax
consultants
Credit exposure Formal policy on credit setting | Implement a formal and
and limits. transparent policy on credit risk
assessments and setting of credit
limits.
Legal exposure Review of contracts by in Limit legal exposure and ensure
house or outside counsel. compliance to laws.
Approval of contracts by
management.

(c) Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

Risk to Minority Shareholders
Although there is a risk on the exercise of the controlling shareholder’s voting power to their
advantage, the Board is committed to good corporate governance. The Board shall respect the
rights of the stockholders as provided for in the Company’s articles of incorporation, by-laws and
the Corporation Code.
A director should conduct fair business transactions with the Company, and ensure that his
personal interest does not conflict with the interest of the Company.
Although all stockholders should be treated equally or without discrimination, minority
stockholders may request in writing the holding of a meeting, subject to the requirement under
the by-laws that such requesting stockholder is the holder of record of not less than one-third of
the subscribed and voting capital stock of the Corporation.

3) Control System Set Up
(a) Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the company:

. Risk Assessment Risk Management and Control
Risk Exposure (Monitoring and Measurement .
(Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)
Process)
Compliance to laws, rules Risk rating based on impact Install compliance and monitoring
and regulations and probability (high to low) | team.

(b) Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the company:

Risk Assessment

Risk Exposure (Monitoring and Risk Management and Control
Measurement (Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)
Process)
Market competition High Close tie-up with technology principal.

Rapid technology changes High
which may cause
inventory obsolescence.

Management of inventory levels to limit product
obsolescence.

Compliance to laws, rules High to low Annual tax planning and review. Monitor
and regulations compliance to law, rules and regulations




G.

1)

Credit exposure High Implement a formal and transparent policy on
credit risk assessments and setting of credit
limits.

Legal exposure Medium Review of contracts by in house or outside
counsel. Approval of contracts by management.

(c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising these
control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

Committee/Unit Control Mechanism Details of its Functions

Assisted the board in the | Ensures/ monitors compliance to
performance of its oversight | financial reporting process, internal
responsibility for financial reporting | control and to laws, rules and
Audit Committee process, system of internal control, | regulations.

audit process and monitoring of
compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Risk Management Assisted the Board to oversee the Oversees that the risk management
Committee identification, measurement, process are implemented as part of
monitoring and controlling of the corporate planning.

Company’s principal business risk.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

Internal Control System

Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

(@) Explain how the internal control system is defined for the company;
The Company started adopting the COSO framework in 2015 to establish an environment where internal control
systems are established/ categorized based on COSQO’s six (6) processes components focusing on four risk categories
which are strategic, operational, compliance and financial. Although policies are set by the Board, Management is
primarily responsible for the design and implementation of the internal control system of the Company. The Audit

Committee evaluates and monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company.

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and whether they
consider them effective and adequate;

The directors had no formal written statement on the review of the effectiveness of the internal control system but
had conducted review during corporate planning and budget meetings and external audit planning.

(c) Period covered by the review;
2015

(d) How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the internal
control system; and
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2)

(e)

Review is conducted twice a year. The criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system are:
compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and internal policies; achievement of strategic objectives; reliable
financial reporting; effective operations; and safeguarding of assets.

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Not applicable; review is conducted.

Internal Audit

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit function.

Indicate whether
Name of Chief
In-house or .
Internal Reporting
B SECEE s Auditor/Auditin rocess
Internal Audit . g P
. Firm
Function
Evaluate and Governance, risk In-house Ericson Salvador Reporting to the
provide reasonable management and Audit Committee
assurance. internal control
Consulting Governance, risk In-house Ericson Salvador Reporting to the
management and Audit Committee
internal control
In-house Ericson Salvador Reporting to the
Anti-fraud programs | Fraud p. & .
Audit Committee

Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting /auditing firm or corporation to
which the internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?
Yes

Discuss the internal auditor’s reporting relationship with the audit committee. Does the internal auditor have
direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties and
personnel?

Yes, this is stated in the Internal Audit Charter as approved by the Audit Committee.

Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those employed by the third-
party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

Name of Audit Staff Reason

N.A.

Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit’s progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination trends.

Conducted audit on 9 of 21 planned audits in the

P Against Pl
rogress Against Plans Group.
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(3 . .
Issues Compliance issues

Findings7 No critical findings

Examination Trends Increase

[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review cycle
which involves the following step-by-step activities:

1) Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timelineand milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings (“examination trends”) based on single year result

and/or year-to-year results;
6) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis.]

(f) Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and the
result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been implemented
under the column “Implementation.”

Policies & Procedures Implementation

Compliance with SGI Code of Ethics and Policies Fully implemented.
Adopt and comply with ISPPIA Standards and
Code of Ethics

Performance appraisal Fully implemented

Partially implemented/ on-going.

(8) Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies (example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares and
imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
external auditor may provide to the company):

Auditors Financial Investment

(Internal and External) Analysts Banks
The Company complies with the
Manual on Corporate Governance (CG)
on the appointment of internal
auditor. The Audit Committee ensures
that in the performance of the work of There are no independence concerns with financial
the internal auditor, he shall be free analysts, investment banks and rating agencies.
from interference by outside parties.
and that he be given unrestricted
access to all records, properties and
personnel to enable them
The Company complies with SEC rules
on selection of external auditor and
with the Company’s Manual on CG on
the rotation of the auditors or signing
partners. External auditors also are not

Rating Agencies

There are no independence concerns with financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies.

® “|ssues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations.
! “Findings” are those with concrete basis under the company’s policies and rules.
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allowed non-audit work.

The Audit Committee ensures that the
internal and external auditors act
independently from the other and that
each be given unrestricted access to all
records, properties and personnel to
enable them to perform their
respective audit functions.

(h) State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEO) who will have to attest to the company’s full compliance
with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors, officers and
employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as mandated by the
Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

The Chairman, President and CEO attest to the Company’s full compliance with SEC Code of Corporate Governance. All
its directors, officers and employees undertake to comply with the Code and or the Company’s Manual of Corporate
Governance and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure compliance.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company’s policy and activities relative to the following:

Policy

Activities

Customers' welfare

The Company gives priority to the
Customers and attend to their
needs and complaints promptly and
cheerfully.

The Customer Welfare Desk of Solid
Electronics Corporation was
accredited by Department of Trade
and Industry. This accepts the calls
of the customers as well as their
complaints.

Supplier/contractor selection
practice

The Company is honest and fair in

dealing with Business Partners and
Suppliers and we do not engage in
bribery, extortion or corruption.

The Company ensures that
canvassing of at least 3 suppliers is
made prior to selection and
awarding of suppliers.

Environmentally friendly
value-chain

The Company advocates Energy
Conservation and Environment
Protection.

In 2014, the Company participated
as sponsor in the Miss Earth beauty
pageant.

Community interaction

The Company contribute to social
causes and humanitarian concerns.

The Company will donate 60 school
houses or my|school in cooperation
with Ninoy and Cory Foundation
(NCAF) all over the country fora 5
year period. The advocacy started
in 2011 and the Company had built
6 my|school as of December 31,
2015.

Anti-corruption programmes
and procedures

The Company advocate responsible
citizenship and practice Christian
values but do not participate in

In 2014, the Company participated in
ABS- CBN’s Boto Mo Ipatrol Mo : Tayo
Na (BMPM) Campaign. Thisis a
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2)

3)

4)

1)

partisan political activities.

campaign for a clean and fair
election.

Safeguarding creditors' rights

The Company advocate and practice
fair trade and competition.

The Company ensures that

creditors and suppliers are paid in

full and on a timely basis.

Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section or sustainability report/section? None.

Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

(a) What are the company’s policy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?

The Company is committed to provide a workplace where employees are respected, satisfied and appreciated.

(b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

None

(c) State the company’s training and development programmes for its employees. Show the data.

The Company sends its employees to outside and in-house training.

(d) State the company’s reward/compensation policy thataccounts for the performance of the company beyond short-

term financial measures.

The Company has a compensation structure sufficient to attract and retain employees. The level of compensation
of the employees is based on a fixed remuneration and also on individual and company performance subject to

annual review.

What are the company’s procedures for handling complaints by employees concerningillegal (including corruption) and
unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

The Company has a Whistle Blowing Policy. The policy encourages employees to raise complaints or report information
on any misconduct or fraud including illegal and unethical behavior committed by employees and other stakeholders.
Also, under the policy, identities of the employees and other stakeholders are properly protected.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
Ownership Structure
(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more

As of December 31, 2015

Shareholder Number of Percent Beneficial Owner
Shares
AA Commercial, Inc. 583,377,817 32.03 Vincent S. Lim (Treasurer of AA
Commercial, Inc.)
AV Value Holdings 499,999,999 27.45 David S. Lim (President of AV
Corporation Value Holdings Corporation)
PCD Nominee Corporation(F) 365,049,459 20.04 Various stockholders
David S. Lim 179,488,591 9.85 David S. Lim
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. . Number of 9
Name of Senior Number of Direct . UMBEro % ?f
Indirect shares / Through (name of record Capital
Management shares
owner) Stock
Elena S. Lim 1,894 - -
7,300,000/ (thru Christopher J T
Susan L. Tan 78,645 | /300,000/ (thru Christopher James Tan) 0.40
499,999,999/ (thru AV Value Holdings Corp.)
5,000,000/ (thru Julia C.C. Lim
David S. Lim 179,488,591 /1 ) 37.58
Jason S. Lim 65,176,160 - 3.58
583,377,817/ (thru AA Commercial Inc.)
Vincent S. Lim 71,887,187 | 5,996,000/ (thru Michael Jordan T. Lim) 36.30
Beda T. Manalac 1,001 - -
Lita Joaquin 7,010,000 0.38
Roberto San Jose 242,000 0.01
TOTAL 323,885,478 1,101,673,816 78.26
2) Does the Annual Report disclose the following:
Key risks Yes
Corporate objectives No
Financial performance indicators Yes
Non-financial performance indicators Yes
Dividend policy No
Details of whistle-blowing policy No
Biographical details (at least age, qualifications, date of first appointment, relevant experience, and any other v
directorships of listed companies) of directors/commissioners es
Training and/or continuing education programmes attended by each director/commissioner No
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held during the year No
Attendance details of each director/commissioner in respect of meetings held No
Details of remuneration of the CEO and each member of the board of directors/commissioners Yes

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for the non-disclosure.
Some of the items above were not disclosed in the annual report since they are not required. However, the

attendance details of each director in respect to meetings held were reported or disclosed in SEC Form 17-C.

3) External Auditor’s fee

Name of auditor Audit Fee Non-audit Fee
Punongbayan & Araullo P5.617 million P 240 thousand
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited HK$301,500 None

4) Medium of Communication

List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

Company website, mailing of information statement to shareholders
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5) Date of release of audited financial report: April 7,2015

6) Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Business operations

Yes

Financial statements/reports (current and prior years)

Yes

Materials provided in briefings to analysts and media

NA

Shareholding structure

Yes

Group corporate structure

Yes

Downloadable annual report

Yes

Notice of AGM and/or EGM

Yes

Company's constitution (company's by-laws, memorandum and articles of association)

Yes

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason

thereto. Not applicable

7) Disclosure of RPT

DDT

Dalatinnchin

Natiira

\/aliin

Solid Manila Finance Inc. (SMFI), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, grante business loans to
Avid Sales Corp., AA Export and
Import Corp., AA Marine
Development Corp., Philippine Prawn,
Inc., Baybayan Farm, Inc. and
Kawayan Farm, Inc. which were
collected in 2015.

Related parties under
common ownership

Granting of
business loans

63,657,213

Solid Video Corp. (SVC), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,

earns commission from Solid Trading
Ltd. (STL).

Related parties under
common ownership

Working capital

90,000,000

My Solid Tecnologies & Devices Corp.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, purchases mobile phones
from STL.

Related parties under
common ownership

Purchase of
inventories

1,039,400,900

Solid Manila Corporation, a wholly owned

lease and development of the Company’s
real estate.

Related parties under
subsidiary of the Company is engaged in the| common ownership

Working capital

10,000,000
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Brilliant Reach Ltd., a wholly owned Related parties under Granting of loans 113,031,548
subsidiary of the Company, granted common ownership
an unsecured, interest-bearing loan
to Solid Company Ltd. (SCL). This
was collected in 2015.

Fil-Dragon, 51% owned by the Related parties under Availing of loans 609,101,168
Company, obtained loans from common ownership
companies owned by SCL of which
75% were paid in 2015.

SolidGroupTechnologies Corp., a wholly Related parties under Payment of 4,000,000
owned subsidiary of the Company, engage | common ownership suppliers
in, operate, conduct and maintain business
of designing, manufacturing, installing,
importing, exporting, marketing,
distributing or otherwise dealing in at
wholesale and retail prefabricated modular
house and office units

Solid Electronics Corp., a wholly Related parties under Purchase of 4,653,561
owned subsidiary of the Company, common ownership inventories
purchases parts and supplies from
CPD Corp. In 2015, CPD’s operation
ceased in favor of Solid Electronics
Corporation to align and simplify
the operation.

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

RPT are fully disclosed and approved by the Board. Purchases, granting of loans are others are done on an
arms’ length basis.

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings

(a) Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting as set forth in
its By- laws.

Quorum Required 2/3

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

For the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and Officers, the
System Used vote required is a majority of the outstanding common stock present in
person or by proxy, provided constitutinga quorum.

The method by which votes shall be counted: Each outstanding common
Description stock shall be entitled to one (1) vote. The votes shall be done viva voce or
by raising of hands, upon motion duly made and seconded.

(c) Stockholders’ Rights

List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting that differ from those laid
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down in the Corporation Code.

Stockholders’ Rights under
The Corporation Code

Stockholders’ Rights not in
The Corporation Code

provisions stated in the Corporation Code.

- Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/Special
Stockholders’ Meeting are in accordance with

There are no stockholders’ rights concerning
Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting that differ
from those laid down in the Corporation Code.

Dividends

Declaration Date

Record Date

Payment Date

August 7, 2015

August 28, 2015

September 23, 2015

(d) Stockholders’ Participation

1. State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special
Stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees.

Include in the discussion the steps

the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the stockholders as well as procedures for putting

forward proposals at stockholders’ meetings.

Measures Adopted

Communication Procedure
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The Board should be transparent and fair in the
conduct of the annual and special stockholders’
meetings of the corporation. The stockholders should
be encouraged to personally attend such meetings. If
they cannot attend, they should be apprised ahead of
time of their right to appoint a proxy. Subject to the
requirements of the By-laws, the exercise of that right
shall not be unduly restricted and any doubt aboutthe
validity of a proxy should be resolved in the
stockholder’s favor.

The Board promotes the rights of the stockholders,
remove impediments to the exercise of those rights
and provide an adequate avenue for them to seek
timely redress for breach of their rights.

To promote stockholders participation in the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting, the Board should take the
appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary
costs and other administrative impediments to the
stockholders’ meaningful participation in meetings,
whether in person or by proxy. Accurate and timely
information should be made available to the
stockholders to enable them to make a sound
judgment on all matters brought to their attention for
consideration or approval.

Although all stockholders should be treated equally or
without discrimination, minority stockholders may
request in writing the holding of a meeting, subject to
the requirement under the By-laws that such
requesting stockholder is the holder of record of not
less than one-third of the subscribed and voting capital
stock of the Corporation. [Revised Manual of
Corporate Governance, page 15]

Shareholders are informed at least 15 business
days before the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
The Notice includes the date, time, venue and
agenda of the meeting, the record date of
stockholders entitled to vote, and the date and
place of proxy validation.

Shareholders are provided through the Company’s
website, the disclosures, announcements and
reports filed with the SEC, and PSE.

2. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:
a. Amendments to the company's constitution

b. Authorization of additional shares

c. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the

Corporate decisions regarding the above amendments, authorization and/ or transfer of assets, which in effect

company

results in the sale of the company will be taken up in the meeting with the shareholders.

3. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where items

to be resolved by shareholders are taken up? No

a. Date of sending out notices: June 3, 2015

b. Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting: June 25, 2015

4. State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders’

Meeting.

Questions and answers during the June 25, 2015 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting are the following:
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Question 1: What is the policy of the Corporation on the distribution of BIR Form 1601-F together with the

dividends paid to the stockholders?

Answer by David Lim (President & CEQO) : Copies of BIR Form 1601-F are prepared in respect of the income
tax withheld on dividends for each stockholder which are mailed to the stockholders upon filing of the BIR
Form 1601-F with the BIR and upon payment of the withholding tax to the BIR. Any stockholder may also
request for a copy of the BIR Form 1601-F filed in respect of the income tax withheld on their dividends

from the Corporation.

Question 2: What are the plans of the Corporation for the coming year?

Answer by David Lim (President & CEO): The Corporation will focus on the three (3) core areas of

operations of the Corporation, which are digital mobile devices, property and building services, and

technical support and solutions. The operations of these three core areas are recognized as respective

leaders in their respective fields despite being highly competitive industries

5. Result of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting’s Resolutions

Resolution Approving Dissenting Abstaining

A | of the Minutes of A |
pproval of the inutes ol Annua 1,401,260,295 votes
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 26, .
representing 76.93%
2014.
Ratification of the acts of the Board of
Directors / Officers

1,401,260,295 votes
representing 76.93%

Election of Directors 1,401,260,255 votes
representing 76.93%

Appointment of the External Auditors - 1,401,260,295 votes

Z;:(S)ngbayan & Araullo for the year representing 76.93%

6. Date of publishing of  the result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

The results of the annual stockholders’ meeting wasimmediately disclosed to the PSE’s EDGE Submission
System on the same date June 25, 2015.

(e) Modifications

(f)

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the most
recent year and the reason for such modification:

Modifications Reason for Modification

None

Stockholders’ Attendance

(i) Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting Held:
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§ Names ofBoard i Voting Procedure % of SH
Type'o members / Date.o (by poll, show of | Attending
Meeting | officers present | Meeting hands, etc.) in Person

% of SH | Total % of SH
in Proxy | attendance

Elena S. Lim
Susan L. Tan
David S. Lim
Jason S. Lim
Vincent S. Lim June 25, | By Ballot
Quintin Chua 2015

Maria G.
Goolsby

Annual 0.02% 76.91% 76.93%

Joseph Lim
Beda Manalac

Special Not applicable; no special meeting

(ii) Does the company appoint an independent party (inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the
ASM/SSMs?

Yes, the appointed independent party (inspectors) of the Company is the Stock Transfer Services Inc.

(iii) Do the company’s common shares carry one vote for one share? If not, disclose and give reasons for any
divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting
rights attached to each class of shares.

The Company only has common stock. One common stock is entitled to one vote.

(g) Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting.

Company’s Policies

The Company By-laws allows the execution and acceptance

of proxy.

For corporate shareholders, the Company requires notarized
Notary secretary’s certificate as to authority of the representative to
attend the meeting.

Execution and acceptance of proxies

Submission of Proxy The Company By-laws allows the submission of proxy.

If the stockholder intends to designate several proxies, the
number of shares of stock to be represented by each proxy
shall be specifically indicated in the proxy form. If some of
the proxy forms do not indicate the number of shares, the
total shareholdings of the stockholder shall be tallied and the
balance thereof, if any, shall be allotted to the holder of the
proxy form without the number of shares. If all are in blank,
the stocks shall be distributed equally among the proxies.
The number of persons to be designated as proxies may be
limited by the By-Laws.

Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shall be valid only
Validity of Proxy for the meeting for which it is intended. No proxy shall be
valid and effective for a period longer than five (5) years at

Several Proxies
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any one time(Sec. 58 of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines)

Proxies executed abroad shall be duly authenticated by the
Philippine Embassy or Consular Office.

A proxy shall not be invalidated on the ground that the
stockholder who executed the same has no signature card on
file with the Corporate Secretary or Transfer Agent, unless it
can be shown that he/she had refused to submit the
signature card despite written demand to that effect duly
received by the said stockholder at least ten (10) days before
the annual stockholders’ meeting. There shall be a
presumption of regularity in the execution of proxies and
shall be accepted if they have the appearance of prima facie
authenticity in the absence of a timely and valid challenge.
The Company By-laws requires the validation of proxy.
Validation of proxies shall be held at the date, time and place
Validation of Proxy as may be stated in the Notice of the stockholders’ meeting
which in no case shall be less than five (5) calendar days prior
to the date of stockholders’ meeting.

Any violation of this Rule on Proxy shall be subject to the
administrative sanctions provided for under Section 144 of
Violation of Proxy the Corporation Code and Section 54 of the Securities
Regulation Code, and shall render the proceedings null and
void.

Proxies executed abroad

Invalidated Proxy?

(h) Sending of Notices

State the company’s policies and procedure on the sending of notices of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting.

Policies Procedure

The Company abides by the SEC requirement of
sending out notices not later than 15 days prior to
the Annual Stockholder’'s Meeting. The Company
also send out the notices to the addresses of the
shareholders.

The Company mail the notices to the addresses
of the shareholders on June 3, 2015.

(i) Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

Number of Stockholders entitled to receive
Definitive Information Statements and 4,344
Management Report and Other Materials

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive
Information Statement and Management Report
and Other Materials held by market
participants/certain beneficial owners

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive
Information Statement and Management Report June 3, 2015
and Other Materials held by stockholders

State whether CD format or hard copies were
distributed

If yes, indicate whether requesting stockholders
were provided hard copies

June 3, 2015

Combined CD format and hard copies

Yes




2)

1)

(j) Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting include the following:

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only one item. Yes
Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of first appointment,

experience, and directorships in other listed companies) nominated for Yes
election/re-election.

The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed. Yes
An explanation of the dividend policy, if any dividend is to be declared. No
The amount payable for final dividends. No
Documents required for proxy vote. Yes

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

The dividend policy was not included in the notice. However, during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, it
was explained that the Company will declare the dividends before the end of the vyear.

Treatment of Minority Stockholders

(a) state the company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.

Policies Implementation

Shareholders are informed at least 15 business
days before the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

The Company respect the rights of  the | Notice for the June 25, 2015 Annual Stockholders’
stockholders as provided in the Company’s| Meeting was sent on June 03, 2015. The
articles of incorporation, By-laws and the | Company implements 1 vote for 1 share.

Corporation Code; right to vote on all matters that
require their consent or approval, right to inspect
corporate books and records, right to information,
right to dividends and appraisal right.

Shareholders are entitled to equal amount of
dividends per share. Shareholders are provided
through the Company’s website, the disclosures,
announcements and reports filed with the SEC,

and PSE.

(b) Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?  Yes

INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

Discuss the company’s external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed. Disclose
who reviews and approves major company announcements. Identify the committee with this responsibility, if it has
been assigned to a committee.

The Company’s announcements and periodic and annual reports are disclosed to the SEC and PSE. This are also
uploaded in the Company website. The Company has a designated Investor Relations Officer that handles queries and
communications with stockholders. The Chairman and President/CEO reviews and approves major company
announcements.
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2) Describe the company’s investor relations program including its communications strategy to promote effective
communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disclose the contact details (e.g.
telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible forinvestor relations.

Details
(1) Objectives To promote shareholder awareness of Company activities and
operations.
(2) Principles Transparency and good corporate governance.
(3) Modes of Communications SEC and PSE disclosure; newspaper publication
(4) Investors Relations Officer Josephine Santiago

3) What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital markets,
and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the
transaction price.

The Company ensures that acquisition, sales and other substantial transactions, if any, are properly evaluated. It may
consider the appointment of an independent party to assist and/ or evaluate the fairness of the transaction price.

L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

Initiative Beneficiary

The Company will donate 60 school houses or
my|school in cooperation with Ninoy and Cory
Foundation (NCAF) all over the country for a 5 year | School children
period. The advocacy started in 2011 and the
Company had built 6 my|school as of December 2015.
The Company donated Segunda Mana Charity Store
to Caritas Manila.

Caritas Manila

The Company donated school houses Department of Education for Typhoon Yolanda victims
in the Visayas

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its committees,
individual director, and the CEQ/President.

Process Criteria

The Company assesses and
evaluates the performance of its
Board of Directors Board of Directors by
accomplishing the ICD Corporate
Governance Scorecard

Adequate to Best compliance
criteria

Board Committees
Individual Directors
CEO/President

None
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N. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance manual
involving directors, officers, management and employees

Violations Sanctions

The Company ensures that it complies with the
requirements of the Company’s Manual of Corporate
Governance. Violate or breach of the manual will be
grounds for disqualification.

Removal or disqualification of directors and officers.




Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Annual Corporate
Governance Report is signed in behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in
the City of Makati on March 28, 2016.
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